
 
 
 
 
 
#plymplanning 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Thursday 12 March 2015 
4 pm 
Council House, Plymouth (Next to the Civic Centre) 
 
Members: 
Councillor Stevens, Chair 
Councillor Tuohy, Vice Chair 
Councillors Mrs Bowyer, Darcy, Sam Davey, K Foster, Mrs Foster, Jarvis, Morris, Nicholson, 
Stark, Jon Taylor and Kate Taylor. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
This meeting will be broadcast live to the internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated 
viewing.  By entering the Council Chamber and during the course of the meeting, Councillors 
are consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting. 
 

If you are seated in the public area at the rear of the Council Chamber, it is likely that your 
image will be captured by the recording cameras and this will result in your image becoming part 
of the broadcast.  This may infringe your Human Rights and if you wish to avoid this, you should 
move to the public seating area in the public gallery above the Chamber. 
 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 
Democratic Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Ballard House 
West Hoe Road 
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 
 
Please ask for  Katey Johns/ Helen 
Rickman 
T 01752 307815/ 398444 
E katey.johns@plymouth.gov.uk/ 
helen.rickman@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
Published 3 March 2015 

Public Document Pack



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.  
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
  
 The Committee will be asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 

2015. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC    
  
 The Chair will receive and respond to questions from members of the public submitted in 

accordance with the Council’s procedures. Questions shall not normally exceed 50 
words in length and the total length of time allowed for public questions shall not exceed 
10 minutes. Any question not answered within the total time allowed shall be the subject 
of a written response. 

  
6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION    
  
 The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure will submit a schedule 

asking Members to consider Applications, Development proposals by Local Authorities 
and statutory consultations under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

  
6.1 MILLBAY MARINA VILLAGE, CUSTOM HOUSE LANE, PLYMOUTH 

14/01103/FUL 
(Pages 9 - 68) 

   
 Applicant:  Linden Homes Ltd. 

Ward:   St Peter and the Waterfront 
Recommendation: Grant conditionally subject to S106 agreement 

delegated to Assistant Director for Strategic 
Planning and Infrastructure to refuse if not signed 
by target date or other date agreed through an 
extension of time 
 
 
 



 

 
 

   
6.2 165 ARMADA WAY, PLYMOUTH 15/00006/FUL (Pages 69 - 92) 
   
 Applicant:  Plymouth City Council 

Ward:   St Peter and the Waterfront 
Recommendation: Grant conditionally 

 

   
6.3 THE BROADWAY, PLYMOUTH 14/02409/FUL (Pages 93 - 102) 
   
 Applicant:  Great End Properties Ltd. 

Ward:   Plymstock Radford 
Recommendation: Grant conditionally  

 

   
6.4 19 HILL PARK CRESCENT, PLYMOUTH 15/00012/FUL (Pages 103 - 110) 
   
 Applicant:  Mr P Harker 

Ward:   Drake 
Recommendation: Grant conditionally 

 

   
7. PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS ISSUED   (Pages 111 - 140) 
  
 The Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure, acting under powers 

delegated to him by the Council, will submit a schedule outlining all decisions issued from 
2 February to 1 March 2015, including – 
 
1)  Committee decisions; 
2)  Delegated decisions, subject to conditions where so indicated; 
3)  Applications withdrawn; 
4)  Applications returned as invalid. 
 
Please note that these Delegated Planning Applications are available for inspection at First 
Stop Reception, Civic Centre. 

  
8. APPEAL DECISIONS   (Pages 141 - 142) 
  
 A schedule of decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate on appeals arising from the 

decision of the City Council will be submitted.  Please note that this schedule is available 
for inspection at First Stop Reception, Civic Centre. 

  
9. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) … of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  
 
 



 

  
PART II - PRIVATE MEETING 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of 
the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



Planning Committee Thursday 12 February 2015 

Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 12 February 2015 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Stevens, in the Chair. 
Councillor Tuohy, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall (substitute for Councillor Sam Davey), Mrs Bowyer, K 
Foster, Mrs Foster, Jarvis, Morris, Mrs Nicholson (substitute for Councillor Darcy), 
Nicholson, Stark, Jon Taylor and Kate Taylor.  
 
Apologies for absence: Councillors Darcy and Sam Davey. 
 
Also in attendance: Peter Ford (Lead Planning Officer), Julie Rundle (Senior Lawyer) 
and Helen Rickman (Democratic Support Officer). 
 
The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 7.30 pm. 
 
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, 
so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm 
whether these minutes have been amended. 
 

83. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
The following declarations of interest were made in accordance with the code of 
conduct – 
 
Name Minute No and Item Reason Interest 
Councillor Mrs 
Aspinall 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to her and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Mrs 
Bowyer 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to her and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Peter Ford – 
Planning Lead 
Officer 
 
 

87.4 and 87.5 – Vauxhall 
Quay 14/02332/FUL 
 
Vauxhall Quay 
14/02334/LBC 

He is a friend of an 
employee of Sutton 
Harbour Ltd 

Personal 

Councillor Ken 
Foster 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to him and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee Thursday 12 February 2015 

Councillor Wendy 
Foster 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to her and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Jarvis 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 
 

The applicant is 
known to him and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Morris 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 
 

The applicant is 
known to him and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Mrs 
Nicholson 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to her and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor 
Nicholson 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to him and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Stevens 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 
 

The applicant is 
known to him and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Stevens 
 

87.3 – Mannamead 
Centre, 15 Eggbuckland 
Road 14/02336/FUL 

He is employed by 
Devon and Cornwall 
Police. 

Personal 

Councillor Kate 
Taylor 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to her and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Jon 
Taylor 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to him and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

Councillor Tuohy 
 

87.1 – 27 Whiteford 
Road 15/00040/FUL 

The applicant is 
known to her and is 
an employee of 
Plymouth City 
Council. 

Personal 

 

Page 2



Planning Committee Thursday 12 February 2015 

 
84. MINUTES   

 
Agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2015. 
 

85. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of Chair’s urgent business. 
 

86. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no questions from members of the public. 
 

87. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION   
 
The Committee considered the following applications, development proposals by 
local authorities and statutory consultations submitted under the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990, and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act, 
1990. 
 
 87.1 27 WHITEFORD ROAD 15/00040/FUL   
   

Ms Tracey Lee 
Decision: 
Application GRANTED conditionally. 
 
 

(The Committee heard representations in support of the 
application). 

 
(A Planning Committee site visit was held on 10 February 2015 in 

respect of this application). 
   
 87.2 FORT HOUSE, FORT TERRACE 14/01815/FUL   
   

Senate Properties (SW) Ltd 
Decision: 
Application DEFERRED to allow the applicant to consult local 
residents on the boundary/buffering treatment of the site, the 
construction phase of the development and for the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) figures to be more accurately calculated. 
  
(The Committee heard representations against the application). 

 
(The Committee heard representations in support of the 

application). 
 

(Councillor Jon Taylor’s proposal to defer the application, having 
been seconded by Councillor Tuohy, was put to the vote and 

Page 3



Planning Committee Thursday 12 February 2015 

declared carried). 
 

(A Planning Committee site visit was held on 10 February 2015 in 
respect of this application). 

 
   
 87.3 MANNAMEAD CENTRE, 15 EGGBUCKLAND ROAD 

14/02336/FUL   
   

Pillar Land Securities Ltd 
Decision: 
Application GRANTED conditionally subject to a S106 agreement 
with delegated authority to the Assistant Director for Strategic 
Planning and Infrastructure to agree the conditions and the section 
106 obligations based upon the previous permission. The conditions 
to include one regarding the lighting of the site.   
 
(The Committee heard Councillor Ball, ward member, speaking in 

support of the application). 
 

(The Committee heard representations in support of the 
application). 

 
(Councillor Nicholson’s proposal to grant the application, seconded 
by Councillor Stark, was put to the vote and declared carried). 

 
   
 87.4 VAUXHALL QUAY 14/02332/FUL   
   

Sutton Harbour Services LTD 
Decision: 
Application GRANTED conditionally Subject to a S106 Obligation, 
with delegated authority to refuse in the event that the S106 
Obligation is not completed by 30/04/2015. 
 
 
(The Committee heard representations against the application). 

 
(The Committee heard representations in support of the 

application). 
 

(A Planning Committee site visit was held on 10 February 2015 in 
respect of this application). 

 
(Councillor Stark was absent for the conclusion of this item and 

therefore did not take part in the vote). 
   

 
 
 

Page 4



Planning Committee Thursday 12 February 2015 

 87.5 VAUXHALL QUAY 14/02334/LBC   
   

Sutton Harbour Services LTD 
Decision: 
Application GRANTED conditionally. 
 
 
(The Committee heard representations against the application). 

 
(The Committee heard representations in support of the 

application). 
 

(A Planning Committee site visit was held on 10 February 2015 in 
respect of this application). 

 
(Councillor Stark was absent for the conclusion of this item and 

therefore did not take part in the vote). 
   

88. PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS ISSUED   
 
The Committee noted the report from the Assistant Director for Strategic Planning 
and Infrastructure on decisions issued for the period 4 January 2015 to 1 February 
2015. 
 

89. APPEAL DECISIONS   
 
There were no appeal decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate. 
 

90. EXEMPT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of exempt business. 
 

 SCHEDULE OF VOTING   
  
 ***PLEASE NOTE*** 
 
A SCHEDULE OF VOTING RELATING TO THE MEETING IS ATATCHED 
AS A SUPLLEMENT TO THESE MINUTES. 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE –12 February 2015 

 
SCHEDULE OF VOTING 

 

Minute number and 
Application 

Voting for  Voting 
against 

Abstained Absent due to 
interest 
declared 

Absent 

87.1 27 WHITEFORD 
ROAD  
15/00040/FUL 

Unanimous 
 

    

87.2 
 
 
 
 
 

FORT HOUSE, FORT 
TERRACE 
14/01815/FUL 
 
 
Amended 
Recommendation - 
Proposal to DEFER 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Unanimous 

    

87.3 MANNAMEAD 
CENTRE, 15 
EGGBUCKLAND 
ROAD 14/02336/FUL 
 
Amended 
Recommendation to 
GRANT 
 

Councillors 
Stevens, Mrs 
Nicholson, 
Mrs Bowyer, 
Nicholson, 
Ken Foster, 
Stark, Mrs 
Foster, Jarvis, 
Kate Taylor, 
Mrs Aspinall, 
Morris and Jon 
Taylor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor 
Tuohy 

   

87.4 VAUXHALL QUAY 
14/02332/FUL 
 
 
 

Councillors 
Stevens, 
Tuohy, Mrs 
Nicholson, 
Mrs Bowyer, 
Nicholson, 
Mrs Foster, 
Jarvis, Kate 
Taylor, Mrs 
Aspinall, 
Morris and Jon 
Taylor. 

 Councillor 
Ken Foster 

 Councillor 
Stark 

87.5 VAUXHALL QUAY 
14/02334/LBC 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillors 
Stevens, 
Tuohy, Mrs 
Nicholson, 
Mrs Bowyer, 
Nicholson, 
Mrs Foster, 
Jarvis, Kate 
Taylor, Mrs 
Aspinall, 
Morris and Jon 
Taylor. 

 Councillor 
Ken Foster 

 Councillor 
Stark 

 

Minute Annex Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
REPORT 
 

 

Application Number  14/01103/FUL  Item 1 

Date Valid 24/06/2014  Ward St Peter & The Waterfront 

 

Site Address MILLBAY MARINA VILLAGE, CUSTOM HOUSE LANE   PLYMOUTH 

Proposal 

142 residential apartments with communal facilities in three blocks, with 
associated car parking, infrastructure and landscaping and remedial works 
to pier structure 

Applicant Linden Homes Ltd 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    31/03/2015 Committee Date 
Planning Committee: 12 
March 2015 

Decision Category Major - more than 5 Letters of Representation received 

Case Officer Janine Warne 

Recommendation 
Grant conditionally subject to S106 agreement delegated to Assistant 
Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to refuse if not signed by 
target date or other date agreed through an extension of time 

 

Click for documents     www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningdocconditions?appno=14/01103/FUL/planningdoc

conditions?appno=13/02361/LBC 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 6.1



 

 

1.   Description of site 

The far south east corner of Millbay provides a 0.88ha (approx) waterfront site. 

The application includes Millbay Pier, a long (approx. 165m) narrow (approx. 20m) jetty which 
protrudes into Millbay - the water to the north is Millbay, that to the south is the Sound. The 
application site also includes a largely derelict area of land located to the base of the cliff known as 
the ‘Rusty Anchor’. A navigation beacon and a three storey, octagonal shaped, customs house are 
located roughly in the middle of the site. The isolated Customs House building is grade II listed and is 
occupied by the RNLI and, despite its central location, is not included as part of the application site. 

Of the original planning consent granted for the site, only three residential blocks were completed, 
located within the north and north-west of the application site. This includes the eight-storey 
apartment block known as ‘The Bridge’, and two separate blocks of 3/4-storey mews houses facing 
the marina (30 dwellings in total) which are predominantly brick and render buildings with intricate 
steep pitch roofs. ‘The Bridge’ contains seven storeys of flats, on a garage podium, with balconies and 
windows facing in all directions. The Marina Village is accessed from a private road, known as 
Custom House Lane, which stems from Great Western Road. Marina berths occupy the adjoining 
water in the outer basin. Originally intended to be occupied in conjunction with the new residential 
development, the majority of the berths have become disconnected and occupied separately. 

The undeveloped land has been left redundant, which has created an unsightly derelict area which is 
currently being used as an unauthorised car parking area. The eastern boundary of the site comprises 
a stone retaining wall. The level difference between the site and the pavement level of Great 
Western Road is approximately 2.2m. This stone retaining wall continues to the south towards 
Grand Parade where the level difference between the pavement and the site is approximately 3.3m.  

On higher ground to the east are two historic local streets: Great Western Road and, where it turns 
the corner, Grand Parade. These streets form part of West Hoe, a distinctive part of the City 
containing large rendered houses many of which are used as hotels/guest houses or have been sub-
divided into flats. The boundary of the Hoe Conservation Area falls to the south-east of the 
application site, including 23-39 Grand Parade and continuing around the corner towards the Hoe.   

The site to the west of Great Western Road, to the north of the private carriageway (Custom 
House Lane) is the subject of an outline planning application for mixed use development comprising 
up to 600 dwellings (Class C3), up to 8,600sqm Class A1, A2, A3, A4, A5 and D1, up to 12,500sqm 
office use (Class B1), hotel (Class C1), multi-storey car park for up to 600 cars, with associated 
engineering works, highway improvements, public realm and landscaping. Part of these proposals 
include a new access road stemming from Custom House Lane. This will provide access to and from 
part of the adjacent site. This application is currently being considered by the Council.  

Three-storey rear tenements of houses fronting onto Garden Crescent, further to the east, occupy 
the opposite landward side of Great Western Road. They contain windows on their western 
elevations that face towards the application site and the sea beyond. Grand Parade, as its name 
suggests, is bounded by suitably large and impressive terraced houses and is included in the Hoe 
Conservation area. As the road turns the corner from Great Western Road into Grand Parade, 
development resumes on the seaward (southern side) in the form of listed Witun Terrace. An 
immovable South West Water (SWW) pumping station in the far south east corner provides an 
unwelcome constraint to the site.  

 

 

 

2.   Proposal description 

Page 10



 

 

This application seeks consent for 142 residential apartments within three separate blocks: a pier 
building (Block A); a building on Grand Parade (Block B) and a building on Great Western Road 
(Block C) and a total of 194 associated parking spaces (145 allocated to the proposed residential 
accommodation, 41 visitor spaces and 8 spaces allocated to the RNLI). 

Pier Building – Block A 

The positioning of Block A is largely dictated by the long, narrow form of the existing pier, combined 
with the necessity for a mobile crane to reach the end of the pier and a vehicle to gain access to the 
lifeboat refuelling station on the northern (marina) side of the pier. Furthermore, with consideration 
of a large ferry or vessel losing control and hitting the pier side on, it has been previously agreed (in 
accordance with the Spencer Report which accompanies this application) that any building 
constructed on the pier should not extend beyond a line 2 metres back from the southern (seaward) 
edge of the pier and the western extent of any building here should be no closer than 35m to the 
end of the pier.  

This block contains 64 residential units: 

• 54 x 2bed  

• 10 x 3bed. 

The proposals also include a ‘resident’s communal meeting room’ and associated facilities situated at 
the eastern end of the second floor.  

The proposed building steps up gradually towards the end of the pier to form an eleven-storey 
landmark structure. The character of the building has been designed to represent the ribs of a ship, 
with curved structural spars supporting an expense of balconies on all elevations, creating a nautical 
reference and contemporary form. 

64 parking spaces have been allocated to Block A, 44 of which are located within an enclosed 
ground-floor car park; the other 20 allocated spaces are external. The integral car park has been 
designed with a double height roadway running through it so that a crane can travel through the 
building to access and maintain the end of the pier when required.  

Grand Parade Building – Block B 

The design of Block B responds to the bend in the road between Great Western Road and Grand 
Parade. It comprises of a facetted block with wide frontages on the seaward facing side resulting 
from the tapering plan-form of each apartment. All the residential units benefit from a southwest 
aspect towards the sea. 

This block contains 34 residential units: 

• 4 x 1bed,  

• 27 x 2bed,  

• 3 x 3bed  

A gym is also proposed within the south-eastern end of the first-floor.  

This building occupies the south-eastern corner of the site, where Great Western Road turns into 
Grand Parade. Four entrance atriums are proposed from Great Western Road. Vehicular access is 
achieved via the lower level of the Marina Village site. The building comprises five storeys of 
residential accommodation above a ground-floor car park containing 37 spaces dedicated to Block B 
(including 6 double-banked spaces). 

 

Great Western Road Building – Block C 

Page 11



 

 

Block C is situated to the north of the site on an area of hardstanding which is currently used as an 
unauthorised car park, adjacent to the existing block of apartments known as ‘The Bridge’.  

This proposed building contains 44 residential units: 

• 2 x 1bed,  

• 38 x 2bed,  

• 4 x 3bed 

This seven-storey building includes six floors of residential accommodation over a ground floor car 
park. Pedestrian access can be achieved via one entrance point from Great Western Road. Vehicular 
access is achieved via the lower level of the Marina Village site. 

Four small units are proposed to be used as two ‘leisure facilities’ and a marina workshop and a 
store. These are sited within the ground floor, western frontage. The rest of the ground flood is 
occupied by car parking – Block C has 44 allocated spaces, including 28 internal spaces (8 of which 
are double-banked) and 16 external spaces. 

Other 

The application also seeks to provide public access to the site via a raised walkway connecting the 
existing South West Coast Path, south of Grand Parade, to the site. A new opening is proposed in 
the existing boundary stone wall enabling pedestrians and cyclists to access the site, approximately 
2m below the level of the South West Coast Path. Furthermore, a raised walkway has been 
proposed alongside Block A to provide a scenic pedestrian route to the end of Millbay pier for 
members of the public. The western end of the pier will provide a high quality public realm with 
views across the marina or out over the Sound to Mt Edgecombe and Drakes Island. One other new 
pedestrian access point is proposed towards the southern end of the site adjacent to the RNLI 
building. This walkway will be taken from Great Westen Road down a new flight of steps.  

The proposal also includes details of a new flood protection wall.  

  

3.   Pre-application enquiry 

Pre-application discussions took place (ref: 13/01119/MAJ), commencing in June 2013. In summary, 
early advice referred to the design of the proposed buildings – a tall, landmark building was 
encouraged and the design developed in accordance with this advice. The opportunity for integration 
with existing and proposed cycle and walking paths and the facilitation of public access to the pier 
was explored and achieved. The ability to provide active frontages along the site was also discussed 
in detail but this was not secured due to covenant restrictions. Meetings were held with various key 
external consultees, including the Queens Harbour Master to discuss navigational safety and the 
Environment Agency to discuss flood protection measures.  The environmental concerns were also 
discussed in great detail, in conjunction with the Marine Management Organisation. Affordable 
housing requirements were outlined and transport/parking requirements were reviewed by the 
Highways Authority. As the scheme progressed, other material planning considerations were 
highlighted and discussed including the historic environment, sustainability, etc. Officers stressed that 
this site is very important within the context of Plymouth’s waterfront and it is of paramount 
importance that a high quality development is delivered here.   

 

 

 

 

4.   Relevant planning history 

Page 12



 

 

The site has an extensive history of applications. The following are relevant to the consideration of 
this application:-  

 

• 88/01258 – Erection of 87 dwellings (32 houses, 51 flats and 4 apartments - 65 parking 
spaces) and marina (Granted) – Implemented in part and thus extant.  

• 89/00251 – Amended application for block 1:9 of 88/01258 to provide an additional 2 flats 
(Granted) – Implemented in full. 

• 00/00642/FUL – Erection of 81 residential units inclusive of 1 concierge apartment together 
with associated car parking. Refused 22nd December 2004 on the following grounds:-  

o inappropriate design,  

o impact on residential amenity,  

o impact on listed buildings,  

o lack of public access (to the waterfront and pier), 

o Impact on  Plymouth Sound  & Estuaries Area of Conservation (SAC); and 

o Impact on Navigation lights. 

• 07/00009/FUL – 94 residential apartments, in three blocks, with associated car parking areas, 
infrastructure and landscaping works (Granted) – works commenced and thus extant. 

• 13/01881/ESR10 – Request for EIA Screening Opinion for development of 144 residential 
apartments in three blocks, with associated car parking areas, infrastructure and landscaping 
works – Environmental Statement required.  

• 14/00145/ESR10 – Request for scoping opinion for Environmental Impact Assessment for 
development of 144 residential apartments in three blocks, with associated car parking areas, 
infrastructure and landscaping works – Formal scoping opinion provided identifying the issues 
to be included in the Environmental Statement.  

 

As outlined above, the site benefits from two extant consents for development (i.e. planning 
permissions that are still valid and therefore could be implemented). 

 

5.   Consultation responses 

Highways Authority – (comments received on 23/02/15) (observations summarised): would not 
wish to raise any highway objections to this application now the applicant has sought to increase the 
number of visitor car parking spaces serving the site. However the provision of a Parking 
Management Strategy will be critical in terms of effectively managing the car parking provided on-site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Protection Service (PPS) (revised comments, dated 23/12/14) (observations summarised) 

Noise  

Page 13



 

 

Paragraph 10.6.4. of the Environmental Statement Addendum note (submitted on 29th October 2014) 
regarding noise sets out that various standards for internal levels can be met. This along with the 
comments in the covering letter (dated 27th October 2014) specifying that the glass for the dwellings 
will be “bombproof” as per specifications from the MOD leads the Council’s PPS to believe that the 
internal levels for noise which are proposed in the recommended conditions should be easily 
achievable. 

The construction phase of the development has the potential to disturb nearby residential dwellings 
and as such it is recommended that a Code of Practice is submitted to deal with this. The Code of 
Practice should cover all potential aspects of nuisance with regards to the development and should 
acknowledge that the development of three large buildings whether at the same time or separately 
has the potential to impact others. Should the development be constructed in a phased approach it 
may be beneficial to submit separate plans for each phase, taking into account any previously 
completed phases. 

Air Quality 

PPS have considered the applicant’s justification for not including the committed Millbay Masterplan 
developments within the air quality assessment (see Ch.11 in Environmental Statement Addendum, 
dated October 2014). Although it would be normal practice to include all committed development, 
PPS acknowledge that the assessment includes those units that have been built. During the course of 
this application, PPS have received an air quality assessment for the new Millbay Masterplan 
application (ref: 14/01448/OUT). PPS acknowledge that including traffic generated by the larger 
Millbay application would serve to dilute the impacts of this development and because the air quality 
impact has been assessed for all committed development within the larger application, PPS do not 
have any outstanding concerns.  

Land quality  

The following reports have been submitted in support of the application: 

Whole site: 

• Yeandle Geotechnical Phase 1 Desk Study, February 2008, Ref; BC7384A. The consultant 
recommendation was for further intrusive site investigation including ground gas monitoring. 
This recommendation was accepted and further investigations have taken place as below: 

Block B: 

• Hydrock Desk Study and Ground Investigation, March 2014, Ref: R/13908/001. This 
investigation included ground gas monitoring. The consultant recommendation, for areas of 
soft landscaping is for mitigation in the form of a clean cover system. This recommendation is 
agreed. 

Block C: 

• Yeandle Geotechnical Ltd, Phase 2 Preliminary Geo-environmental Investigation, February 
2008, Ref: BC7384B. Although further ground gas monitoring was recommended, the lead 
consultant Hydrock in their Environmental Statement have proposed on the basis of ground 
gas monitoring results relating to Block B and C, that no further work is required. This 
conclusion is agreed. 

 

 

 

Given the remaining presence of hardstanding in some areas, lack of topsoil across the site as a 
whole, and the presence of elevated contamination levels at surface in areas that have been 
investigated across the site, PPS advise the need for site wide remediation in soft landscaped areas. 

Page 14



 

 

As such, pre-commencement conditions are recommended to support the necessary remediation 
scheme submission, plus other remediation and verification work that will subsequently be required. 

 

English Heritage (revised comments, dated 28/8/14) – Although there is harm caused to the 
historic environment by these proposals, that harm is relatively minor, and it is for PCC to weigh 
that harm against any wider public benefits offered by the proposals.  

In the context of the Hoe Conservation Area, the proposed tall building on Millbay Pier will be 
visible. As demonstrated in the applicant's wireline images, the tower element of the building will 
remove views of the tip of the Stonehouse Peninsular from certain viewpoints, and the tip of the 
building will rise above the hillside backdrop of Mount Edgecombe's Grade I registered landscape. 
This will cause some harm to the Hoe Conservation Area; as part of its character is derived from 
the ability of the viewer to read and appreciate the Plymouth coastline, and this will be 
compromised. That compromising of views, however, would be restricted to a relatively small part 
of the conservation area. From other areas the ability to read the coastline would be unaffected. 

The proposed building identified in the plans as Block B may also have a minor adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of the Hoe Conservation Area. Grand Parade, Grade II listed and within 
the Conservation Area, is a Palace-fronted terrace designed to have visual primacy in the context of 
views towards the city from Plymouth Sound. The proposed buildings will rise slightly higher than 
Grand Parade, diminishing its visual primacy to the detriment of the conservation area's character 
and appearance. It may be possible to mitigate this effect through good design and subtlety in 
materials but it would be preferable for Block B to be reduced by one storey. 

 

Queen’s Harbour Master (QHM) (revised comments, received on 17/11/14) – QHM is content 
with the planning application subject to the conditions and safeguards being included in any consent. 

The proposed development has the potential to effect navigation in 2 key areas – the ability to 
monitor vessels/activities from Longroom Port Control Station and the degradation of the navigation 
aids installed to aid pilotage of vessels using the main channel. 

The new design is significantly higher than previous proposals, particularly at the western end. It is 
assessed that the new building will result in the loss of direct sight of a section of the Cobbler 
Channel. The developer has proposed to mitigate this loss of direct oversight through the provision 
of a modern CCTV system which will be integrated into the existing Vessel Traffic Services 
Management equipment. 

The applicant has submitted updated information which includes details of a CCTV system which is 
of a satisfactory specification. QHM request that any grant of planning consent does not tie the 
developer to a specific supplier and would require provision of an agreed CCTV system funded by 
the developer to be a condition of any planning consent. Any CCTV system should be compatible 
with the VTS equipment installed in the port control station when the development is constructed. 
QHM would also seek assurance that free access would be allowed for maintenance and that there 
would be no enduring charges for the sighting of the equipment on the property. The detailed 
sighting of the equipment would need to be agreed between QHM, the CCTV contractor and Liden 
Homes plc as part of the detailed design for Block A. 

 

 

For previous applications the developer has commissioned a lighting report which considered the 
impact of the proposed development on navigation aids, with particular reference to Asia Pass 
directional light beacon. Such a report has not been provided within the current application. Whilst 
it is considered that the overall layout of the site will minimise the impact on the visibility of the 

Page 15



 

 

beacon, previous lighting reports have included important recommendations regarding the technical 
specifications for external lighting and conditions restricting the type, intensity and colour of interior 
lighting in rooms with windows facing the sea. QHM would require similar safeguards to be included 
as conditions of any new consent. 

For reference, the previous requirement was that the following conditions be written into all 
Owner/Tenant agreements for properties with windows facing the sea: 

 In order to facilitate the safe navigation of vessels at night, the following restrictions 
apply to interior lighting in rooms with windows facing the sea: 

 a. No flashing lights permitted. 

 b. No lights with bare lamp intensities greater than 100cds (or light output above 
1,500 lumens) to be directed towards/out of the windows. 

 c. No lights coloured red or green to be displayed. 

 

Environment Agency – (responses received on: 31/7/14, 24/10/14, 19/11/14) Holding objection 
issued. Awaiting further comments, see Section 3 of this report. 

 

Natural England (NE) (received on 17th July, no further comments required based on the revised 
information) (observations summarised) – Confirm that the proposed works are located adjacent to 
Plymouth Sound and Estuaries Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Natural England advises that 
providing the works are carried out in strict accordance with the details of the application which 
have been submitted, it can be excluded that the application will have a significant effect on any SAC, 
Special Protection Areas (SPA) or Ramsar site, either individually or in combination with other plans 
or projects. Therefore, it is NE’s view that an Appropriate Assessment of the implications of this 
proposal on the site’s conservation objectives should not be required. Natural England recommend 
that the conditions are attached to the planning permission to ensure that no piling takes place 
within the tidal waters and no percussive piling takes place.  

Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 

Having reviewed the evidence relating to the site, NE are satisfied that the proposed operations will 
not pose a significant risk of hindering the achievement of the conservation objectives stated for the 
Tamar Estuary Sites Marine Conservation Zone (MCZ), and in particular the designated feature of 
smelt (Osmerus eperlanus). NE advise that the distance between the proposed works and the area 
of the estuary primarily used by this species (approximately 8 km further upstream) is great enough 
for construction noise not impact the species. 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 

NE confirm that the proposed works are located in close proximity to Western King Site of Special 
Scientific Interest. Natural England have not identified a pathway by which impacts from the 
development would affect the interest features of the site. Therefore, if the works are carried out in 
accordance with the application, in Natural England’s view they are not likely to damage any of the 
flora, fauna or geological or physiographical features for which the site is designated. 

Designated Landscapes 

No Natural England Comment – Advise consultation with AONB partnership. 

 

Cornwall and South Devon AONBs – consulted in accordance with the above advice from NE. 
No comments received.  

 

Page 16



 

 

Associated British Ports (revised comments, received on 24/2/15) – No objections. 

  

Health and Safety Executive (HSE) – (updated response, received on 19/1/15) –  

As HSE has set a zero consultation distance in relation to the hazardous substances consent for the 
Brittany Ferries Fuel Terminal at Millbay Docks (application reference: 14/01347/HAZ), the 
proposed development sites involved in this planning application does not lie within the consultation 
distance of a major hazard site or major accident hazard pipeline. In these circumstances, there is no 
need for Plymouth City Council to consult HSE on this planning application and therefore HSE has 
no comments to make. 

 

Police Architectural Liaison Officer (received on the 3/7/14, no additional comments required 
based on revised information) – No objections.  

 

Marine Management Organisation (received on the 21/10/14) (observations summarised) – the 
MMO has considered: 

• the environmental sensitivity of a number of protected features in the area that surround this 
project, 

• the potential impacts on these features from the proposed works, 

• all mitigation measures that would be required to remove or reduce to an absolute minimum 
any such impacts on these features 

The overall conclusion is that the proposed Millbay Marina project will not have a significant effect 
on the marine environment that surrounds the proposed development, nor on the Plymouth Sound 
and Estuaries Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and the Tamar Estuaries Complex Special 
Protection Area (SPA) in particular. 

 

Ministry of Defence (MOD) (additional comments received on 19/11/14. Confirmed no additional 
comments to be made on 23/2/15) (observations summarised) -  

The location of this proposed development occupies the statutory explosives safeguarding zone 
surrounding MOD buoys in Plymouth Sound. Buildings within this zone should be ‘non-vulnerable’ that 
is of robust construction and design so that should an explosion occur at the buoys, buildings nearby 
will not collapse or sustain damage that could cause critical injury to the occupants.  

 

The MOD agree and accept that a condition requiring details of the glazing specification be submitted 
to the MOD for review is included in any planning permission granted. 

  

The MODs consultation response, dated 19/08/14, provided dynamic loadings to which the buildings 
will need to be designed to. As such, a second condition regarding the design requirements 
previously outlined will also need to be included in any planning permission granted. 

  

 

The design requirements can be addressed with 2 conditions: 

1. Provide details of the specification of the glazing 

Page 17



 

 

2. Provide details of the loading parameters for the overall design of the structure as per my 
previous letter 

  

The MOD would need to review and verify these details when provided to discharge conditions to 
ensure MOD requirements are met. The planning authority would be advised accordingly. 

 

Civil Aviation Authority – no comment received.  

 

Cattewater Harbour Commissioner (received on 23/2/15) (observations summarised) – The 
location is adjacent to waters within the pilotage district. The development should avoid confusing 
mariners by using coloured or bright lights which may confuse mariners or impair the ability of a 
vessel to be navigated safely in the area. 

 

South West Water (received 30/6/14, no additional comments required based on revised 
information) – No objection in terms of capacity being available to support the development within 
the water supply and drainage infrastructure for which we are responsible. 

The foul drainage strategy does however involve the connection of foul flows to a private sewage 
pumping station over which South West Water has no control and cannot therefore comment upon 
its suitability or capacity to accommodate such. 

 

Duchy of Cornwall – No comments received.  

 

Royal National Lifeboat Institute (RNLI) (initial comments received on 16/7/14) – principle 
concerns are: 

1. Access and Parking  

Depending on the resources required there will be 8 – 10 vehicles requiring to pass down Tollhouse 
Lane and park in the vicinity of the station. This facility is vital to providing an effective response and 
depending on the circumstances the vehicles may be left for several hours. 

It is necessary that during the development phase, and after the development is complete, that 
adequate parking provision is available, and that after completion the allocated RNLI car park spaces 
are clearly identified.  

Additional comments received on 20/2/15: The changed plans for the car parking provision insofar as 
they affect the RNLI allocated parking have been discussed with us and we are content with the 
provision. Although the proposed eight spaces are collected into one block, the plan is considered to 
be acceptable since it allows the RNLI control over access to the bulk diesel tank by delivery 
tankers. It should be understood by all parties however that, in the event of a call-out, there will not 
be time to park up neatly, and some vehicles may well be left temporarily outside marked parking 
spaces. In this event our crew members will make every effort not to block access to parking for 
residents. 

2. Fuelling Facilities and Bulk Fuel Supply 

Fuel is stored in a bulk tank situated behind the Lifeboat Station close to the boundary wall. A filling 
line, buried at a depth of approximately 1 metre passes in front of the Boathouse building, across the 
car park, and on to the pier where a hose reel passes fuel to the ALB. The developers are aware of 
this line and have identified the need to map its exact location before starting work.  In discussions 

Page 18



 

 

with the developers it has been verbally agreed that when development work takes place on the pier 
this filling line will be reinstalled under the pier, and the hose reel re-sited, when the works take 
place to install mains services for the projected block of flats. 

From time to time there will be a requirement to resupply the bulk tank and this will entail providing 
access for the road tanker. During construction work this means leaving sufficient room beside the 
boundary fence to allow the tanker access, and on completion there must be sufficient room to 
allow the same access (see additional comments above). Health and Safety rules require that the 
tanker driver can monitor both his own vehicle and the bulk tank while filling operations take place. 
It has been verbally agreed that once construction work commences the Lifeboat Coxswain and the 
site manager will work together to keep the site informed of expected deliveries. 

3. Access to the Lifeboat Berth and alternative berthing arrangements  

Access to the lifeboat berth is via the pontoons which make up the existing Millbay Marina. It is 
clearly important that no work limits this access and that on completion of development that access 
is preserved. Also, planning officials should note that the marina is a designated landing place for 
casualties, and occasionally, the deceased. This requires access to the Marina environs for 
ambulances and police vehicles. 

It is understood that when the major works commence on the pier the lifeboat pontoon will not be 
tenable for a period of time. Alternative berths which have the necessary accessability are few along 
the Plymouth waterfront. Storm gates, sills, draught limitations, and the effects of winter weather 
severely limit the options available to a vessel which requires to launch at any time and in any 
conditions. The preferred option would be to occupy another berth in Millbay Marina using 
temporary fuelling facilities and the support of the developers to achieve this would be a major 
benefit. 

In discussions with representatives of the developer, the RNLI have expressed a wish for the 
developers to provide an access directly from the finished pier on to the lifeboat pontoon. This 
would help expedite the manning of the boat as well as providing other benefits (see below). This 
access would need a gangway, similar to that used for access to the marina, which would allow for 
the rise and fall in water level. At the top a suitable secure gate to prevent unauthorised access to 
the berth. 

4. Other Matters 

It is considered that careful and considerate support in the development on the pier area could bring 
significant benefits to the RNLI and the City of Plymouth. Public access to the pier area as is 
proposed would be enhanced by the ability to see the lifeboats and, on occasion, visit onboard. At 
present access via the marina pontoons is potentially hazardous unless visitors are few and under 
close supervision. Discussions have considered the possibility, in addition to providing direct access 
to the pontoon, of having a PR facility which would allow visitors to see a display of RNLI 
information. We have also suggested that a room facility would provide an excellent site for 
presentations to groups and schools, and it could be used for other purposes such as resident's 
meetings. Such a facility would not only sit well with the RNLI initiative to improve visitor experience 
of lifeboat stations but would also allow presentations to school groups 

Planning authorities should be aware from the outset that the operation of the Lifeboat Station will 
cause occasional disturbance to new residents. This is unavoidable especially if emergencies occur 
during the silent hours. While every effort is made to restrict unneccessary noise, the fact remains 
that some operations are essential to prepare the boats for further services.  

Further observation (received on 17/11/15) -  

The RNLI have no issues regarding the construction of blocks A to C. However, it is concerning to 
note that none of the plans show the marina "as is" and while we may allow a certain license to the 
artist it is important that at some juncture planners see an exact representation of the marina. This is 

Page 19



 

 

particularly so for the berths for the All Weather and Inshore Lifeboats, and the wave screen for the 
marina. The RNLI is expecting to return the lifeboat pontoon to its current position after 
construction of Block A is complete. It is important therefore that the securing arrangements for the 
pontoon are fully appreciated before construction starts, and that said, securing arrangements are 
properly reinstated by the completion of construction. It is noted from the drawings presented that 
the piling currently installed along the North side of the pier will remain, but clearly any extra 
constructive work along that frontage would need to accommodate the securing of the pontoon.  

 

Civil Protection (Fire Service) (received on 30/6/14) – the Fuel storage tanks on the opposite 
quay adjacent to Brittany Ferries was recently designated a Lower Tier site under COMAH 
regulations. This is not considered to have any bearing given the distance to the proposed 
development but the COMAH status opposite should be considered. 

 

Civil Protection (Flood Capability) (received on 17/2/15) – Current flood defences as outlined 
in the reports from Hydrock and AWP are sufficient to protect the building from the risk calculated 
by the Environment Agency.  Additionally, consideration has been given to the risk of a south 
easterly wind and increased wave height.  As experienced in the storms of 2013–14, the wave 
strength is somewhat dissipated as they reach this particular site and consideration has been given to 
overtopping at a predicted 0.2m and appropriate drainage mechanism will be employed to carry 
away excess water.  In addition a detailed flood management plan will be provided to 
construction.  The only assumption I make is that the sites flood defences will be maintained by the 
developer or land management once the site is fully operational.  In closing, I cannot raise any 
objection from a Local Authority Emergency Planning and Response perspective to the planning in 
respect of the evidence provided as part of the planning application. 

 

Brittany Ferries (revised observations, received on 9/1/15) – (observations summarised) Brittany 
Ferries welcomes the proposed by the Council’s Public Protection Service to include a planning 
condition defining the internal noise levels to be achieved and also the requirement for pre-
occupation verification of the works to achieve those internal noise levels (as recommended in the 
PPS consultation response dated 23rd December 2014).  

 

Design Review Panel (review date: 23/7/14) – (observations/recommendations summarised):  

• Generally supportive of the proposals subject to the panels concerns and recommendations 
being addressed: 

• Wider contextual analysis should be carried out/provided, incorporating both the waterfront 
and wider city. 

• Provision of further information recommended, including masterplan, street scene elevations, 
site sections and eye level 3D montage images. 

• Concern over lack of demonstrable response to existing historical context. 

• Further design development required for external spaces, this should include more robust 
and comprehensive soft landscaping and external lighting proposals. 

• The proposals should incorporate publically accessible/community external spaces. 

• Concerns expressed that the external space to block C is dominated by cars, and this is not 
supported by the panel. 

• Proposed public access to the end of the pier supported. 

Page 20



 

 

• Seaward facing elevations supported, however concern that land facing elevations do not 
match and are not designed to the same standard. 

• The majority of the panel support the proposal for a landmark building as per block A. 

• The panel questioned the potential for incorporating other community or cultural uses in to 
blocks B & C. 

• Careful consideration is recommended in regard to the potential weathering of the proposed 
external materials and the design should support an ongoing maintenance regime. 

• The indicated proposed external hard landscaping materials are supported. 

• The panel was very supportive and positive in regard to the applicants commitment to not 
disrupt the RNLI . 

• The stated renewable energy strategy was supported. 

• It was recommended the proposals should demonstrate how the design has responded to the 
potential for sever and extreme weather conditions. 

• The proposals should incorporate measures to prevent seagulls from nesting on the roofs. 

 

Economic Development (received on 4/11/14) – If planning approval is granted for this 
development, as part of the Council’s growth agenda the Council requires the submission of an 
Employment and Skills Strategy, in line with Strategic Objective 6 of the Core Strategy. 

  

6.   Representations 

A Statement of Community Involvement accompanies this planning application to explain that, prior 
to the submission of this application, a series of newsletters, one-to-one meetings and public 
exhibitions were carried out by the applicants to inform and engage with immediate neighbours 
(approximately 470 addresses), other local residents groups, local stakeholders and businesses close 
to the site, as well as Councillors from Plymouth City Council. The feedback – both positive and 
negative – is summarised within the submitted Statement, which concludes that the feedback was 
‘broadly positive’ although ‘consultation has demonstrated concerns for onsite parking provision’. 

During the course of this planning application, three public consultation periods have been necessary 
to allow members of the public to review and comment on revised information. The initial 
consultation period commenced upon the validation of the application. Subsequently, further 
information was submitted at the end of October to attempt to address several points raised by 
local residents and internal and external consultees. A revised parking layout; updated Spencer 
Report regarding navigational safety; proposed CCTV system; elevational design revisions; details of 
additional hard and soft landscaping; an addendum to the noise assessment and air quality 
assessment; an Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy, etc.  Members of the public and 
consultees were re-consulted at this time. Most recently, revised information has been submitted 
relating to a revised flood protection scheme and parking layout. The LPA has re-consulted to give 
everyone the opportunity to review and comment upon this information. At the time of writing this 
report, the consultation period is still underway but will expire before the application is considered 
by the Planning Committee. All letters received at the time of writing this report are summarised 
below. Any additional representations will be presented by written/verbal addendum.   

50 letters of objection have been received from neighbouring landowners and local residents, 
including occupiers at Grand Parade, Custom House Lane, The Bridge, as well as residents living 
elsewhere in the City, primarily the Stoke area. In addition, 6 letters of observation have been 

Page 21



 

 

received from immediate neighbours, Stoke residents and their representatives. In addition, 1 letter 
of support has been received from a resident living in the Mannamead area of the City.  

As noted above, one letter of support has been received. In addition, several positive points were 
raised in other letters as summarised below: 

• The development/transformation of the Millbay area is commended.  

• The proposed development provides a great gateway building for the City that will be seen by 
ferry passengers as they enter the harbour. It will ‘show off’ what Plymouth is about – a 
modern city that is not afraid to have unique and interesting modern buildings.  

• The site has been derelict/wasteland for far too long and the pier has been an eyesore for 
years. There is much general support for the principle of developing the site and the 
completion of Millbay Marina Village 

• The proposed design of the buildings is admired - a ground breaking modern design should be 
supported. Specifically, the design of Block A; it is deemed impressive and adds a unique 
structure to Plymouth’s coast line and creates a positive landmark for the City.  With regards 
to Block B, it has a great curve to it when viewed from above and from the sea and seems 
appropriate in design as a link between the existing village buildings and Grand Parade.  

• It is considered that development on Millbay pier should mirror Mount Batten Pier and be 
open to the public with access joining the coastal path – it should provide a continuation of 
the waterfront with the added advantage of the general public being made aware of the work 
of the RNLI and a view of the old railway station site. 

• The development provides an opportunity for the water taxi to serve this area.   

• The site is served by a nearby bus route. 

 

The objections raised have been summarised under the following headings: 

Parking and Highway Considerations 

• There is a short-fall in parking provision for the various users of this site, including occupiers 
of existing and proposed residential units and their visitors, the RNLI, and users of the marina 
berths. Consequently, there will be a negative impact on existing residents and a major 
overflow to West Hoe. The parking requirements have not been meaningfully addressed in 
the proposals.  

• Marina berths are sold/let to non-residents – this generates a parking demand. Boats are 
sailed by more than one person. This issue has not been adequately assessed in the submitted 
information and no regard has been given to the number of non-resident berth-holders’ cars 
parked in Millbay Marina. The Weymouth case study used by the Transport Consultants is 
not representative of Millbay Marina and has its own parking problems. Some support the 
notion that the remaining berths should be only allocated to properties within the site (as per 
the S106 agreement associated with permission 07/00009/FUL). 

• Millbay Marina is not well served by public transport.  

• The existing site is used as a car park, this will be lost. 

 

 

• This is a private estate and road, maintained by residents. Access should be for residents and 
their visitors. Proper controls on parking will be required to prevent the public parking in 
privately allocated areas. Some request barrier access to the Marina Village making it a gated 
community allowing permitted vehicles only.  

Page 22



 

 

• The area is dominated by small hotels, B&Bs and small flats and so parking in the area is 
already problematic, especially in the summer season.  

• The application does not confirm whether existing allocated parking will remain/be protected. 

• There is only one access road, which is private.  This single road is insufficient to deal with 
the volume of traffic associated with the proposed development. Existing and proposed 
parking arrangements make driving down the road difficult. It is suggested that the disused 
road into the site should be brought back into use and consideration should be given to a 
one-way system along Custom House Lane 

• So many additional vehicle movements will cause chaos within Millbay Marina Village and 
West Hoe. The present one-way traffic system on the exterior of the village is insufficient to 
accept the additional traffic proposed. Significant congestion is likely.  

• No road improvements are proposed. 

• The proposals are detrimental to conditions of highway safety, with particular reference to 
persons crossing the road within the village. Further, the application proposes the loss of 
pedestrian refuge at the junction of Great Western Road and Radford Road replacing it with 
a small roundabout. This would be detrimental to pedestrian safety.  

• There is concern that there will be inadequate space for emergency vehicles to access the 
site during construction works. 

• The cumulative impact of other surrounding developments should be considered. The 
submitted Transport Statement is inaccurate. It has been based on the 2008 extant 
permission for the redevelopment of Millbay (06/01533/OUT) being implemented in its 
entirety assuming all junction works specified in the 2008 permission will be delivered. A 
revised planning application has now been submitted for a smaller scale development and so 
it is not realistic to assume that the same level of junction improvements will be delivered. It 
is therefore important that the application assesses the cumulative highways impacts of the 
proposed development and the revised outline application, rather than the 2008 permission. 
A comprehensive traffic study of West Hoe should be prepared alongside English Cities Fund. 

• The application does not address traffic/air pollution.  

RNLI 

• There is a parking demand from the RNLI.  Parking provision for RNLI is unclear.  

• The RNLI boat berths are not shown on submitted plans 

• RNLI need clear access to the site at all times to respond to emergency call outs. Congestion 
will cause problems. 

• Fuel tanks and service points are not illustrated on the plans. 

Flooding 

• The site was severely damaged by storms in 2014, waves reached fifth-floor windows and 
halfway to The Bridge – photographs have been provided. The site was hit by 30ft waves, 
huge stones and boulders.  These storms are predicted to become more frequent with rising 
sea levels. Storm damage to the pier and sea wall remains un-repaired.  

• This is an unsafe location for development and will pose a risk to future occupiers. How will 
safe evacuation be achieved? 

• Public access to the pier would not be possible during a storm.  

• Block A is at particular risk of severe winter storms. Windows will be smashed.   

Page 23



 

 

• Adequate protection is required. Queries have been raised as to whether sufficient 
consultation has taken place with experts in wave and storm damage. 

• The Flood Risk Assessment is inadequate, particularly as regards waves and storm surges and 
has not been updated to review the recent storms. An up to date Flood Risk Assessment 
must be carried out, including predictions of the height of sea levels in the future.  

• The land was reclaimed from the sea.  

• Proposed construction materials are substandard for such an exposed waterfront site – the 
buildings will soon look worn and unkempt. Materials should reflect the waterfront location 
which is prone to flood and storm damage – plaster, wood and large areas of glass are 
inappropriate on the water’s edge. The quality of fascias will be crucial. 

Design/Visual Impact  

• The development has been described as an ‘eye-sore’, ‘monstrosity’ and a ‘blot of our 
waterfront’. It will be harmful to a naturally beautiful harbour and set a precedent for this 
kind of ‘infringement’ to obstruct the historic and panoramic views from the Hoe over the 
Tamar and Cornwall. Plymouth’s waterfront has been gradually developed with a ‘mishmash’ 
of unimaginative, low grade blocks of various coloured flats and buildings which are 
inexorably and permanently destroying the iconic and historic views across Plymouth Sound. 
It will also have a poor visual impact when viewed from the southwest coastpath.  

• Development is too large and dominates neighbouring developments – there should be a 
height limit of 6 floors, in keeping with the surrounding area. All proposed building are too 
high, particularly Blocks B and C. Block B appears too bulky. Block C should be reduced in 
scale – it is too high and too deep. 

• The design of Block C is out of keeping with the existing building within the village. The 
proposed use of pre-patinated copper cladding is unsightly and will weather poorly. Stone 
facing would be more acceptable and more in keeping with the brickwork on existing 
buildings. Block C is utilitarian in design and its proposed size would mask The Bridge from 
continuing to be a landmark building. It would also screen the historic wall and result in its 
distruction.  

• Block B is too close to the southwest coast path. The plans inaccurately reflect the width of 
the path.  

• The Tall Buildings Report does not give an accurate impression of the visual impact that 
another tall building will have on the views from many homes and public places across the 
City.  Millbay Pier is not designated as a site for a tall building (only Clyde Quay is designated 
in the Design SDP 2009 and Millbay and Stonehouse AAP). In the Inspectors’ Report of the 
Examinations into the Millbay and Stonehouse and the Devonport AAPs, 11 July 2007, the 
Inspector recommended that all developments should take account of the views of Plymouth 
Sound from the surrounding land “which are an important and stunning component of the 
character of Plymouth”. The height of Block A is contrary to the Local Plan. Furthermore, the 
Mackay plan advised against high rise buildings in prominent positions.  

 

 

• The development has no regard to the style, quality, materials and density of existing 
development. The design is too modern – it should be more in-keeping with the grade II 
listed Grand Parade and the terraces on the Hoe. Others suggest that the development 
should be in keeping with the existing Marina Village. 

• Overdevelopment/too dense. 

Page 24



 

 

• More open space should be provided.  

• Materials and finishes must be high quality and weather well. No plastic or matchwood 
cladding should be used in the construction. Stone or brick would weather well. Minimal glass 
should be used as this causes dazzle to shipping and other residents. 

• Proposed street furniture should match/compliment existing.  

• Will destroy the ambience and character of the present village with its tree-lined street and 
raised planters of hardy maritime shrubs.  

Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

• Loss of sunlight caused by Blocks B and C contrary to 45 degree guidance.  

• Disturbance to existing residents during construction phase and beyond. Noise disturbance, 
particularly from increased traffic movements.  

• The proposed windows and balconies in the west elevation of Block B will result in a loss of 
privacy to 39 Grand Parade.  

• Block B is too close to Grand Parade and its communal garden space. It will be overbearing 
and will result in a loss of privacy. 

• Loss of privacy and light to residents on the south side of The Bridge due to the proximity of 
Block C.  

• Public access/extension of coastal path will result in the loss of privacy.  

Planning History  

• Increase in unit numbers following planning history – from 59 to 142 additional properties.  

• Proposals ignore the ethos of the original planning consent to provide a cohesive maritime 
residential development.  

Right of Way/Public Access 

• Objections to proposed public right of way – unworkable for a private estate. Millbay Marina 
should be a gated community. Residents have shared financial responsibility for maintaining 
the estate; a public right of way will increase upkeep costs for residents, this is unjust, 
unreasonable and unworkable. Concerns about public liability insurance. Due consideration 
has not been given to residents’ enjoyment of their private property.  The existing coastal 
path is safer with conventional raised footpaths. Pedestrians will conflict with the already busy 
private road in the village – there are no footpaths here.  

• With regard to public access to the pier, opinions vary – some are supportive, others are 
against and others see it as a one possible compromise rather than public access through the 
estate. Other comments include concerns that public access will result in fishing and 
associated marine litter impacting upon marine life and causing pollution. Access to the pier 
will harm the amenity of future occupiers of Block A and B.  

• Who will be responsible for warning/closing the walkway in bad weather?  

• Will the road/path be adopted? 

Navigation/use of the port 

• Has Brittany Ferries been consulted? How will the development affect navigation and how 
will ferries manoeuvre so close to the proposed development? Consideration should be given 
to future cruise liners and other vessels using the port/marina and the potential impact on 
navigational safety. The pier has previously been hit by vessels.  

Page 25



 

 

• Block A should be moved back to assist vessels visibility. Such a tall building will compromise 
safety at sea by obscuring visibility.   

• The Spencer Report does not take account of sea level rise nor storm surges which may 
cause ship impacts in the future. The report doesn’t consider the full fleet of Brittany Ferries. 
The report does not consider the effects of ship impacts on the pier structure with loads 
transferred to the building foundations, and the amplification effects of this at the higher 
levels of the building.  

• Will the development effect wind direction?  

• Local residents expect noise from other users of the docks in Millbay, as long as they are 
reasonable. To impose excessive restrictions on users (such as Brittany Ferries) for the 
benefit of new residents would be unreasonable. Reasonable mitigation should be provided by 
the developer but it will be residents’ choice to live close to a working dock.  

Other considerations 

• The development does not take account of other users and uses of the waterfront and will 
‘cut residents off from the sea’.  

• Impact on tourist industry – making the area less attractive for tourists, loss of waterfront 
views, parking problems 

• The building will detract from the Millbay Harbour’s commercial use. 

• Some affordable housing should be included. Inadequate social benefits are provided. These 
‘luxury’ apartments will only be available to the very rich. 

• Plymouth’s housing market does not need small one and two bed apartments. The proposal 
fails to provide a mixture of family housing.  

• The building will be unsafe.  

• The site should be used as a visitors’ car park and amenities instead. The pier should be put 
into public or commercial use. The scheme should include some commercial uses/visitor 
attractions. Lost opportunity to provide good quality bars and restaurants.  

• The pier is an important heritage asset. Part of the site stands on an old railway station and 
factory yard. The heritage of the site should be preserved and reference to the old docks and 
railway station should be made in the proposed structures and GWR colours should be used 
throughout the site.  

• Lack of local facilities and infrastructure to support increase in housing. No improvements to 
infrastructure are proposed. The local Doctors’ surgery will not be able to cope. 

• If Block A is not delivered, the pier will remain a derelict eyesore. The Council must secure 
the completion of the scheme or ensure Block A is delivered first and the pier renovations.  

• Residential units in Block A should overlook the marina as well as seaward. 

• Proposals to pile through the pier structure will disturb and harm the existing pier structure 
which is vital for providing shelter and protection.  Insufficient evidence that the structural 
integrity of the pier has been considered.  

• Can South West Water deal with the additional sewerage. There are existing problems 
which will be made worse. South West Water should be consulted and held responsible for 
the acceptance of considerable flow of extra sewerage. The existing system cannot cope 
which existing sewerage and regularly requires maintenance at the ‘Rusty Anchor’ outflow 
causing smell.  

Page 26



 

 

• More information regarding the construction phase should be provided. How will Block A be 
constructed? Construction times should be fixed. The site should be accessed via Great 
Western Road during construction to avoid distruption to occupiers of Millbay Marina 
Village.  

• Light pollution 

• Pre-application consultation events were poorly advertised. Residents on Great Western 
Road should be notified. Inadequate time allowed for consultation period during summer.  

• Disturbing bats and other wildlife.  

• Will result in increase crime rate locally 

• Ownership issues – site is owned by Pinwood Homes, not Linden. It is a private estate 
controlled by Pinwood Homes. Linden do not appear to own the site. Appropriate notice has 
not been served on a landowner.  

• The submitted plans are inaccurate - the entrance to seaward is in the wrong place and the 
wave-screen is incorrect . The boat berths are not shown correctly. 

Non-Material Planning Considerations 

• Loss of sea views from local vantage points and elsewhere in the City, such as Stoke, 
Millbridge and the Blockhouse.  

• Identified inaccurate descriptions in Environmental Statement 

• Restrictions/entitlements in title deeds and lease agreements 

• Oppose opening the site up to allow access from neighbouring proposed development 
(material to the consideration of application number: 14/01448/OUT).  

• Depreciation of neighbouring properties. Property will be blighted. 

  

As noted above, at the time of writing this report, the third consultation period is still underway. At 
this stage, two additional letters of representation have been received, as summarised below: 

• Parking provision remains inadequate for residents and marina users 

• The development will be subject to extreme weather conditions – the will affect the 
proposed buildings and the safety of persons. The proposed wall structure is inadequate to 
protect buildings, cars and people. Ongoing maintenance requirements are likely to result in 
difficulties in insuring homes.   

 

7.   Relevant Policy Framework 

 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 
April 2007).  In the case of this application, it also comprises the Millbay and Stonehouse Area Action 
Plan. 

 

Page 27



 

 

The development plan is currently being reviewed as part of the Plymouth Plan.   The Plymouth Plan-
Part One: Consultation Draft was approved by Cabinet for consultation purposes on 9 December 
2014.   As such it is a material consideration for the purposes of planning decisions.  

 

The policies contained in National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework)and guidance in 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) are also material considerations which should be taken 
into account in the determination of planning applications.  Due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing and emerging plans according to their degree of consistency with this framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may 
be given). 

 

The Framework provides that the weight to be given to an emerging draft plan is also to be 
determined according to: 

• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the 
greater the weight that may be given).  The Plymouth Plan is at an early stage of preparation. 

• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant 
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given).  The draft policies of 
the Plymouth Plan are currently subject to consultation, although the general direction taken 
by the plan and key issues and options relating to it have been subject to consultation. 

 

At the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  In the 
context of planning applications, this means approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay but where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies 
are out of date, granting permission unless: 

• Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits; 
or 

• Specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted. 

 

Additionally, the following planning documents are also material considerations in the determination 
of the application: 

• the Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SDP) 
Second Review 2012,  

• Development Guidelines SDP First Review 2013,  

• the Sustainable Design SPD 2009  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 8.   Analysis 

 
1. Introduction  

 

Page 28



 

 

1.1 This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the emerging 
Plymouth Plan, the Framework and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7.   

  
1.2 As noted in the ‘Planning History’ section above, this application was subject to the Town and 

Country Planning (EIA) Regulations 2011 and an Environmental Statement (ES) was required 
and submitted. Some amendments were made during the application process and under 
further technical information was informally requested to address various issues raised within 
the initial consultation responses received in respect of the application from the LPA and 
other external consultees. An Environmental Statement Addendum was provided to update 
the ES in order to reflect the amendments to the proposed development and address all of 
the elements raised. The content of which has been considered in preparing this report. 
  

1.3  The primary planning considerations are deemed to be: 

 

• The principle of residential development of this site (MS07 of the Millbay and Stonehouse 
AAP and policies CS01, CS15, CS16 and CS34 of the Core Strategy) 

• Flood Risk (MS07 of the Millbay and Stonehouse AAP and policies CS21 and CS34 of the 
Core Strategy) 

• Ecology – marine and terrestrial (policies CS18, CS19, CS20 and CS34 of the Core Strategy) 

• Design of the proposed building and impact upon the character of the surrounding area 
(MS07 of the Millbay and Stonehouse AAP and policies CS02, CS16 and CS34 of the Core 
Strategy) 

• The impact of the proposed development upon the setting and character of the listed building 
(policy CS03 of the Core Strategy) 

• The quality of residential environment created (policies CS15 and CS34 of the Core Strategy) 

• The impact upon the amenities of nearby residential property (policies CS01, CS15 and CS34 
of the Core Strategy) 

• The adequacy of proposed access and parking arrangements (Policy CS28 and CS34 of the 
Core Strategy) 

• Public Access to the waterfront (MS07 of  the Millbay and Stonehouse AAP and policies CS28 
and CS32 of the Core Strategy) 

• Sustainable Resource Use (policy CS20 of the Core Strategy) 

• Affordable Housing (Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy) 

 

 Each of these planning considerations are discussed below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2. The principle of a residential development of this site and housing supply 

 
The Principle 

  

Page 29



 

 

2.1.1 The site has been allocated for residential development in the Core Strategy and Millbay 
and Stonehouse Area Action Plan. Specifically, proposal MS07 of the Millbay and 
Stonehouse area action plan 2006-2021 sets out the latest policy objectives:  

 

 The currently vacant land at Millbay Marina will be developed for in the region of 94 residential units. 
The development will add to the activity and attractiveness of Millbay and encourage public access to this 
part of the Millbay waterfront. 

 

 Any development should provide the following:- 

 

• High quality architecture and design, reflecting the site’s prominent position on the waterside, its 
seaward entrance to Millbay and its relationship to West Hoe. 

• Public access to the northern side of the pier linked to the wider public realm in Millbay. 

• A high quality public realm to encourage public use of this part of Millbay.  

• An appropriate contribution to affordable housing within the Millbay and west hoe area.  

• A design solution that mitigates the flood risk that currently exists and is likely to become worse in 
future years. In particular this should be addressed by avoiding any residential development at ground 
floor level. 

  
2.1.2 The site benefits from two extant planning consents (i.e. planning permissions that are still 

valid and therefore could be implemented). Most recently, the development of planning 
permission: 07/00009/FUL commenced for 94 residential apartments in three blocks and 
the applicant has submitted evidence in the form of the following: 

  
(i) Letters from the developers’ solicitors in 2010 setting out what commencement 

works had been undertaken. 
(ii) Photos which appear to indicate that works did commence. They appear to show the 

start of the foundations with piling and ground beam being laid.  
(iii) A letter from the Planning Case Officer confirming that, although the works were 

limited, there had been a start on site. 

 
2.1.3 The submitted evidence has been considered by the Council’s Legal team and accepted. 

This extant permission, alongside the adopted planning policy, establishes the principle of 
residential development on the site, including the principle of development on the pier. 

  
2.1.4 The extant consent represents the applicant’s ‘fall back’ position and, as such, must be 

considered as a significant material consideration in any assessment of an alternative 
development proposal. However, your Officers consider that this 2007 planning approval 
is of limited architectural merit and therefore welcome this application which takes a new 
and contemporary design approach for this prominent waterfront site.  

 

 

 
Five year housing supply  

 
2.1.1 When determining applications for residential development it is important to give 

consideration to housing supply.  
  

Page 30



 

 

2.1.2 Paragraph 47 of the NPPF stipulates that “to boost significantly the supply of housing, 
local planning authorities should…identify and update annually a supply of specific 
deliverable sites sufficient to provide five years worth of housing against their housing 
requirements with an additional buffer of 5% (moved forward from later in the plan 
period) to ensure choice and competition in the market for land. Where there has been a 
record of persistent under delivery of housing, local planning authorities should increase 
the buffer to 20% (moved from later in the plan period) to provide a realistic prospect of 
achieving the planned supply and to ensure choice and competition in the market for 
land”  

  
2.1.3 Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that “housing applications should be considered in the 

context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Relevant policies for 
the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority 
cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites.” 

  
2.1.4 For the reasons set out in the Authority’s Annual Monitoring Report (December 

2013)Plymouth cannot demonstrate at present a deliverable 5 year land supply for the 
period 2014-19 against the housing requirement set out in the Core Strategy which was 
set prior to the economic downturn. Plymouth can however identify a net supply of some 
5,536 dwellings which equates to a supply of 3.16 years when set against the housing 
requirement as determined by the requirements of the NPPF or 2.64 years supply when a 
20% buffer is also applied. 

  
2.1.5 The NPPF (footnote 11) also specifies that to be considered deliverable, a site must be:  

 

• Available to develop now  

• Suitable for residential development in terms of its location and sustainability; and  

• Achievable, with a reasonable prospect that homes will be delivered on the site within 
five years and in particular that the development of the site is viable.  

 
2.1.6 Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states “At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework 

is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden 
thread running through both plan-making and decision taking…  

 
2.1.7 For decision-taking this means:  

• approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without 
delay; and  

• where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of date, 
granting permission unless:  

 a. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this framework taken as a 
whole; or  

 b. specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be 
restricted”  

 
2.1.8 As Plymouth cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply when set against the housing 

requirement as determined by the requirements of the NPPF, the city’s housing supply 
policy should not be considered up-to-date. Paragraph 14 of the NPPF is therefore 
engaged and substantial weight must be accorded to the need for housing in the planning 
balance when determining housing applications. 

Page 31



 

 

 
3 Flood Risk  

 
3.1 Since planning permission was first granted for residential development on this site, in the late 

1980s, concern about flood risk, overtopping and sea level changes has increased and 
protection standards have become more rigorous. Further, in the wake of the storms of 
February 2014, we are all acutely aware of the damage that a storm event can cause here. 

  
3.2 The Environment Agency (EA) has acknowledged that the site benefits from extant planning 

permissions for residential development and has confirmed therefore that they have no 
objection in principle. However, the current proposal must (in line with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and accompanying Planning Practice Guidance) be safe for occupants and 
users over its lifetime. At the time of writing this report, it is considered that the proposal 
does not achieve this and therefore the EA has issued a holding objection. 
 

3.3 The EA has raised concerns with regard to proposed Block A and Block B and the related 
access/egress and parking.  Block A is located on a breakwater, which is designed as a 
structure to reduce the impact of wave energy to the Millbay docks. It reduces wave energy 
by forcing waves to break against the structure and then flow over it. Block B is located very 
close to the foreshore and at a low level. During coastal storm events there is a great deal of 
energy in the waves that hit the shoreline in both of these locations. This wave action can 
flood the site resulting in hazardous conditions from the speed of the water, the quantity of 
water and the debris contained in the water. Pictures submitted by local residents in respect 
of this application support this. 
 

3.4 Throughout the course of this application, the applicant has worked very positively with the 
Environment Agency and your Officers. However, unfortunately, at the time of writing this 
report, it is considered that the application does not achieve a proposed development which 
incorporates robust measures to mitigate and manage risks with regard to potential damage 
to the building, residents’ car parking and pedestrian access and egress. Therefore the 
Environment Agency maintain their objection. 
 

3.5 It is hoped that these issues can be addressed before the Planning Committee meeting and it 
is intended that the Committee will be updated by addendum report in this regard.    

 
4 Ecology 

 
Impact on Marine Environment including Habitats Regulations Assessment and 
Coastal Concordat 
  

4.1.1 Due to this development requiring both marine and terrestrial consents, the development 
was deemed to come under the Coastal Concordat whereby the applicant was advised at 
an early stage of all the consents which would be required and the evidence which each 
would need. 
  

4.1.2 As part of this, it was agreed that the Marine Management Organisation (MMO) would 
take the lead in consenting the marine works and in the assessment of impacts on the 
marine environment, including impacts on the Plymouth Sound and Tamar Estuaries 
European Marine Site with regards to:  

 

Page 32



 

 

o Marine Conservation Zone (MCZ) assessment 
o Impacts on marine species 
o Impacts on marine sediments 
o Noise (affecting the marine environment) 
o Impacts on coastal processes 
o Impacts on navigation 

 
4.1.3 Under guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Regulation 65(3) of the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulation 201 (Habitats Regulations), one 
competent authority can adopt the assessment, reasoning and conclusions of another 
competent authority through the Coastal Concordat (para 5-7 of the Coastal 
Concordat). Through this, Plymouth City Council as the Local Planning Authority (LPA), 
has adopted the findings of the MMO with regards to the impact on the marine 
environment (as described in their consultation response dated 21st October 2014) with 
the exception of navigation.  The assessment is outlined below: 

 
4.1.4 MCZ Assessment: The MMO assessed the likely impact on the Witsand and Looe Bay 

Conservation Zone as required under Section 126 of the Marine and Coastal Access Act 
2009. The MMO concluded that due to the location and size and nature of the proposed 
works, no pathway was identified for them to impact on the MCZ. 

 
4.1.5 The MMO did not consider the Tamar Estuaries MCZ as part of their assessment. 

However, having reviewed the evidence relating to the site, the LPA is satisfied that the 
proposed operations will not pose a significant risk of hindering the achievement of the 
conservation objectives stated for the Tamar Estuary MCZ and in particular the 
designated feature of smelt (Osmerus eperlanus). Natural England has advised that the 
distance between the proposed works and the area of the estuary primarily used by this 
species (approximately 8km further upstream is great enough for construction noise not 
to impact the species. 

  
4.1.6 Impacts on Marine Species: The MMO identified that the proposed works are within 

the Plymouth Sound and Tamar Estuaries European Marine Site comprising of the 
Plymouth Sound and Estuaries Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and the Tamar 
Estuaries Special Protection Area (SPA). 

  
4.1.7 The MMO assessed the likely impact of the development on the designated species of the 

European Marine Site and other species protected under the Habitats Directive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.1.8 The report of Likely Significant Effect (LSE) produced by the MMO on 6th October 2014, 
found that noise disturbance from the proposed works could cause a barrier to migration 
for designated migratory fish species, including Allis Shad and Atlantic Salmon. The MMO 
went on to identify that the distance between the proposed works and the area of the 
estuary most likely to be used by these species is approximately 8km further upstream. 
Natural England advised that the distance is great enough to make it unlikely that 

Page 33



 

 

construction noise will impact on these species. The marine license issued by the MMO 
will also have licence conditions to restrict noise due to proposed piling works. 

  
4.1.9 Restrictive conditions are also recommended by your Officers to restrict piling within the 

pier and to state that no percussive piling shall take place.  
  

4.1.10 Therefore, the MMO found that there is no potential for this project to have a Likely 
Significant Effect on the marine species of the SAC or SPA due to this activity and under 
the guidance produced by the Secretary of State, the LPA adopt these findings.  

  
4.1.11 Damage to Marina Habitat: The MMO assessed the likely impact on Western King 

Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). In consultation with Natural England there is no 
identified pathway by which impacts from the development would affect the interest 
features of the site, and this project therefore does not have the potential to have Likely 
Significant Effect on this feature.  

  
4.1.12 Pollution: The MMO identified the potential for pollution from the release of fuels, oils 

and chemicals associated with plant, refuelling and construction equipment.  The MMO 
will therefore be issuing a license containing conditions requiring the license holder to: 

 

• Install bunding and storage facilities to contain any spillages; 

• Ensure that any coatings / treatments used are suitable for use in the marine environment; 

• Ensure that no waste concrete slurry or wash water from concrete works are discharged 
into the marine environment; 

• Seek guidance from the EA for pollution prevention advice. 

  
 Provided these steps are complied with, the MMO found that this project does not 
have the potential to have a Likely Significant Effect on the marine environment. 

  
4.1.13 The reduction of aquatic plant abundance and loss of marine habitat due to 

shading from the pier: The Environment Agency advised that the development on the 
pier will lead to increased shading of the seabed with a corresponding reduction in plant 
abundance and a shift to more shade-tolerant species. The MMO found that given the pier 
involved here is an existing structure already, shading already exists, and combined with 
the proposal to create a new area of inter-tidal habitat in the marina as a mitigation 
measure for this impact, this project does not have the potential to have a Likely 
Significant Effect on this feature. 

  
4.1.14 Impacts on Marine Sediment: The MMO has assessed the impact on the marine 

sediments including those that make up the Special Area of Conservation. It found that 
any impact on benthic ecology in the area is likely to be localised and of minor magnitude 
and therefore this project does not have the potential to have a Likley Significant Effect on 
this feature. 

 
 

4.1.15 Noise Impacts (on the marine environment): The MMO found that the main 
mechanism for impact on the marine environment due to noise is from piling works 
which can act as a barrier to the migration for designated fish species. This issue was dealt 
with in paras 4.1.6 – 4.1.10: Impacts on Marine Species above which found that, subject to 
conditions, there would be no potential for this project to have a Likely Significant Effect 
on the SAC due to this activity. 

  

Page 34



 

 

4.1.16 Impacts on Coastal Processes: The MMO has assessed the likely impacts given that all 
foundations of the development on the pier will be contained within the existing pier 
structure, it is unlikely that there will be a significant adverse impact on marine physical 
processes. 

  
4.1.17 Impacts on navigation: The MMO requested comments on the impacts of the 

proposed project on navigation from: 

 

• The Queen’s Harbour Master at Plymouth 

• The Maritime and Coastguard Agency 

• Trinity House 

• The Royal Yachting Association 

None of these organisations raised any issues regarding navigation and the proposed 
development with the MMO. Trinity House requested that the pier at Millbay Marina 
remain marked as it is now. Therefore the MMO concluded that there is no potential for 
this project to have a significant impact on this area. 

 
4.1.18 Adoption of the assessment, reasoning and conclusions of the MMO: PCC has 

reviewed the MMO’s conclusions for the items outlined above and is satisfied that no 
additional information has emerged, such as new environmental evidence or changes or 
developments to the plan that means the reasoning, conclusion or assessment have 
become out of date. It therefore confirmed that PCC is adopting the conclusions of the 
MMO relating to the following areas: 

  

• MCZ Assessment 

• Impacts on marine species 

• Damage to marine habitat 

• Pollution 

• The reduction of aquatic plan abundance and loss of marine habit due to shading from pier 

• Impacts on marine sediment 

• Noise impacts (on marine environment) 

• Impacts on coastal processes 

  
4.1.19 PCC will not be adopting the MMO’s conclusions relating to Impacts on Navigation as 

PCC has received additional representations from the Queens Harbour Master, Brittany 
Ferries and Associated British Ports which raise concerns about navigation. This issue is 
dealt with in further detail below. 

 

 

 

 
Terrestrial Biodiversity 

  
4.2.1 There are no outstanding issues relating to terrestrial biodiversity, provided that the 
works proceed in line with the submitted Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy 
(EMES). The submitted EMES satisfactorily sets out how the development will achieve new 
biodiversity gain in accordance with policy CS19 of the adopted Core Strategy. A restrictive 
condition is recommended accordingly.  

Page 35



 

 

 
5 Design of the proposed building and impact upon the character of the surrounding 

area   

 
5.1 The NPPF attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. LDF Core 

Strategy policy CS02 promotes well designed developments to promote the image of the city. 
It is therefore important to carefully consider the visual impact of the development, with 
specific reference to design, layout and materials, as discussed below. 
  

5.2 Given the highly visible location as the seaward gateway to the Millbay area, a deliberately 
contemporary design approach has been adopted.  The accompanying Design and Access 
Statement describes the design ethos as ‘embracing the nautical setting, whilst also paying 
particular attention to the vertical rhythm emphasised in the neighbouring residential 
terraces’. 
  

5.3 The Application has been reviewed by the Devon Design Review Panel (the Panel’s 
observations are summarised under ‘Consultation Responses’ above).  

 
Site Masterplan/Layout/Density 
  

5.4.1 The footprint of the buildings and the layout of the access arrangements are very similar 
to the approved extant consent. The constraints of the site provide very little scope for 
variation with vehicular access from Custom House Lane.  

  
5.4.2 It is considered that the three proposed blocks are appropriately sited to create a clear 

and legible structure to the area, to maximise views over the water and to provide a 
strong physical presence onto Great Western Road. 

  
5.4.3 The proposal increases density compared with the extant consent for 94 homes and the 

policy proposition of MS11 (‘in the region of 94 residential units’). This increase in density 
follows general trends towards higher densities that make best use of previously 
developed land and compares favourably with similar waterfront flat blocks that have 
been granted in recent years.  

  
5.4.4 Unfortunately the entire ground-floor of the proposal is dominated by car parking with 

minimal active use or active building frontage at ground level. During pre-application 
discussions, your Officers encouraged more active frontages and sought the introduction 
of a few commercial units within the scheme. However, it is understood that there are 
covenant restrictions on the site preventing this and therefore the proposed community 
meeting space in Block A, the gym in Block B and the four leisure/marina units in Block C 
were incorporated as a compromise. These uses are supported. Furthermore, it is 
accepted that there is a strong demand for parking on the site and that in this instance 
alternative parking arrangements, such as basement or multi-storey, would not be 
practical or viable.  

  
5.4.5 The demand for parking on the site puts considerable pressure on space available for soft 

landscaping and public realm; this was particularly noted by the Design Review Panel with 
reference to the dominance of cars in the external space outside Block C. However, 
given concerns raised by local residents and the Highways’ Authority additional parking at 
the end of the pier has also been introduced to boost visitor parking numbers; this is not 
desirable from an urban design perspective. This area is highly prominent and has the 

Page 36



 

 

potential to be of significant residential and public amenity benefit. Therefore it is 
considered that the proposed parking in this area should be designed as part of the public 
realm and used as surplus only (i.e when all other spaces are full).  

 
Building Layout, Height, Scale, Massing 

 
5.5.1 Block A – the building steps up from 3 to 11 storeys in height to create a landmark at 

this key gateway location. While the building is substantial in height and scale, the 
stepping in height from east to west helps to reduce the overall bulk and mass and 
minimise the impact of shading on existing residential blocks. 
  

5.5.2 The impact upon strategic, or public views, is a matter of legitimate planning concern and 
objections have been raised that the site is not within the “Zone of Opportunity for Tall 
Buildings” as identified in the adopted Design Supplementary Planning Document (2009).  
However, the scheme is not considered significantly tall within its context – the existing 
adjacent building, known as ‘The Bridge’ in Millbay Marina Village, is eight storeys high and 
much of the proposed development in Millbay is six storeys high with seven to nine 
storeys currently proposed at the end of Clyde Quay, as outlined in application 
14/01448/OUT, which is currently being considered by the LPA.  As previously noted, 
Block A gradually ‘steps up’ in height, thus not appearing excessively bulky. This design 
approach is considered an appropriate response at this key arrival point to the City and 
was very much encouraged by your Officers during pre-application discussions.  The 
intensity of development proposed is also considered appropriate given the need to 
maximise the redevelopment of this brownfield site and deliver much needed housing. 

  
5.5.3 Block B – the building presents 6 storeys to the waterside edge and 5 storeys to the 

street edge. English Heritage raised concern about the relationship of Block B with Grand 
Parade; specifically noting that the height of Block B will rise slightly higher than that of 
Grand Parade, thereby diminishing its visual primacy to the detriment of the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area.  In response to this, the proposals for the 
streetside (east) elevation of Block B have been amended to enhance the external 
appearance and ensure a suitable relationship to adjacent heritage assets. The penthouse 
apartments have been recessed significantly from the main block to ensure that the 
perceived height is reduced from street level and glazing has been used to reduce the 
visual impact of the top storey. Your Officers consider that these design amendments 
now ensure consistency in height from the street with the Listed terrace on Grand 
Parade. The building sits back from the street edge behind the retained pumping-station 
building and as such the existing building line of Grand Parade is not maintained. 
However, the projecting box sections over the entrances do help to compensate for this 
and provide strong vertical rhythm to help break up the overall building mass. 

 
 

5.5.4 Block C - the building presents 7 storeys to the waterside edge and 6 storeys to the 
street edge with the top storey recessed. The sections show the top of the building 
below the roof height of the adjacent Bridge. This enables a gradual increase in building 
height along Great Western Road from south to north. The building sits back from the 
street edge with access to entrances by bridge links. Whilst the building would have 
benefited from additional accesses from the street (i.e. walk-up access to street level 
apartments) to enliven the street, your Officers are satisfied that the design adds interest 
to the existing streetscene and retains much of the historic wall. 

  
Building Form, Appearance, Materials 

Page 37



 

 

  
5.6.1 Block A – the building adopts a distinctive form and appearance with a semi-circular form 

at the western end wrapped in curved steel spurs. The curved spurs continue along the 
length of the building and add to the high levels of architectural detail and high quality 
materials that make up the building facades. The form and appearance of the building is 
clearly at odds with its surroundings and has undoubtedly divided public opinion. 
However, given the gateway location and landmark intent, your Officers consider this to 
be an acceptable and justified approach. The Design Review Panel’s concerns in respect 
of the robustness of materials in such an exposed site are noted and a building 
maintenance management plan is sought by restrictive condition, as recommended.  

  
5.6.2 Block B – the building presents an open fully glazed form with balconies to the waterside 

edge to appropriately take advantage of views and sunlight.  The street edge demands a 
different response in form and appearance to address the existing street scene and 
adjacent listed terrace. A more solid form is proposed to the street edge with formal 
entrances projecting out to the street. The street elevations include adequate 
proportions of glazing to bedrooms and lift cores, arranged in a formal pattern. Materials 
are generally of a high quality and appropriate to the location. 

 
 

5.6.3 Block C – as Block B, the building presents an open fully glazed form with balconies to 
the waterside edge to appropriately take advantage of views and sunlight. The waterside 
elevation has a strong horizontal emphasis. This is broken up by grey render surrounds 
and capped either end by projecting copper-clad sections. Following on from Block B, the 
street edge treatment is more formal in character with projecting bays and a strong 
vertical emphasis. Materials are generally of a high quality and deemed appropriate to the 
location. 

  
Access, Movement and Connections 

  
5.7.1 Revised drawings show a ramped pedestrian walkway west of Block B and south of Block 

A to take account of the raised sea defence wall. While the additional height of the wall is 
unfortunate from an urban design perspective (limiting views out of the site at ground-
level), the sections demonstrate that the walkway will also be raised in parts to ensure a 
max 1.2m height from walkway floor to the top of the wall. Given the exposed nature of 
the site and the need to protect the building and site from potential storm damage, your 
Officers’ consider this to be an acceptable compromise. 

 
5.7.2 To enhance legibility and pedestrian convenience, the walkway should be clearly marked 

along its length and remain adjacent to the sea defence wall. The deviation of the route in 
front of Block B seems unnecessary (Dwg No: 2142/194), creating an undesirable void 
space adjacent to the wall with no clear use and a potential maintenance issue (trapping 
litter etc). The ramped walkway should be continued alongside the sea wall and the space 
adjacent to the building used for parking. Your Officers expect these recommended 
amendments to be achieved before the Planning Committee Meeting and therefore an 
update will be provided by addendum.  

 
Public Realm, Landscaping 

 

Page 38



 

 

5.8.1 As above under access and movement, the walkway in front of Block B would benefit 
from realignment alongside the sea defence wall and parking spaces v25-v31 moved 
closer to Block B to make better use of this space and to avoid space left over. 

 
5.8.2 Proposed landscaping materials to match existing are supported by Officers. Existing 

granite sets are shown on the plan but no new granite sets have been detailed. New 
granite sets should be included and detailed on the landscape plan including potential for 
a defined space in front of the retained RNLI building. A detailed landscape plan should 
be required by way of condition and include details of trees and soft landscaping and 
lighting. 
  

5.8.3 The proposed pergola structures over parking spaces are now, in Officers’ opinion, an 
unnecessary addition that will add visual clutter and maintenance issues to the outside 
spaces and could be removed. Your Officers expect this amendment to be made before 
the Planning Committee Meeting and therefore an update will be provided by addendum. 

  
Design Conclusions 

  
5.9.1 Overall, your Officers’ support the proposed development from an urban design 

perspective. It is considered that the development accords with adopted policies CS01, 
CS02, CS32 and CS34, the Council’s adopted Design Supplementary Planning Document 
(2009), adopted Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document (2009). 

 
6 The setting/character of listed buildings 

 
6.2 The Historic Environment Assessment supplied with this application identified three 
heritage assets within the application area, as well as two Listed buildings just beyond the ‘red 
line’. These are: 

  
o Millbay Pier  
o Plymouth boundary stone  
o site of a block of warehouses  
o former dock police station and customs office Listed Grade II  
o 23-39 Grand Parade, Listed Grade II  

  

 Of these the most significant structures are the customs office and 23-39 Grand 
Parade, both listed Grade II - defined by English Heritage as 'nationally important and of 
special interest' - and Millbay Pier. 

 

 
6.3 While neither the customs office nor 23-39 Grand Parade appear to be directly 
affected by the proposed works, the setting of both will be affected. However the degree of 
separation between the eastern end of the proposed Block B and the western end of Grand 
Parade and the treatment of the east end of Block B allows the end of Grand Parade to remain 
visible from the greater part of the seaward side, and it is considered that this is adequate 
mitigation here. Further, a glazed curtain wall has replaced cladding panels on the penthouse 
level of Block B in order to address specific concerns raised by English Heritage (see above). It 

Page 39



 

 

is considered that these design revisions reduce the perceived height of Block B, thereby 
retaining the visual primacy of Grand Parade.  

  
6.4 The situation with the customs office and Block B is deemed less satisfactory by your 
Officers. As the List description and the submitted Historic Environment Assessment both 
make clear, this building was designed to have all round visibility and this will be severely 
curtailed by this proposal, with new development proposed on the north, west and south 
sides, with Block B being particularly close on the south side. Ideally Officers would like to see 
the northern end of the Block B repositioned at a similar distance from the customs office as 
the southern end of Block C. However, this is tempered by the material consideration that is 
the extant consent, where the proximity of Block B is similar to that now proposed. 
Furthermore, Officers are mindful that English Heritage raised no concerns in this regard. 
Therefore, on balance, the proposed relationship to the listed building, from all three blocks, is 
considered to be satisfactory in terms of policy CS03 (Historic Environment) of the Core 
Strategy.  

  
6.5 Millbay Pier was one of the earliest significant developments at Millbay Docks, opened 
in 1844, purpose built to berth the largest ocean-going ships then existing, and is the most 
significant undesignated heritage asset within the proposed development area. It is proposed as 
the site of Block A and will require significant structural works. On that basis it should be 
recorded ‘as is’ before any works commence. A condition is recommended accordingly.  

 
7 The quality of residential environment created 

 
7.1 The proposal is for luxury flats and duplexe units, which are generous in size and most 
significantly exceed the minimum size guidelines as set out in the Development Guidelines 
Supplementary Planning Document. Care has been taken to maximise the seaward aspects and 
ensure that future occupiers benefit from acceptable levels of amenity in accordance with the 
principles of policy CS34 and the guidance set out in the Development Guidelines SPD. 

 
7.2 Block A – pedestrian access to Block A is achieved via a single entrance lobby within 
the east elevation at the landward end of the pier or via the communal lift/stair cores which 
serve the ground-floor car park. The majority of the apartments are single aspect with 
communal corridors running through the centre of each floor. All units are spacious and well 
laid out and benefit from a private balcony. In addition, Block A includes a generous communal 
meeting room with associated facilities and communal terraces are proposed on the fourth and 
sixth floors. Direct access is also available to the proposed public open space at the end of the 
pier. The only potential weakness appears to be the relationship between the lower level duplex 
apartment windows in the south (seaward) elevation and the raised pedestrian walkway. As the 
height of the proposed wave protection wall has increased, the height of the walkway has also 
risen. However, it is considered by your Officers that, a suitable separation distance has been 
maintained here to ensure that direct sight into the lower level duplex apartments will not be 
possible and so the relationship here will not be unduly harmful. Furthermore despite the height 
of the secondary wave protection wall, the internal height of the windows will still allow 
adequate outlook.  

  
7.3 Block B – Pedestrian access to Block B is achieved via four communal stair/lift cores which 
provide level access to/from Great Western Road/Grand Parade. These entrance atriums are 
legible and obvious. Direct access can also be achieved via lift/stairs from the ground-floor car 
park. A different approach has been adopted in the internal layout of Block B; each residential 
unit is duel aspect with both seaward and street views. Given the depth of each unit the internal 

Page 40



 

 

layout has an open-plan approach to ensure that all of the internal space benefits from adequate 
levels of light; this is deemed acceptable. Each unit benefits from a seaward-facing private 
balcony. The only other communal facility within this block is a gym. Again, the relationship 
between the proposed public walkway, which links to the South West Coast Path, and the first-
floor residential windows has been assessed and is deemed acceptable given level differences 
and separation distances afforded by the secondary wave protection wall and the balconies. 
Habitable room windows will be introduced at street level fronting Great Western Road/Grand 
Parade. Whilst some overlooking by street-users will occur here, many of these windows will 
be screened by the existing boundary wall which will be retained, in part, along the street-
frontage.  

  
7.4 Block C – Pedestrian access to Block C is achieved via a single communal entrance 
which is above the pavement level of Great Western Road. A small opening is proposed in the 
existing boundary wall and a staircase will be provided. Direct (and level) access is also available 
from the ground-floor car park, which is served by four lift cores. The first floor is laid out with 
single-aspect apartments. Some of these are relatively small in footprint, although none fall short 
of the recommended minimum floorspace guidelines. The weakness however is that four of 
these first-floor flats do not benefit from any private outdoor amenity space, contrary to the 
policy guidance. However, given the quality of the public realm locally, including West Hoe Park 
which is only a short walk away, it is considered, on balance, that this should not warrant the 
refusal of the scheme and can be accepted. The upper floors are occupied by larger duel-aspect 
apartments, all with private balconies. The proposed layouts ensure that all habitable rooms 
benefit from adequate natural daylight and outlook, with only non-habitable rooms (bathrooms 
and utilities) located within the central cores of these units, as these areas are not served by 
windows. 

 
7.5 Officers consider provision of parking, cycle and refuse stores under the buildings is sensible 
and satisfactory. 

  
7.6 The Council’s Public Protection Service has carefully considered the potential noise 
disturbance for future occupiers, particularly within Block A, from surrounding noise sources 
including the port/harbour and associated passing ferries. Further information was submitted by 
the Applicants to address these concerns and, as noted in the Public Protection comments 
above, this information has reassured our Public Protection Service that the recommended 
internal levels of noise secured by condition can be achieved. 
 
7.7 Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy requires that 20% of all new dwellings shall be 
constructed to Lifetime Homes Standards. Lifetime homes allow for the ‘future proofing’ of all 
new dwellings so that they can be adapted over time to suit the needs of occupants as their 
lifestyles change due to age or other factors. In this case, the accompany Design and Access 
Statement confirms that the development will achieve at least 20% provison for Life Time 
Homes and the proposed provision should be secured by the recommended restrictive 
condition. 

 
8 The impact upon the amenities of nearby residential property 

  
8.1 The proposal impacts mainly upon three groups of residential buildings in the surrounding 
area: the existing Millbay Marina Village, Grand Parade and the residential properties fronting 
Garden Crescent to the east of the site.  

  
Impact on Millbay Marina Village  

Page 41



 

 

  
8.2.1 It is acknowledged that due to its siting, height and massing, the development will have an 

impact upon the amenity currently enjoyed by the existing properties within Millbay 
Marina Village. However, it is considered that the development has been carefully 
designed so as to minimise this impact. When compared with the previously approved 
scheme, Block A is sited 25m further away from the ‘mews’ houses within the Marina 
Village and Block C is sited approximately 10m further away from ‘The Bridge’ providing 
a gap of approximately 20m. These revisions achieve an improved relationship with 
existing residential neighbouring properties in terms of visual impact, overshadowing, 
outlook and privacy.  
  

8.2.2 Solar path studies have been conducted and submitted alongside this application to 
illustrate an accurate representation of the proposed development’s impact on 
neighbouring properties in terms of potential overshadowing. These suggest that with a 
lower solar altitude, the worst case scenario for overshadowing will occur in the winter 
months, whereby longer shadows will be cast. However, as previously noted, greater 
separation distances between exiting neighbours and Blocks A and C have been achieved 
and, despite the dramatic increase in height of Block A, the stepped form of the building 
ensures that the eastern end is in fact 1 storey lower than the extant consent. Therefore, 
whilst it is accepted that some overshadowing will inevitably occur, particularly in the 
winter months, the loss of light to neighbouring residential properties is not deemed so 
significant that it could warrant the refusal of planning consent in this case. 
  

8.2.3 It should be noted that the residents of the existing Marina Village had a reasonable 
expectation that flats would be built in close proximity to their properties when the 
remainder of the development was ‘built out’. 
  

8.2.4 The relationships between the proposed buildings and the existing Marina Village are 
considered to be satisfactory and are an improvement on the most recent extant 
scheme. 

 
Impact on Grand Parade 

 
8.3.1 Block B is likely to have the greatest impact upon 39 Grand Parade. The application site 

and this neighbouring property are separated by the Southwest Coast Path, which 
provides a buffer of approximately 4m. The proposed building does include habitable 
room windows and small balcony areas in the east elevation. These windows break up 
this elevation and enhance the natural surveillance over the coast path. Your Officers 
consider that the proposed windows themselves do not have a direct relationship with 
the neighbouring property as they are located on the splay and therefore it is considered 
that they will not result in an unreasonable loss of privacy in accordance with the 
relevant planning policy guidance. The perceived overlooking from the proposed 
balconies is likely to be more significant. And, whilst the relationship with neighbouring 
windows will still be indirect, users of the proposed balconies will more directly overlook 
the shared and private garden space at the rear of Grand Parade. It has therefore been 
recommended that these projecting balconies are replaced with Juliette balconies to 
reduce the impact here.  

  
8.3.2 Your officers are satisfied that the proposed development will not result in an 

unreasonable loss of outlook from the windows in the rear elevation of no.39 Grand 
Parade. Given the separation distance and the indirect angle of Block B, the guidance of 

Page 42



 

 

the 45 degree rule is not compromised. Furthermore, gardens at the rear of the Grand 
Parade terrace will retain sufficient outlook and the proposed development will not 
appear unduly dominant when viewed from these garden spaces.  
 

8.3.3 The proposed development is sited west of 39 Grand Parade and therefore will cast 
some shadows later in the day as the sun sets to the west. However, as this will be 
limited to only a small proportion of the day, your Officers are satisfied that these direct 
neighbours will retain a reasonable level of natural sunlight/daylight.  

 
Impact on Garden Crescent 

  
8.4.1 Many of the properties in Garden Crescent have, since the demolition of the warehouses 

that previously occupied the site, become accustomed to unimpeded views south and 
south west towards the Sound. This proposal would severely interrupt, and in many 
cases sever completely, those views. The Courts have long held that local Planning 
Authorities cannot protect individual private views and that the impact upon existing 
private views from a development proposal is not a legitimate matter of planning 
concern.  Similar rulings have been made in respect of the impact upon property values 
from development proposals. 
  

8.4.2 The minimum separation distance between the rear of the existing properties on Garden 
Crescent and Block C will be approximately 14 metres. However, this is typical of the 
existing separation distances between properties on either side of a road in the locality 
and is deemed acceptable. 
  

8.4.3 On this basis, the proposed residential accommodation is not considered to have a 
significant adverse impact upon the residential amenity of the properties on Garden 
Crescent. The development is therefore acceptable and accords with adopted Core 
Strategy policies CS02 and CS34, the Development Guidelines SPD and Government 
guidance contained in the NPPF. 

 
9 Access and parking arrangements 

 
Trip Generation  

  
9.1.1 Whilst this application is for the creation of 142 residential units it is noted that planning 

permission already exists for 94 units (app no 07/00009/FUL) and therefore the net 
impact in trips would be those associated with an additional 48 units.  

  
9.1.2 Based upon the agreed trip rates for the Millbay Regeneration Area, the extra 48 units 

would generate a total of 15 2-way trips during the am peak hour and 11 in the pm. In 
respect of the entire development (142 units), the impacts are 45 extra trips in the am 
and 33 in the pm.  

 
9.1.3 The applicant’s traffic consultant has applied these additional trips and determined the 

associated percentage impacts at the following junctions:-  

 

• West Hoe Road/Millbay Road  

• Millbay Road/The Crescent  

Page 43



 

 

• Union Street/Western Approach  

  
9.1.4 The percentage impacts at the Millbay Road/The Crescent and Union Street/Western 

Approach vary from 0.8 to a maximum of 2.1 at Millbay Road/The Crescent. Such 
impacts would not impact upon the operation of these junctions taking into account 
future planned growth within the area.  

  
9.1.5 Although the impacts at the junction of West Hoe Road/Millbay Road were greater 

(maximum of 3.9% in the am and 2.6% in the pm), it is the view of the Highway Authority 
that such increases would not lead to any capacity issues at this junction. Furthermore it 
is noted that permission already exists for 94 units and therefore the percentage impacts 
of the 48 units would be considerably lower (1.3% in the am and 0.9% in the pm). None 
of the impacts stated above could be considered as being ‘severe’ and consequently 
would warrant a Highway recommendation of refusal on this basis.  

  
Car Parking  

  
9.2.1 Being able to agree a suitable quantity of off-street car parking provision to serve this 

development has been a major area of concern for the Highway Authority in the 
determination of this application. Following post application submission discussions, the 
total number of car parking spaces has been increased from 173 to 194.  

  
9.2.2 In respect of the residential units a total of 145 allocated spaces are provided which 

equates to a parking standard of just over 1 space per unit. Such a level of car parking is 
in accordance with the current maximum standards (which recommends maximum 
provision of 1 space per 1 bed unit and maximum of 2 spaces per 2 bed unit). The level 
of parking proposed reflects the accessibility of the location, its proximity to the City 
Centre and is consistent with the level of car parking provided to serve the residential 
units within the adjoining Millbay Regeneration Area.  
 

9.2.3 In addition to the above, a further 41 visitor spaces are proposed which when considered 
with the allocated residential parking equates to a car parking standard of 1.31 spaces per 
unit. However it has since become apparent that a significant proportion of the berths 
within the existing marina are sub-let to non-residents of the Marina Village and 
consequently the marina use generates its’ own demand for car parking (currently taking 
place across the development site). Therefore the visitor spaces need to not only serve 
the residential but the marina use as well.  
 

9.2.4 A total of 10 car parking spaces are proposed on the end of the pier which are accessed 
via a roller shutter door. In view of the nature of the restricted access to these spaces 
and the concerns of your Officers regarding the potential impacts of any longer-term 
parking taking place on the end of the pier, it is recommended that the use of these 
spaces be restricted to berth holders only. As the use of the marina is very much 
seasonal such an approach would reduce the likelihood of these spaces being used during 
the winter months (when weather conditions would be more inclement).  
 

9.2.5 It is recommended that the remaining visitor spaces be available to serve both the marina 
and the residential units and that a car parking management regime be implemented in 
order to control/manage the use of the parking areas taking into account the competing 
uses across the site. Consideration should be given to the use of permit type system for 

Page 44



 

 

controlling the use of the spaces (both visitor and allocated). It is suggested that the need 
for such be made subject to a suitably worded condition.  
 

9.2.6 Whilst the Highway Authority would have preferred to have seen more visitor spaces 
provided to serve the marina, it is accepted that this is a particularly tight site in terms of 
the space available and that the applicant has provided as many spaces as physically 
possible.  
 

9.2.7 In respect of the car parking serving the RNLI, an additional 8 dedicated spaces are 
proposed along with the existing parking (5 cars) that can currently be accommodated 
around the RNLI building resulting in a total of 13 spaces. Such a level of parking is 
considered sufficient and appropriate signing and lining will need to be provided on-site 
to highlight the fact that these spaces would only be available for use by the RNLI.  
 

9.2.8 Finally the applicant’s attention will need to be drawn to the fact that the development 
will be excluded from obtaining permits for the Controlled Parking Zone that is in 
operation within the area.  

 
Cycle Parking 

 
9.3.1 In their Transport Statement (TS) the applicant has confirmed that each residential unit 

will have access to a secure and covered cycle parking space which will be located within 
the ground floor areas of each residential block. This is reflected in the submitted 
drawings.   

  
Layout  

  
9.4.1 It is noted that the layout includes a ramped link walkway to the existing South West 

Coast Path at Rusty Anchor so that a continuous pedestrian route is provided around 
the waterfront area. It is also noted that a stepped route is being provided through to 
Great Western Road from the development.  

  
9.4.2 In view of the car parking difficulties every opportunity for providing more spaces has 

been explored. Additional parking has been achieved and revised plans have been 
submitted accordingly. However, your Officers have tried to maintain a careful balance 
between parking provision and public realm space.  
 

9.4.3 Autotrack plots have been provided within the Transport Statement to demonstrate that 
a variety of different-sized HGV’s (including articulated tankers delivering fuel to the 
RNLI) would have no issues with accessing and turning around within the site. However 
securing access to the RNLI’s fuel storage facility would necessitate there being no 
vehicles parked within their dedicated car parking area along the southern flank of Block 
C. The RNLI have confirmed that they are happy with this arrangement.  

 
Travel Plan  

  
9.3.1 Whilst the applicant’s traffic consultant has stated that the traffic impacts of the 

development-related trips could be reduced further as a result of the measures/initiatives 
included within the Framework Travel Plan (para 5.22 of the TS), it is the view of the 

Page 45



 

 

Highway Authority that very little has been proposed in terms of measures that will 
actually support such a statement by delivering modal shift.  

  
9.3.2 In terms of providing a viable alternative to the use of the private car, public transport is 

likely to feature quite highly, particularly for work-related trips. It is therefore considered 
appropriate that the Travel Plan includes reference to the developer providing a free 
travel pass of 1 month duration for all residential units (the associated cost of which 
would be £8,520). Such a sum would not necessarily have to be secured through the 
S.106 Agreement subject to there being reference to it in the Travel Plan (the final details 
of which should be made subject to a condition). 

 
10 Public Access and Permeability 

 
10.1 The Council has longstanding policy objectives to secure public access to the pier and 

waterfront. This is reflected in the Area Vision 2 Millbay and Stonehouse (4) of the 
Core Strategy and Proposal MS07 ‘Millbay Marina (2)’ of the Millbay and Stonehouse 
Area Action Plan. 

  
10.2 Careful consideration has been paid to the circulation of both pedestrians and vehicles 

to the pier. Under the extant scheme, pedestrians and vehicles shared a singular access 
route along the northern end of the pier. Within the current scheme the vehicular 
access route has been internalised, ensuring the access route along the northern end of 
the pier would be for the use of pedestrians (and RNLI vehicles). The double height 
internal vehicular route ensures a more efficient car parking layout (rather than the 
double banked parking arrangement which was adopted under the previously approved 
scheme) and also allows for a mobile crane to be brought through the building.  

  
10.3 There are three proposed pedestrian access points to the Marina Village. The primary 

access point (as existing) is located towards the northern end of the site, which will 
provide a ramped access route to ensure disabled persons can access the Marina. A 
new access point is proposed towards the southern end of the site adjacent to the 
RNLI building. This walkway will be taken from Great Western Road down a new flight 
of steps. In addition, detailed pre-application negotiations have taken place to secure a 
link from the existing South West Coast Path, at the point known as the Rusty Anchor 
to the south of the application site. A new opening is proposed to the existing stone 
boundary wall. A raised walkway is proposed, adjoining the front elevation of Block B, 
bringing pedestrians and cyclists into the site, approximately 2m below the level of the 
South West Coast Path. Access to the pier is also proposed via a decked route to the 
northern side of Block A with views of the marina or via the raised walkway to the 
south of Block A and a public open space is proposed at the end of the pier which 
offers panoramic views across Plymouth Sound, Mount Edgecombe and Drakes Island. 
The proposals are supported by your Officers. 

 
 

10.3 The submitted proposals have been amended during the course of this application to 
widen the pedestrian link adjacent to Block B and the bottom of the pedestrian ramp 
has been revised to direct pedestrians towards the pier, avoiding any potential conflict 
with traffic movements to/from the undercroft parking area serving Block B. As 
previously noted, it would have been preferable to also widen the access/egress point 
to the Rusty Anchor and avoid a right angle end point and it is hoped that these 
revisions will be presented before the Planning Committee Meeting.  

Page 46



 

 

  
10.4 A clause has been drafted into the Section 106 legal agreement to secure public access 

to the pier in the form of a ‘permissive access’. This would allow public access for most 
days of the year but includes gates that would be closed on at least one day of the year, 
preventing the creation of a ‘public right of way’; these gates could also be closed during 
storm conditions in the interest of public safety.  

  
10.5 Local opposition to allowing public access to the pier and through the estate (linking 

with the proposed development to the north) on the grounds of maintenance costs are 
noted however, the Transport Statement which accompanies the application confirms 
that “It is proposed that the streetscape within the development remains privately owned with 
on-going maintenance responsibilities resting with the development management company 
already established for the existing development. It is not proposed that the site access road is 
offered for adoption as public highway.” Given that the developer does not promote 
estate adoption by the Highway Authority, the maintenance of the road/paths etc are 
the responsibility of the landowner and may therefore be delegated to any management 
company. 

 
10.6 Furthermore, any concerns about security are not been supported by the Police 

Architectural Liaison Officer. The wider public interest of promoting inclusion and 
sustainable communities is considered to outweigh any local difficulties arising from 
allowing public access; and the creation of a gated community as requested in some 
submitted letters of representation, which would be a consequence of excluding the 
public, is contrary to policy CS32 (Designing Out Crime) of the Core Strategy.  

 
Navigational Safety 

 
10.7 As previously noted, the applicant has provided additional information which includes 

details of a CCTV system which has satisfied the QHM’s requirements. Full details, 
specifications and siting of the CCTV will be secured by restrictive condition, as 
recommended.  

  
10.8 Consideration has been given to the QHM’s request for a condition to regulate internal 

lighting on seaward facing elevations. Whilst it is, self evidently, in the interests of future 
householders that they do not display internal lighting that interferes with marine 
navigation, and the management company may want to append clauses to the tenancy 
agreements, it is not possible to use planning considtion to control house holders 
lighting arrangements. It would not satisfy the Circular 11/95 (use of condition in 
planning permissions) test in respect to the ‘ability to enforce’ and possibly 
reasonableness. However, it is noted that the S106 associated with the extant planning 
consent included a clause to secure this. In the interest of consistency, this clause has 
been drawn into the current S106. 

  
10.9 Initial concerns raised by Associated British Ports regarding the risk of vessels striking 

the proposed development have been addressed in the updated Spencer Report which 
was submitted in October 2014. ABP have now confirmed that they wish to raise no 
objections.  Their concerns about navigational safety can be addressed by the proposed 
CCTV system which is secured by condition. The applicant has also confirmed that the 
proposals have been designed to allow safe access for a maintenance crane and for 
maintenance of the navigation lights. 

  

Page 47



 

 

10.10 No further objections regarding navigational safety have been raised by Brittany Ferries, 
the Cattedown Harbour Master or Associated British Ports. 

  
11 Sustainable Resource Use  

 
11.3 In line with the adopted Core Strategy policy CS20, the applicants have evaluated the 

renewable energy options on the development and cannot deliver the policy position of 
15% carbon emissions on site. In such cases where the on-site renewable energy 
objective is found to be undeliverable, the Affordable Housing and Planning Obligations 
SPD allows for a contribution to made towards the delivery of off-site CO² reduction 
measures. The level of contribution is based on the estimated capital cost of the 
renewable energy equipment needed to meet the 15% reduction in total predicted 
carbon emissions for the planned development. Therefore, in this case, the applicants 
are proposing to allow for connection to a future district energy scheme in line with 
the technical standards and are making an offsite S106 contribution of £125,000 
towards delivery of the wider network in line with the policy requirements. 

 
12 Affordable Housing 

  
12.1 Paragraph 3.19 of the Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD (2nd review) 

states that, subject to viability and associated negotiations, 30% of all housing units 
should be delivered in a form of tenure which meets NPPF affordability definitions. In 
this case, this equals a total of 43 units.  

  
12.2  In certain situations however, paragraph 3.40 of the SPD allows for the provision of a 

commuted sum by the developer in lieu of provision of affordable housing on site. In 
this case, Officers accept that there is a good case to support such an offer. The main 
reasons why this is considered to be acceptable are as follows: 

 

• Average values of the apartments are much too high for any on-site affordable housing 
product to be genuinely affordable for those living on lower quartile earnings. This 
applies to both shared ownership and rental units. 

• Service charges are very likely to be much higher than the Council’s recommended 
cost cap, and when added to a rental or mortgage payment mean that total housing 
costs would be excessively high for households who are eligible for affordable housing. 

• As a result of the above points it is considered unlikely that any Registered Provider 
would be willing or able to achieve an acceptable offer for the affordable units that 
would meet their own internal cost criteria.  

• The design of the apartment blocks doesn’t allow separate accesses to blocks of a 
single tenure type. This would create management challenges that a Registered 
Provider is unlikely to want to take on.  

• Consultation with ward members has confirmed that in principle the offer of an off-
site commuted sum is acceptable for this development, if certain conditions are met. 

 
12.3 Following negotiations with the developer have concluded that a total sum of 

£1,109,134 for Affordable Housing would be achievable. This offer has now been 
formalised by the developer and is the figure that is being considered as part of this 
process. 

  

Page 48



 

 

12.4 Given that the approx. £1.1m offer makes up the larger part of the full planning 
obligations package of £1.5m, Officers consider the offer to be acceptable in the 
circumstances. It also exceeds the previous offer achieved under the extant 
permission of £487k and although the scheme is larger in terms of numbers of units, 
the offer is considered to be a better outcome than that previously achieved. 

  
12.5 The ‘claw back’ clause which is currently being negotiated with the developer is also 

welcomed (the claw back, or overage, is the sum of money in addition to the original 
S106 contribution price which PCC will be entitled to receive following completion of 
the development, if the sale prices of the resulting units exceed the pre-agreed 
figures), and provides reassurance that an improved outcome can be achieved in the 
event that sales values are shown to have been undervalued, or build costs over 
estimated. 

  
13 Comments on Third Party representations not previously covered within the 

report 

 
13.1 Disturbance - Concerns regarding the potential for the construction phase of the 

development to cause disruption to existing residential uses are noted. It is 
considered to be appropriate to impose restrictions through planning conditions on 
the developer’s construction practice, including restricting hours of construction 
deliveries, construction vehicle routes and requiring appropriate mitigating measures 
for noise, vibration, dust and smell nuisance. A condition to address this matter is 
recommended accordingly.  

 
13.2 Drainage – South West Water (SWW) has confirmed that the foul drainage strategy 

involves the connection of foul flows to a private sewage pumping station over which 
SWW has no control over. Numerous local residents have raised concern about 
connecting to this existing drainage system as they don’t believe that it is suitable or 
has the capacity to deal with any additional foul drainage. Local residents have 
reported that this existing sewer regularly fails, causing spillages. 

 
13.3 In light of the concerns outlined above, the applicant has confirmed that the private 

pump, which will transfer to SWW in October 2016, is a dual pump system (one used 
as a backup to the primary pump if failure occurs) and is currently maintained by the 
management company. It is serviced regularly in accordance with good practice and is 
fit for purpose. Within the drainage scheme reference is made to its assessment for 
the new scheme and this will be undertaken as a requirement of Building Regulations. 
Notwithstanding reports from local residents, there has been only one known incident 
where there was a problem and that was last February 2014 when both the pumps 
were switched off by Western Power Distributions by mistake following the storm 
incident (human error). This did lead to a temporary problem which was resolved. 
Therefor there is no current problem nor will there be when the development is 
undertaken.  

 
13.4 Full details of foul water drainage and disposal of sewage should be sought by 

restrictive condition, as recommended.  
  
13.5 Cruise Liner Terminal – within the Millbay and Stonehouse AAP, Site Policy allocation 

MS05 Trinity Pier allocates land for marine related employment uses, including a 
cruise liner terminal and associated facilities. This has been raised in third party 

Page 49



 

 

representations and the Council’s Public Protection Service have informally expressed 
concerns about potential noise disturbance to future occupiers of the proposed 
development. However as there is no current (or approved) planning application for 
the cruise liner terminal, this consideration cannot be given significant weight. As it 
currently stands, conditions are recommended requiring Good Room Criteria on all 
new units which will help to mitigate against noise impacts. On this basis, it is not 
considered that this proposal, which is in accordance with site allocation MS07, would 
prejudice the development of the adjacent cruise liner site allocation. 

  
13.6 Delivery of Block A – concerns have been raised in third party representations about 

the potential failure to deliver Block A, resulting in Millbay Pier being left derelict. This 
concern is shared by your Officers and has been discussed with the applicant. The 
applicant has explained that it is in their interest to deliver the prestigious landmark 
block A and verbal assurances have been provided. However it accepted that the 
Blocks B and C will be delivered first due to the construction costs associated with 
Block A (this has been evidenced in submitted viability assessments). Notwithstanding 
this, your officers have considered whether it would be appropriate to secure the 
completion of the development by condition. However, Circular 11/95 para. 61 states 
that ‘a condition requiring the whole of a development be completed is likely to be difficult to 
enforce...conditions requiring the completion of the whole of a development should therefore 
not normally be imposed’. It explains:  ‘if the reason for failure to complete, is financial 
difficulties experienced by the developer, neither a completion notice nor the enforcement of 
conditions would be likely to succeed; in such circumstances it may be that the only practical 
step open to the local planning authority, if they wish to secure the completion of the 
development, is the acquisition of the land. If a large development such as an estate of 
houses is left half-complete, this may well be because of market changes (for example, a shift 
of demand from four-bedroom to two-bedroom houses), and it would clearly not be desirable 
to compel the erection of houses of a type for which there was no demand or need’. Given 
this, a completion condition is not deemed worthwhile or appropriate in this case.  

 

 9.   Human Rights 

 

Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant’s reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

 

 10.  Local Finance Considerations 

The site is within a zone designated for £0 sq m Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charge. As 
such the CIL obligation for this scheme will be £0.  

 

 11.  Planning Obligations 

 

Page 50



 

 

The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met. 

 

Planning obligations have been sought in respect of the following matters: 

  

• Affordable Housing: £1,109,134 towards the provision of affordable housing within the 
boundaries of Plymouth City Council on commencement of development. 

  

• Education: £90,142 towards the expansion of St Peters Primary School or the development of 
Holy Cross Catholic Primary School. 
  

  

• Health: £52,067 to develop a new surgery on the Pier Street Car Park site. 

  

• Playing Pitches: £118,657 towards the provision and maintenance of playing pitches at the 
Stonehouse Creek hub site. 
  

• Sustainable Resources: £125,000 towards the delivery of District Energy Infrastructure within 
400 metres of the boundary of the site.  

 

The agreed infrastructure contributions total £1,450,000. In addition, there is a management fee of 
£5,000.  

 

It is considered that the financial contributions negotiated and listed above comply with the 
requirements of Policy CS33 (Community Benefits/Planning Obligations) of the Core Strategy. 

 

 12.  Equalities and Diversities 

This application proposes 142 new residential units which will be offered for sale on the open 
market and therefore will be available to people from all backgrounds to purchase. No negative 
impact to any equality group is anticipated. A condition is attached to ensure that 20% of the 
development will be made available as Lifetime Homes. The application also provides public access to 
the site for all.  

 

 13.  Conclusions 

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance and specifically; the 
Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2007, the Planning Obligations and Affordable 
Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SDP) Second Review 2012; Development Guidelines 
SDP First Review 2013; the Sustainable Design SPD 2009; and the Millbay And Stonehouse Area 
Action Plan 2007. 

 

Page 51



 

 

Overall the proposal is considered to be of a high quality design that will transform a prominent 
undeveloped site at the gateway to Millbay and enhance the built frontage to Great Western Road. 
The proposed coastal walkway through the site and new public open space at the end of the pier will 
be of significant benefit to the public. Further, it is considered that the proposed development would 
not have a significant adverse impact upon neighbouring properties and will contribute to the 
regeneration of the area as a whole. It is therefore recommended that the development be 
conditionally approved delegated to Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure to 
refuse if not signed by target date or otherwise agreed through an extension of time. 

 

13.  Recommendation 

 

In respect of the application dated 24/06/2014 and the submitted drawings Site Location Plan 
2142/100 Rev.A 

Proposed Site Plan 2142/101 Rev.G 

Proposed Landscaping Plan 2142/102 Rev.A 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 1 2142A/110 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 2 2142A/111 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 3 2142A/112 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 4 2142A/113 

Block A Elevations Sheet 1 2142A/120 Rev.C 

Block A Elevations Sheet 2 2142A/121 Rev. B 

Block A Elevations Sheet 3 2142A/122 Rev.C 

Block A Section 2142A/150 

Block A Walkway Link 2142A/160 

Block B Floor Plans 2142B/110 

Block B Elevations Sheet 1 2142B/120 Rev.C 

Block B Elevations Sheet 1 2142B/121 Rev.A 

Block B Elevations Sheet 1 2142B/122 Rev.B 

Block B Walkway Link 2142B/160 

Block C Floor Plans 2142C/110 

Block C Elevations Sheet 1 2142C/120 Rev.B 

Block C Elevations Sheet 1 2142C/121 Rev.A 

Block C Elevations Sheet 1 2142C/122 Rev.C 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.1 2142/130 Rev.B 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.2 2142/131 Rev.B 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.3 2142/132 Rev.B 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.4 2142/133 Rev.A 

Relationship of Block B to G.Parade 2142/170 

Images Sheet 1 2142/180 

Page 52



 

 

Images Sheet 2 2142/181 

Images Sheet 3 2142/182 

Images Sheet 4 2142/183 

Images Sheet 5 2142/184 

Images Sheet 6 2142/185 

Images Sheet 7 2142/186 

Images Sheet 8 2142/187 

Images Sheet 9 2142/188 

Images Sheet 10 2142/189 

Images Sheet 11 2142/190 

Images Sheet 12 2142/191 

Images Sheet 13 2142/192 

Images Sheet 14 2142/193 

Images Sheet - Walkway Link 2142/194 

Images Sheet - Pergola proposal sh1 2142/195 

Images Sheet - Pergola proposal sh2 2142/196 

Wave Deflector 2142/SK001 

Design and Access Statement 2142/150 

Tall Buildings Statement 2142/151 

Affordable Housing Statement 

Energy Statement 

Environmental Statement 

Environmental Statement Addendum, October 2014 

Captain Spencer Report 

Updated Captain Spencer Report 

Historic Environment Statement 

SWMP 

Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy 

Statement of Community Involvement 

Transport Statement 

Millbay Environmental Noise Impact, dated 1st September 2014 

Parking Provision Technical Note Rev.B 

Flood Risk Assessment Addendum, dated 11/2/15,it is recommended to:  Grant conditionally 
subject to S106 agreement delegated to Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and 
Infrastructure to refuse if not signed by target date or other date agreed through an 
extension of time 

 

14.  Conditions 

Page 53



 

 

 

CONDITION: DEVELOPMENT TO COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 

CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:  

 

Site Location Plan 2142/100 Rev.A 

Proposed Site Plan 2142/101 Rev.G 

Proposed Landscaping Plan 2142/102 Rev.A 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 1 2142A/110 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 2 2142A/111 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 3 2142A/112 

Block A Floor Plans Sheet 4 2142A/113 

Block A Elevations Sheet 1 2142A/120 Rev.C 

Block A Elevations Sheet 2 2142A/121 Rev. B 

Block A Elevations Sheet 3 2142A/122 Rev.C 

Block A Section 2142A/150 

Block A Walkway Link 2142A/160 

Block B Floor Plans 2142B/110 

Block B Elevations Sheet 1 2142B/120 Rev.C 

Block B Elevations Sheet 1 2142B/121 Rev.A 

Block B Elevations Sheet 1 2142B/122 Rev.B 

Block B Walkway Link 2142B/160 

Block C Floor Plans 2142C/110 

Block C Elevations Sheet 1 2142C/120 Rev.B 

Block C Elevations Sheet 1 2142C/121 Rev.A 

Block C Elevations Sheet 1 2142C/122 Rev.C 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.1 2142/130 Rev.B 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.2 2142/131 Rev.B 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.3 2142/132 Rev.B 

Sea Defence Wall proposal Sh.4 2142/133 Rev.A 

Relationship of Block B to G.Parade 2142/170 

Page 54



 

 

Images Sheet 1 2142/180 

Images Sheet 2 2142/181 

Images Sheet 3 2142/182 

Images Sheet 4 2142/183 

Images Sheet 5 2142/184 

Images Sheet 6 2142/185 

Images Sheet 7 2142/186 

Images Sheet 8 2142/187 

Images Sheet 9 2142/188 

Images Sheet 10 2142/189 

Images Sheet 11 2142/190 

Images Sheet 12 2142/191 

Images Sheet 13 2142/192 

Images Sheet 14 2142/193 

Images Sheet - Walkway Link 2142/194 

Images Sheet - Pergola proposal sh1 2142/195 

Images Sheet - Pergola proposal sh2 2142/196 

Wave Deflector 2142/SK001 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 
the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-
66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre-commencement Conditions 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: CODE OF PRACTICE DURING CONSTRUCTION 

(3) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed management plan 
for the construction phase of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The Code of Practice shall indicate: - 

a. the proposed hours of operation of construction activities; 

Page 55



 

 

b. the frequency, duration and means of operation involving demolitions, excavations, drilling, piling, 
concrete production and dredging operations; 

c. sound attenuation measures to be incorporated to reduce noise at source; 

d. details of measures to be taken to reduce the generation of dust; 

e. the routes of construction traffic to and from the site including any off site routes for the disposal 
of excavated material. 

The development shall be constructed in accordance with the management plan.  

 

Reason: 

To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects during 
construction works and avoid conflict with Policy CS22  of the Plymouth Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 -123 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012 . 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT BLOCK A: CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION 

(4) No development shall take place on Block A until full details of a CCTV system, including the 
detailed sighting of the equipment, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The CCTV system shall be fully implemented before Block A is first occupied 
and henceforth permanently maintained.  

 

Reason: 

To mitigate for the loss of direct sight of a section of the Cobbler Channel and ensure that these 
further details are acceptable to the Local Planning Authority and the Queens Harbour Master in 
accordance with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-
2021) 2007. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: PROGRAMME OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL WORK 

(5) No part of the development allowed by this permission shall be commenced until the applicant 
(or their agent or successors in title) has completed a programme of archaeological work, to include 
a recording programme for Millbay pier, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation that 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out at all times in strict accordance with the approved scheme. 

 

 

 

Reason: 

The site is considered likely to contain archaeological deposits that warrant appropriate investigation 
and/or recording in accordance with Policy CS03 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework 
Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 131, 132 and 133 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: SURFACE WATER DISPOSAL 

Page 56



 

 

(6) No development shall take place until details of the proposals for the disposal of surface water 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
details shall be implemented before the building hereby permitted is first occupied.  

 

Reason: 

To enable consideration to be given to any effects of changes in the drainage regime on landscape 
features in accordance with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 94 and 100-103 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: EXTERNAL MATERIALS 

(7) No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in the construction of 
the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance with 
Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 
paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: SURFACING MATERIALS 

(8) No development shall take place until details of all materials to be used to surface external areas 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance with 
Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 
paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

 

 

 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: LANDSCAPE DESIGN PROPOSALS 

(9) No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works and a 
programme for their implementation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved.  These details shall include 
proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle and 
pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures (e.g. 
furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting etc.); proposed and existing 
functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications cables, pipelines 

Page 57



 

 

etc., indicating lines, manholes, supports etc.); retained historic landscape features and proposals for 
restoration, where relevant; planting plans including the location of all proposed plants their species, 
numbers, densities, type (i.e bare root/container grown or root balled, girth size and height (in 
accordance with the HTA National Plant specification), planting specification including topsoil depths, 
soiling operations, cultivation, soil amelorants and all works of ground preparation, and plant 
specification including handling, planting, seeding, turfing, mulching and plant protection]. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory landscape works are carried out in accordance with Policies CS18 and 
CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and  
paragraphs 61, 109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: DETAILS OF THE LOADING PARAMETERS 

(10) No development shall take place until details of the loading parameters for the overall design of 
Blocks A and B have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
works shall conform to the approved details.  

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the development will be sufficiently robust to minimise the risk of the occupants 
sustaining critical injuries in the event of an explosive accident at the nearby mooring area and 
ensure that these further details are acceptable to the Local Planning Authority and the Ministry of 
Defence in accordance with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 . 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: GLAZING SPECIFICATION 

(11) No development shall take place until details of the glazing specifications for Blocks A and B 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall 
conform to the approved details.  

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the development will be sufficiently robust to minimise the risk of the occupants 
sustaining critical injuries in the event of an explosive accident at the nearby mooring area and 
ensure that these further details are acceptable to the Local Planning Authority and the Ministry of 
Defence in accordance with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 . 

 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: LIGHTING DETAILS 

(12) No development shall take place until details of any external lighting scheme have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The lighting scheme shall be 
fully implemented before any building is first occupied and henceforth permanently maintained for 
the occupiers of the site. 

 

Reason: 

Page 58



 

 

To ensure that adequate external lighting is provided for future occupiers of the site [and that it 
does not interfere with navigation], in accordance with policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and  paragraph 125 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: STREET DETAILS 

(13) No development shall take place until details of the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials 
and method of construction and drainage of all roads and footways forming part of the development 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No unit of 
accommodation shall be occupied until that part of the service road which provides access to it has 
been constructed in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: 

To provide a road and footpath pattern that secures a safe and convenient environment and to a 
satisfactory standard in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS STRATEGY 

(14) No development shall take place until an Employment and Skills Strategy has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Employment and Skills Strategy should 
demonstrate how local people and local businesses will benefit from the development in terms of job 
opportunities, apprenticeship placements, work experience opportunities, business supply chain 
opportunities and other employment and skills priorities. The Employment and Skills Strategy should 
cover the construction of the development. The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved Employment and Skills Strategy unless a variation to the strategy is 
agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that local people and businesses benefit from development within the City in accordance 
with the Council's growth agenda and Strategic Objective 6 and Policy CS04 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

 

 

 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: CONTAMINATED LAND 

(15) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that required 
to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall not take place until sections 1 
to 3 of this condition have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after 
development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until 
section 4 of this condition has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

Page 59



 

 

 

Section 1. Site Characterisation 

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 
application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any 
contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be 
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
The report of the findings must include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 

(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

• human health 

• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 
lines and pipes 

• adjoining land 

• groundwaters and surface waters 

• ecological systems 

• archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

 

Section 2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment shall be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 
commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two 
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 

Page 60



 

 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report (referred to in the replaced PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness 
of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 

Section 4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development 
that was not previously identified it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the 
requirements of section 1 of this condition, and where remediation is necessary a remediation 
scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of section 2, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority 
in accordance with section 3. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land 
are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 – 123 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: SUSTAINABILITY 

(16) Unless otherwise agreed previously in writing with the Local Planning Authority, prior to any 
development taking place, a report identifying how the development has been designed to be 
compatible with and allow future connection to a local district heating network in line with current 
best practice shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the in accordance with Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy and relevant Central 
Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 . 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: FOUL WATER DRAINAGE AND DISPOSAL OF SEWAGE 

(17) Prior to the commencement of development, details of the provision to be made for foul water 
drainage and the disposal of sewage from the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with 
the agreed details. 

Page 61



 

 

 

Reason:  

To ensure that satisfactory infrastructure works are provided in accordance with Policy CS34 of the 
Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: 'LIFETIME HOMES' 

(18)  A minimum of 20% Lifetime Homes shall be provided on the application site. No development 
shall take place until full details of the Lifetime Homes showing how they meet all the criteria for 
Lifetime Homes have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

Reason:  

To ensure that 20% of the dwellings on site are built to Lifetime Homes standards to comply with 
policy CS15 of the adopted City of Plymouth Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2007. 

 

Pre-occupation Conditions 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: LANDSCAPE WORKS IMPLEMENTATION 

(19) All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 
accordance with the programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory landscaping works are carried out in accordance with Policies CS18 and 
CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 
paragraphs 61, 109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: CAR PARKING PROVISION 

(20) No part of the development shall be occupied until the car parking areas shown on the 
approved plans have been drained and surfaced in accordance with details to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and those areas shall not thereafter be used for 
any purpose other than the parking of vehicles. 

 

Reason: 

To enable vehicles used by occupiers or visitors to be parked off the public highway so as to avoid 
damage to amenity and interference with the free flow of traffic on the highway in accordance with 
Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 
2007, and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: CAR PARKING PROVISION 

(21) No part of the development shall be occupied until the car parking areas shown on the 
approved plans have been drained and surfaced in accordance with details to be submitted to and 

Page 62



 

 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and those areas shall not thereafter be used for 
any purpose other than the parking of vehicles. 

 

Reason: 

To enable vehicles used by occupiers or visitors to be parked off the public highway so as to avoid 
damage to amenity and interference with the free flow of traffic on the highway in accordance with 
Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 
2007, and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: CYCLE PROVISION 

(22) No unit of accommodation in each of the Blocks, known as A, B and C, shall be occupied until 
space has been laid out within each Block in accordance with the details hereby approved for 142 
bicycles to be securely parked. The secure area for storing bicycles shown on the approved plan shall 
remain available for its intended purpose and shall not be used for any other purpose without the 
prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

In order to promote cycling as an alternative to the use of private cars in accordance with Policy 
CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 
paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: TRAVEL PLAN 

(23) None of the residential units hereby proposed shall be occupied until a Residential Travel Plan 
(RTP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The said RTP 
shall seek to encourage residents and visitors to use modes of transport other than the private car 
to get to and from the development. It shall also include measures to control the use of the 
permitted car parking areas; arrangements for monitoring the use of provisions available through the 
operation of the RTP; and the name, position and contact telephone number of the person 
responsible for its implementation. From the date of occupation the developer shall operate the 
approved Travel Plan. 

 

Reason: 

The Local Planning Authority considers that such measures need to be taken in order to reduce 
reliance on the use of private cars (particularly single occupancy journeys) and to assist in the 
promotion of more sustainable travel choices in accordance with Policy CS28 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 32 and 34 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.  The applicant should contact Plymouth Transport and 
Infrastructure for site-specific advice prior to preparing the Travel Plan. 

 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: CAR PARKING MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

(24) None of the residential units hereby proposed shall be occupied until a site-wide Car Parking 
Management Strategy (CPMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The CPMS will provide details of the specific measures that will be implemented relating 

Page 63



 

 

to the use and control of all car parking spaces across the site (allocation, enforcement, hours of 
operation etc). 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that all of the car parking areas across the site are properly managed and thereby ensure 
that both the residential and existing marina uses are adequately served in terms of off-street car 
parking provision in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: WATER SAFETY EQUIPMENT 

(25) Prior to occupation, a Water Safety Equipment Plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include details of siting and management arrangements. 

 

Reason:  

To ensure public safety in accordance with Policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: BUILDING MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

(26) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a Building Maintenance 
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for its implementation. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved schedule. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory landscaping works carried out in accordance with Policies CS18 and 
CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007 and 
provisions of the NPPF. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: SOUND INSULATION AND VERIFICATION 

(27) AII dwellings shall be constructed in accordance with BS8233:2014 so as to provide sound 
insulation against externally generated noise. The levels as described in Table 4 of the guidance shall 
be applied, meaning there must be no more than 35 dB Laeq for living rooms and bedrooms (0700 
to 2300 daytime) and 30 dB Laeq for bedrooms (2300 to 0700 night-time), with windows shut and 
other means of ventilation provided. Levels of 45 dB Laf.max shall not be exceeded in bedrooms 
(2300 to 0700 night-time). 

 

 

 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, as per the same Standard 
external private amenity areas (including balconies) should aim to meet a level of 50dB Laeq (0700 to 
2300); where this is not achievable the design should aim to meet the best achievable level possible. 

 

Page 64



 

 

Prior to occupation of dwellings in any phase or part phase of the development, a verification report 
proving that the dwellings meet the aforementioned criteria should be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Identification of suitable properties for test will depend on 
the final design and location, and these shall be agreed with the Local Planning Authority prior to 
occupation and verification , to ensure they are representative for the development. 

 

Reason:  

To ensure that the proposed dwellings hereby permitted achieve a satisfactory living standard and do 
not experience unacceptable levels of noise disturbance to comply with policies CS22 and CS34 of 
the adopted City of Plymouth Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2007 

 

Other Conditions  

 

CONDITION: REFUSE STORAGE PROVISION 

(28) The refuse storage provision shown on the approved plans shall be fully implemented  before 
the development  is first occupied and henceforth permanently made available for future occupiers of 
the site. 

 

Reason;  

In order to ensure that adequate , safe  and convenient refuse storage provision is provided  and 
made available  for use  by future occupiers in accordance with policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy and paragraphs 61-66, 109, 110 and 123 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

CONDITION: NO PILING 

(29) No piling works shall take place within the tidal waters and no percussive piling shall take place.  

 

Reason: 

To prevent noise from piling entering marine environment potentially disturbing designated 
migratory fish species, in accordance with Core Strategy policies CS01, CS19, CS22 and CS34 and 
Government advice contained in the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

CONDITION: ECOLOGICAL MITIGATION AND ENHANCEMENT 

(30) Unless otherwise previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement 
Strategy (dated 27/10/14) by EPSecology Ltd. 

 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of the retention, protection and enhancement of wildlife and features of biological 
interest, in accordance with Core Strategy policies CS01, CS19, CS34 and Government advice 
contained in PPS9. 

Page 65



 

 

 

Informatives 

 

INFORMATIVE: LOADING PARAMETERS 

(1) With reference to condition 10, regarding loading parameters, the proposed scheme will need to 
be designed so that buildings A and B are capable of withstanding the dynamic loading listed below: 

 

Full Reflected Pressure = 4.825 kPa 

Full Reflected Impulse = 629 kPa-ms 

Incident Pressure = 2.390 kPa 

Incident Impulse = 353 kPa-ms 

 

INFORMATIVE: GLAZING SPECIFICATIONS 

(2) With reference to condition 11, seeking glazing specifications, the applicant/agent is advised that 
the glazing in Blocks A and B will need to be installed using moderately sized panes (typical pane size 
3m2) of 7.55mm thick laminated glass with a PVB interlayer in a steel or aluminium framing system. 
The MOD would not expect the frames to have any blast design at these ranges, provided they do 
not use planer or spider fixings. A suitable double glazed unit would typically have a toughened glass 
outer pane and a 7.5mm  thick laminated glass inner pane, also in a steel or aluminium frame. 

 

INFORMATIVE: RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME 

(3) The applicant should be made aware that the property lies within a resident parking permit 
scheme which is currently over-subscribed. As such the development will be excluded from 
obtaining permits and purchasing visitor tickets for use within the scheme. 

 

INFORMATIVE: CODE OF PRACTICE 

(4) The management plan shall be based upon the Council’s Code of Practice for Construction and 
Demolition Sites which can be viewed on the Council’s web pages, and shall include sections on the 
following: 

a. Site management arrangements including site office, developer contact number in event of any 
construction/demolition related problems, and site security information; 

b. Proposed hours of operation of construction activities and of deliveries, expected numbers per 
day and types of all construction vehicles and deliveries, routes of construction traffic to and from 
the site (including local access arrangements, timing of lorry movements, and weight limitations on 
routes), initial inspection of roads to assess rate of wear and extent of repairs required at end of 
construction/demolition stage, location of wheel wash facilities, access points, location of car parking 
for contractors, construction traffic parking, details of turning facilities within the site for site traffic 
and HGVs, and a scheme to encourage public transport use by contractors; and 

c. Hours of site operation, dust suppression measures and noise limitation measures. 

 

The applicant/agent is advised that the Code of Practice should cover all potential aspects of nuisance 
with regards to the development and should acknowledge that the development of three large 
buildings, whether at the same time or separately, has the potential to impact others. Should the 

Page 66



 

 

development be constructed in a phased approach it may be beneficial to submit separate plans for 
each phase, taking into account any previously completed phases. 

 

INFORMATIVE: RNLI 

(5) The applicant/agent is advised to contact the RNLI before development commences to ensure 
that appropriate measures are taken both during and post-construction to ensure that the 
operations of the RNLI are not unduly distrupted. 

 

INFORMATIVE: CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION 

(6) The Appllicant/Agent is advised that any CCTV system should be compatible with the VTS 
equipment installed in the port control station when the development is constructed. QHM seek 
assurance that free access would be allowed for maintenance and that there would be no enduring 
charges for the sighting of the equipment on the property. 

 

INFORMATIVE: (£0 CIL LIABILITY) DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT ATTRACT A COMMUNITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

(7)  The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from 
liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not attract a 
levy payment, due to its size or nature, under our current charging schedule.  The Levy is subject to 
change and you should check the current rates at the time planning permission first permits 
development (if applicable) see www.plymouth.gov.uk/cil for guidance. 

 

INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (WITH NEGOTIATION) 

(8) In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with 
the Applicant [including pre-application discussions] and has negotiated amendments to the 
application to enable the grant of planning permission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
REPORT 
 

 

Application Number  15/00006/FUL  Item 2 

Date Valid 06/01/2015  Ward St Peter & The Waterfront 

 

Site Address 165 ARMADA WAY, PLYMOUTH 

Proposal 

Construction of new seven-bay coach station and 97 space car park 
including change of use of ground floor of 165 Armada Way from financial 
institution (use class A2) to coach station facilities building 

Applicant Plymouth City Council 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    07/04/2015 Committee Date 
Planning Committee: 12 
March 2015 

Decision Category Major - more than 5 Letters of Representation received 

Case Officer John Douglass 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 

 

Click for documents     www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningdocconditions?appno=15/00006/FUL/planningdoc

conditions?appno=13/02361/LBC 

     

Page 69 Agenda Item 6.2



 

 

1.   Description of site 

The site comprises the site of the former Mayflower West multi-storey car park (now largely 
demolished), which is to the rear of shops on Armada Way, Cornwall St, Market Way and 
Mayflower St.  There are vehicle accesses from Mayflower St (2-way) and Market Way (inbound 
only), with further pedestrian accesses to Cornwall St (close to Armada Way) and Market Way.  The 
(clockwise only) route around the former car park is adopted highway (HMPE) and provides service 
access to the rear of surrounding buildings.  Large wheeled commercial waste bins are stored within 
and collected from this route.  The surfaces are currently concrete. 

There is a significant change in level across the site with the northern courtyard route being 4.5m 
higher than the southern road in places. 

Buildings around the perimeter are mostly 2-3 storeys in height, with taller buildings  facing Armada 
Way.  The majority of ground floor uses are retail, with the first floors assumed to be mostly retail 
storage, related uses, or in some cases offices.  The only known residential uses are to the south 
eastern corner of the site above 50 Cornwall St, where 20 student bedrooms are located in 4 units 
(10/01878/FUL; 11/00244/FUL). 

There is a vacant nightclub in Mayflower St to the west of the main site access.  The four staircase 
bridges that previously provided emergency egress from this nightclub via the multi-storey car park 
are due to be removed by PCC as part of ongoing demolition works. 

A temporary car park reopened on the western half of the site (following demolition of the multi-
storey car park) immediately before Christmas. 

The ground floor of 165 Armada Way was last used a bank/building society, but is currently vacant, 
as are the offices immediately above it within Taylor Maxwell House. 

 

2.   Proposal description 

The proposal is to create a new 7-bay coach station to replace the facilities at Bretonside.  The 
facility is designed only to accommodate scheduled coach services (eg National Express, Megabus) 
and not tourist coaches or scheduled local bus services. 

The coach station will comprise a large coach parking/manoeuvring area (coach apron) accessed 
from the main entrance via a ramp, with a canopy structure and outdoor facilities (including seating, 
signage and information screens, luggage lockers, cycle parking and WC).  The facilities building 
within 165 Armada Way will provide a ticket office, coffee shop, toilet facilities (including disabled 
WC) and seating areas.  Its proposed opening hours are 07:00-19:00.  New aluminium shop fronts 
will be fitted to the front and rear of the unit, and signage is also proposed (this will be subject to a 
separate consent process under the advertisement regulations). 

The western part of the scheme will be retained as a surface-level shoppers car park managed by 
PCC (82 spaces Pay and Display including 5 blue badge spaces, and 3 motorcycle spaces), although it 
will incorporate taxi and general drop off/pick up for the coach station, and a north-south pedestrian 
route between coach station and car park.  The application site also includes Mayflower Street from 
Armada Way to its junction with Western Approach.  Whilst the works in this area could be carried 
out by the Highway Authority without the need for planning permission, they are included to 
demonstrate the highway works proposed to ensure the safe operation of the coach station.  The 
most significant change is the extension of the westbound only one-way section of the street from 
Armada Way to the site entrance (two-way traffic would still be permitted to the west of the site 
entrance).  Other works include signalising the junction and extending the taxi rank. 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

3.   Pre-application enquiry 

The proposals were subject to extensive pre-application engagement under reference 14/00880/MAJ.  
During this time the applicant’s project team carried out their own community engagement 
programme and made several changes to the scheme. 

 

4.   Relevant planning history 

Demolition of the Mayflower West multi-storey car park was permitted following ‘prior 
approval’/‘Section 31’ notification reference 14/00288/31.   

Applications 14/01990/LBC and 14/01987/FUL (current at the time of writing) include works to 
facilitate relocation of the CCTV control room from the site to the Council House basement. 

 

5.   Consultation responses 

 

City Centre Company 

The City Centre Company expressed concern that the accessible route from the car park to 
Cornwall Street / Armada Way is very inconvenient, and suggested this be reviewed to enable better 
(step-free) access.  It also suggested that the closure of the short pedestrian lane to Market Way / 
Cornwall Street be reviewed to accommodate additional easy access. 

Environment Agency 

Remain concerned that the scheme intends to connect to a combined rather than a surface water 
only sewer and recommend that the scheme is not determined until further information is provided.  
Also suggests the use of filter drains to clean water prior to discharge into the attenuation tanks. 
The applicant continues to engage in discussions on these points.   

Local Highway Authority 

Has no objection to the proposal but notes that it will require further work on the details of the 
traffic control and details of proposed work within the public highway on the service road, footway 
connections and works on Mayflower Street (please refer to the full comment on line for further 
information).  Two conditions and one informative are recommended. 

Police Architectural Liaison Officer 

Considers it vital that there is a barrier controlled entry system is installed for the coach parking 
area to prevent unauthorised cars and taxis entering the site. Also recommends that the car park is 
built to the Park Mark Safer Parking Award scheme standard. 

Public Protection Service  
Has concerns about noise, particularly with regards to the regular and repeated nature of the short 
term event levels of coaches arriving and departing (approximately 9 times per night).  Recommends 
conditions to control the noise output of the coaches, plant and public address system and adds that 
should the applicant not feel able to meet these requirements then they would need to object to the 
development.  

Concludes in respect of Air Quality that ‘the submitted assessment overall contains adequate 
information to determine that the proposed coach station should not significantly add to the poor air 
quality in the area. I therefore accept that there are no air quality constraints to the proposed coach 
station and have no objections to this application in terms of air quality, subject to my following 
recommendations and conditions.’  For the construction phase a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) is requested to manage dust during construction.  For the operational 

Page 71



 

 

phase, a contribution of £1509.75 is requested to enable monitoring of air quality on Mayflower St, 
which could potentially worsen as a result of the new signalised junction increasing stationary time 
for existing buses on Mayflower St.  A condition is also requested to secure a noise and air quality 
management plan to prevent excessive idling of coaches. 

A condition is requested to secure further details to manage the risk of land contamination issues. 

 

6.   Representations 

 

Eleven Letters of Representation have been received, all in objection to the proposal.  The issues 
raised are summarised below: 

1. This is not a good site for the Coach Station, for reasons including the following: 

o The location is ‘out of the way’ (and is too far from key destinations such as the 
Barbican and the city will be disadvantaged as a result) 

o Lack of interchange with other local services 

o The site is constricted.  It will necessitate tight turns on entry/exit, and there is 
insufficient space for high quality facilities, and not enough space to even meet current 
demands 

o The topography restricts easy access options 

o Coaches will be delayed in congestion (particularly on Charles St) 

o The rear of shops surrounding the site will create a poor first impression to the city 
(these should at least be painted).  One objector describes the site as ‘one of extreme 
ugliness’ which is ‘not a welcoming gateway’ 

2. It is not clear whether PCC evaluated other sites.  Alternative locations would be preferable.  
The refurbishment of Bretonside (or redevelopment to include a new Coach Station alongside 
other facilities) is the most common suggestion.  Other locations suggested were Colin Campbell 
Court and the Railway Station/North Cross (noting that the proposal does not align with 
Abercrombie’s proposal to establish a coach and rail hub at North Road Rail Station). 

3. The process of promoting this site, which, one objector points out is driven by the desire to 
permit redevelopment of Bretonside has been flawed, with the result that the site’s availability 
has determined the functionality, design and size of the coach station (rather than the other way 
around).  One objector also explains their understanding that the receipt of funding for the 
project for British Land (who intend to develop Bretsonside) means that this should be 
considered a phased joint project, and considers this could lead to a conflict of interest for the 
Council  

4. The objections also reveal that there is some confusion over whether tourist/day tripper coaches 
will use the facilities and questions are raised over where these coaches will drop off/pick up 

5. The detailed issues raised about the proposal are summarised as follows: 

o The drop-off facility is not well located (difficult for passengers with luggage) and will 
result in people walking across the coach apron 

o Facilities building is cramped and inadequate; turnstile access to disabled WC is not 
acceptable 

o Wheelchair Confined, Ambulant Disabled, Families and the Elderly with Luggage are 
being poorly catered for, particularly in respect of taxi drop-off/pick up for users 
relying on ramped access to taxis 

Page 72



 

 

o The architecture of the schemes constructions are ‘insignificant’.  The design is 
disappointing - discouraging rather than embracing 

o Traffic will be restricted by the single narrow entry/exit route 

o Expensive traffic control measures will be needed to ensure the safe operation of the 
facility 

o The layout of the internal roads is confusing and will lead to congestion 

o The poor safety record around the site will worsen due to increased congestion 

o Proper management of the landscaping must be secured to ensure its long-term 
survival 

 

6. In commenting on the location for the new coach station, several objectors also pass comment 
about the proposals for Bretonside, noting for example, that: 

o We don’t need more cafes, shops, cinemas 

o Noise from the new uses proposed will be harmful to amenity in the area 

o Its impacts on other areas such as the Barbican or the Home Park development plans 
should be considered before the Coach Hub application is determined 

 

7.   Relevant Policy Framework 

 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 
April 2007).  The most relevant policies are as follows: 

CS02: Design;  AV03: Plymouth City Centre (Area Vision); CS06: City Centre; CS10: Changes of 
Use in the City Centre; CS19: Wildlife; CS20: Sustainable Resource Use; CS21: Flood Risk; CS22: 
Pollution; CS26: Sustainable Waste Management; CS27: Supporting Strategic Infrastructure 
Proposals; CS28: Local Transport Considerations; CS32: Designing Out Crime; CS33: Community 
Benefits/Planning Obligations; CS34: Planning Application Considerations 

 

In the case of this application, it also comprises the City Centre & University Area Action Plan.  The 
most relevant policies are as follows: 

CC01: Place Making and the Historic Environment; CC03: City Centre Public Realm; CC04: A 
Sustainable City Centre Neighbourhood; CC11: Cornwall Street; CC15: The Northern Triangle 

The Sutton Harbour Area Action Plan also includes relevant discussion about the redevelopment of 
Bretonside for alternative uses. 

The development plan is currently being reviewed as part of the Plymouth Plan.   The Plymouth Plan-
Part One: Consultation Draft was approved by Cabinet for consultation purposes on 9 December 
2014.   As such it is a material consideration for the purposes of planning decisions.   The following 
policies are particularly relevant: 

Page 73



 

 

Policy 7 (Enhancing Plymouth’s strategic connectivity) includes as a priority: “Upgrading and 
redeveloping Plymouth railway station as a regional hub station and delivering a new coach station in 
the City Centre.” 

Policy 36 (Positioning Plymouth as a major UK destination) seeks to enhance the overall experience 
of visitors in travelling to and within the city through …promoting high quality public transport into 
and around the city… and …transforming the city’s key gateways through public realm and highway 
improvements to ensure that a positive impression of the city is achieved, including Plymouth railway 
station and coach station. 

The policies contained in National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and guidance in 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) are also material considerations which should be taken 
into account in the determination of planning applications.  Due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing and emerging plans according to their degree of consistency with this framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may 
be given). 

The Framework provides that the weight to be given to an emerging draft plan is also to be 
determined according to: 

The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the greater the 
weight that may be given).  The Plymouth Plan is at an early stage of preparation. 

The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the 
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given).  The draft policies of the Plymouth 
Plan are currently subject to consultation, although the general direction taken by the plan and key 
issues and options relating to it have been subject to consultation. 

At the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  In the 
context of planning applications, this means approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay but where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies 
are out of date, granting permission unless: 

Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits; or 

Specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted. 

 

Additionally, the following planning documents are also material considerations in the determination 
of the application: 

• Sustainable Design Supplementary Planning Document 

• Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document 

 

8.   Analysis 

 

This application has been considered in the context of the development plan, the emerging Plymouth 
Plan, the Framework and other material policy documents as set out in Section 7.   

 

 Relationship to Bretonside Proposals 

1. Whilst issues about Bretonside’s proposed redevelopment are ultimately for consideration as 
part of the recently submitted application by British Land, it is worthwhile, given that several 
objections have been received on this basis, briefly considering the policy context for 
Bretonside’s redevelopment: Core Strategy paragraphs 5.23 and 5.25 acknowledge that 

Page 74



 

 

Bretonside’s inadequacy as an entrance to the city must be addressed.  The Sutton Harbour 
AAP (paras 3.11) identifies it as being underused and creating a poor first impression of the 
city and consequently it is identified as a ‘major opportunity for mixed-use regeneration’.  
Policy SH02 promotes its comprehensive redevelopment, including ‘A high-quality public 
transport interchange on site, or at a new site, with improved facilities, including toilets, baby 
changing, child-care facilities, secure cycle storage, cyclist facilities and tourist information.’  
Paragraph 5.5 states that ‘Redevelopment of the site should not proceed until alternative 
coach parking facilities are made available.’ 

2. Bearing in mind the above policy context, the purpose of the current application is clear: it is 
necessary to facilitate construction of the new Coach Station, which will in turn make 
Bretonside available for redevelopment for alternative uses.  However members are advised 
that the application before them should be assessed on its own merits as an application for a 
new coach station, and therefore officers are of the view that any objection made on the 
basis of British Land’s proposals for Bretonside would not be a valid reason to withhold 
approval for the new coach station.  

 

Principle of Development 

3. Turning to the proposal itself, it is clear that no specific site for a new coach station is 
specified within the adopted Development Plan.  However Core Strategy policy CS27 states 
that the Council will support: “Development of a new coach station for Plymouth within the 
City Centre, to improve passenger facilities and pedestrian links to the Barbican, Hoe and the 
retail core as part of this important gateway into the city.”  This policy supports Strategic 
Objective 14, which seeks to reduce the need to travel, deliver a sustainable transport 
network, and improve the City’s connectivity with the rest of the UK, Europe and beyond.  
Consequently there is clear policy support for a new Coach Station within the City Centre.  
Given its central, highly accessible location, there is also a clear synergy with the City 
Centre’s retail and commercial functions, and with other parts of the sustainable transport 
network (the railway station is less than 9 minutes walk away, buses on Mayflower Street are 
immediately adjacent, and other bus services on Royal Parade less than 5 minutes walk). 

4. This site is subject to policy CC11 of the City Centre and University AAP, which proposed a 
strategic retail-led development of 61,000 sq m of floorspace across the Cornwall 
St/Mayflower St blocks to the east and west of Armada Way.  The proposal was for a new 
(landmark) department store with smaller format units capable of accommodating 
independent retailers, and two new car parks delivering 2000 spaces. 

5. The proposal which CC11 sought to facilitate has clearly not come to fruition, and a retail-led 
regeneration of this scale is now highly unlikely in the current retail market.  However, this 
site specific allocation will remain until Part 2 of the Plymouth Plan is in place.  In light of this, 
and given that the city centre study prepared by GVA which underpinned the city centre 
policy in Part 1 of the Plymouth Plan identified this block as a particular opportunity for 
change, there is a need to consider carefully whether this proposal could undermine future 
opportunities for regeneration and change in this area.   GVA consider that these 
redevelopment opportunities are likely to result from a shift away from the current 
domination of retail uses and into a broader land use mix (probably including residential and 
leisure uses, particularly those that would contribute to a vibrant evening economy).  Subject 
to adequate mitigation of the environmental impacts of the Coach Station (considered later in 
this report) there is no reason to believe that the location will prevent wider development of 
the area.  Subject to appropriate acoustic façade treatment it would not preclude residential 
or commercial use of upper floors, and officers consider there is no reason that the proposal 
would prevent a more holistic redevelopment of the surrounding buildings.  Indeed a wider 
development could help to improve the arrival experience for visitors by ensuring that 

Page 75



 

 

buildings face into the courtyard as well as to the surrounding streets.  Coach stations can 
also be fully covered and there is no reason why the coach station couldn’t be covered over 
as part of a comprehensive scheme. 

6. The change of use of 165 Armada Way to a coach station facilities building will result in the 
loss of a unit from use class A2 (financial and professional services), but this has been vacant 
for some time.  The facility will also generate significant footfall, and will remain an active 
ground floor use with a shopfront.  In this respect officers consider its introduction will be 
beneficial to this part of the city centre shopping environment and is consistent with core 
strategy policy CS10.  The facilities building includes a sufficient range of facilities to cater for 
coach passengers, and the coach boarding area has also been designed to provide facilities 
outside the opening hours of the facilities building (07:00-19:00). 

 

Transport Issues 

7. The site is in a highly accessible location, and the proposals seek to maximise access for 
coach passengers by a variety of means.  The car park has been designed to specifically 
include drop off/pick facilities (both regular and taxi).  The applicant has revised the design 
during the pre-application process, and made further revisions during the application in 
response to consultation responses received from the Passenger Licensed Taxi Association 
(PLTA), and from the Plymouth Area Disability Action Network (PADAN).  It now includes 
kerbs within the taxi area of the car park to enable drop off of wheelchairs via side access 
ramps (as required by Hackney Taxis).  The applicant acknowledges that the drop off area is 
some distance from the boarding area and facilities building, but drop-off facilities have been 
placed as close as possible.  A further disabled space for drop-off has also been placed 
immediately outside the rear entrance to the facilities building.   The size of the taxi rank on 
Mayflower St has also been increased.  The five disabled spaces towards the Market Way 
entrance are intended as shopper, rather than coach user spaces, and are located accordingly 
(PADAN raised concerns about their distance from the coach boarding area). 

 

8. Secure cycle parking is proposed beneath the canopies in the boarding area to facilitate 
interchange by cyclists.  A condition is proposed to secure its delivery.  The applicant is also 
exploring the introduction of further, more secure cycle parking in the form of cycle lockers 
or similar. 

 

9. In terms of pedestrian accessibility, the legibility of the facility (particularly to tourists etc) is 
also a key consideration given that it is contained within an enclosed block and its facilities 
building occupies a typical city centre retail unit.  The need for a package of directional 
signage (both vehicular and pedestrian) is therefore acknowledged by the applicant and a 
condition is proposed to secure details. 

 

10. It is also relevant in accessibility terms that the scheme includes a north-south route between 
the car park and the coach apron.  The lack of north-south routes through some of the city 
centre blocks has been identified as an issue for the city centre as it limits the ability of 
pedestrians (including shoppers) to move quickly through and around all parts of the city 
centre.  The 1943 Abercrombie Plan included more routes through each of the blocks and 
the aspiration to instate these has since been included in various documents, including the 
Core Strategy (5.26 Vision Diagram).  Whilst the scheme has not been able to deliver this 
link in full as the retail units on Cornwall Street are not within its control, the inclusion of the 

Page 76



 

 

pedestrian link would facilitate pedestrian access through the centre of the block if future 
opportunities on Cornwall St arise. 
 

11. The applicant pointed out in response to the City Centre Company (who expressed 
concerns about the length of the northern route from the car park to Armada Way and 
Cornwall St) that a step-free southern route was considered, but it was not promoted as a 
primary route because of the problems of traversing the southern section of the service road 
through to the link to Cornwall Street.  More discussion of the access issues in relation to 
those with mobility impairments is set out in the equalities section later in this report. 

 

12. The application is supported by tracking diagrams which demonstrate safe coach access to 
the site, and the transport planning team are content that the apron is sufficiently large for 
coach turning (including at peak arrival/departure periods).  Following minor revisions to the 
position of the ramp barrier, they do not forsee any significant problems with congestion 
(although the signalisation of the junction will inevitably result in some minor delays on 
Mayflower St). 
 

13. The design of the revised car park is also considered acceptable, and following concerns 
expressed (at the pre-application stage) by traders at the previously proposed closure of 
Market Way to traffic (to prevent what many considered to be rat-running), Market Way will 
now remain open as existing.  A wide footway has instead been added to the vehicular route 
to provide safer pedestrian access.  The applicant team responded to the City Centre 
Company to confirm this.    

 

Design 

14. Bretonside has long been regarded as a poor introduction to Plymouth insofar as the 
environment below the Exeter St viaduct is poor.  Notwithstanding its prominent gateway 
location, the site also lacks presence and fails to address Charles Cross roundabout and 
Exeter St, leaving Bretonside itself as a large open space lacking enclosures.  In contrast, the 
proposed site is a courtyard which is fully enclosed by development that effectively screens 
what could otherwise be a large exposed coach concourse.  This approach is a sensible 
solution in design terms, and makes efficient use of a currently underused site.  However it 
does present challenges in terms of wayfinding/legibility, and the desire to provide an 
attractive and welcoming environment for passengers arriving in the city. 

15. The site provides servicing (including refuse storage and collection) to the surrounding retail 
units and consequently its character and appearance is inevitably ‘backland’.  The applicant’s 
approach to ensuring that the coach station serves as an attractive gateway has been to form 
a screen of tree planting around the coach apron and car park.  Officers consider this 
approach will reduce the visibility of the unsightly rear elevations of surrounding shops whilst 
also softening the environment and introducing valuable green infrastructure (with its multiple 
benefits) into this otherwise hard landscaped area of the city centre.  Subject to a detailed 
landscaping scheme (to be secured by condition), this solution is welcomed by officers and is 
likely to be more effective (and more feasible) than painting the rear of existing buildings.  

16. The coach apron features a chequer-board design which breaks up what would otherwise be 
a large expanse of concrete.  The applicant has also provided a further statement explaining 
their design approach in relation to the objective of providing a high quality visitor 
experience.  This includes the following confirmation about their ongoing intentions: ‘the 
design team intend to continue developing design strategies that address both the physical 
and experiential surroundings of the site through detailed design stages. Currently, budgets 

Page 77



 

 

have been identified for bespoke signage and potential screening to the flank walls within the 
approaches from Cornwall Street and Mayflower Street. The potential exists for local artists 
or community groups to become involved with the design of these elements. A wayfinding 
strategy will be implemented that allows very high quality signage to be developed for the 
wider context and specific operational signage within the confines of the coach station. 
Consideration will be given to unifying the appearance of the existing buildings immediately 
adjacent to the facilities building either through an external painting scheme or other device. 
It should also be noted that the site benefits from the coach apron area already being 
screened off from busy shopping and public thoroughfares (Armada Way and Cornwall 
Street) which is often considered a major design challenge for bus and coach stations located 
within City Centres.’ 

17. The applicant also intends to improve the visual qualities of the area by improving the bin 
storage arrangements for surrounding retail units (large wheeled 1100 litre bins are currently 
stored in the street).  An underground bin storage system was initially proposed as a means 
of reducing the amount of space required in the service road for bins.  However, the 
applicant has recently confirmed that this system cannot be included because it would be 
more expensive to service (a special collection vehicle would be needed) and would 
therefore introduce a cost burden on the retailers.  Alternative solutions are now being 
explored and a condition is therefore proposed to enable a revised scheme to be submitted, 
assessed and approved.  Members should, however, be aware that this part of the scheme 
would be an additional benefit from the scheme designed to improve visual amenity for the 
benefit of the user experience, rather than a direct consequence of the scheme which must 
be mitigated.  For this reason the scheme could not be resisted for not resolving this issue. 

18. Significant improvements to the appearance of the area have already been delivered through 
the removal of the multi-storey car park, including the vehicular bridge to the parking above 
Iceland and the pedestrian bridge over Mayflower St to the Armada Centre.  The removal of 
the 4 unsightly fire escapes from the nightclub above 89-113 Mayflower St will also be a 
further significant improvement (these are no longer usable as they landed on the multi-
storey car park, and they are due to be demolished soon).  The applicant’s design team have 
ensured that the scheme protects sufficient space for a replacement fire escape stair which 
could be introduced to serve the former nightclub.  This would be a single staircase designed 
to serve multiple fire exits whilst minimising the number of car parking spaces in the 
undercroft of the building that would be blocked.  A further planning application for this 
would, however, be required. 

19. The canopy structure (steel framed with seamless single ply membrane roof coverings and 
recessed LED lighting to illuminate the boarding area and canopy structure) is considered 
high quality (subject to further details to be required by condition) and the surface 
treatments in the main arrival area (the boarding area, links to the facilities building and the 
links to Cornwall St and the car park) would be finished in high quality (granite) paving 
(further details to be required by condition). 

20. Whilst the scheme will inevitably involve significant retaining walls, it is proposed to use 
stone-filled gabion baskets which will result in a higher quality appearance than concrete.   
The Design and Access Statement also confirms that ‘it is intended to use very high quality 
materials and products so not to detract from the overall quality of the development.’  
Conditions are proposed to secure further details of all such items, which include railings, 
seating, cycle parking, luggage lockers, information screen, help point, and signage.  Separate 
advertisement consent is also likely to be required for some of the signage (depending upon 
its size and purpose).  The lighting scheme will also be designed to complement the 
structures on site and give the facility a high quality appearance. 

 

Page 78



 

 

Safety and Security 

21. A key shortcoming of the site is the lack of surveillance from surrounding buildings.  It will 
therefore be critical that any future development takes the opportunity to maximise 
surveillance over the facility.  In the interim, and bearing in mind that passengers will need to 
rely on the outdoor facilities in the middle of the night when the facility will not be staffed, 
other safety and security measures will be critical.  The submitted Design and Access 
Statement sets out how the scheme seeks to ensure adequate safety and security.  Measures 
include the provision of multiple access points, use of visually permeable railings, high levels of 
illumination, CCTV (linked to the PCC control room), and the use of robust materials to 
deter vandalism.  All these items make a positive contribution and it is critical that these 
elements are provided.  A plan has been submitted showing proposed lighting levels and 5 
proposed CCTV camera locations, but further analysis of this information is required.  A 
condition is therefore proposed to secure a package of security measures.  The applicant has 
recently confirmed that the help point in the boarding area will be answered by PCC’s CCTV 
control centre which is staffed 24/7 (except Christmas Day), and that they are working to 
achieve a system whereby the CCTV camera automatically turns to cover the help point 
when it is pressed. 

22. The applicant’s Design and Access Statement confirms that they intend to achieve the ‘Park 
Mark’ safety standard for the car park as requested by the Police Architectural Liaison 
Officer. 

  

Environmental Considerations – Noise 

23. A noise assessment was submitted with the application, but this mainly considered traffic 
noise on Western Approach.  A further report was submitted later to consider the impacts 
of the scheme on existing residential (student) flats above 50 Cornwall St (although no 
objections have been received on the grounds of noise from the proposed facility).  Officers 
are not only concerned to preserve the amenity of the occupiers of those flats, but also to 
ensure that noise from the coach station does not discourage further residential development 
in this area, which is encouraged as part of the city’s aspirations to create a vibrant mixed-use 
city centre. 

24. In addition to general noise from coach passengers, engine noise, noise from the PA system, 
and reversing beepers are all sources of noise with potential to harm amenity and cause 
nuisance.   Although there will be coach movements during the night (5 arrivals and 6 
departures between midnight and 06:00), there will be no need to use the PA system during 
anti-social hours, and the applicant reports that coaches are legally prevented from using 
reversing beepers between 23:00 and 07:00.  They also advise that “It is common practice / 
National Express procedure for the coaches to switch off their engines as soon as they arrive.  
Coaches are not allowed to idle”. 

25. A condition is therefore proposed to secure a package of measures to prevent disturbance 
from noise sources.  Officers consider this adequate to prevent noise and disturbance and to 
ensure that the coach station will not prevent the introduction of further residential uses into 
the city centre. 

26. A further condition seeks full details of any plant or extract equipment for the facilities 
building (if required), although it is understood that extract equipment will not be required 
for the café facility as currently proposed. 

 

 

 

Page 79



 

 

Environmental Considerations – Air Quality 

27. The site is within the recently enlarged Air Quality Management Area, which covers the 
whole of the City Centre and key arterial routes, and an Air Quality Assessment was 
submitted in support of the application.  As data confirming the vehicle movements into and 
out of the former car park were not available, the data underpinning the assessment have 
been derived from surveys of car parks with similar locational characteristics elsewhere.  
These were then adjusted to the capacity of the former car park on site.  The air quality 
implications were then calculated on the basis that emissions from one coach are equivalent 
to around 10 cars (data from the DEFRA emissions toolkit).  Officers have scrutinised this 
methodology closely, and are content that it is robust and suitable for the purposes of 
assessing the air quality impacts of the proposal.   

28. The assessment concludes that overall the scheme will improve the air quality immediately 
around the site.  The Public Protection Service accept this conclusion, but note the possibility 
that there could be some localised negative impacts on Mayflower St as a result of the 
signalisation of the Coach Station entrance.  This is because the signals are likely to marginally 
increase the time that buses (on existing bus routes) spend standing on Mayflower St.  To 
enable them to monitor the impact, a small financial contribution has been requested to fund 
the installation of monitoring equipment for a period of 6 months before the opening of the 
facility, and 2 years after.  The applicant has agreed for the project to meet this cost, which 
would be transferred internally. 

29. The noise and air quality management plan to be secured by condition will be required to 
include limits on stationary coach idling to prevent unacceptable air quality impacts within the 
courtyard.   

 

Environmental Considerations – Contaminated Land  

30. Although a desk-based assessment was submitted with the application, a condition is 
proposed to secure further information. 

 

Environmental Considerations – Flood Risk and Water Management 

31. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment confirms that although the site is within Flood Zone 1 
(Low Risk), it is at risk of ‘surface water flooding’ from overland flows from the north which 
would exit to the south or south west of the site. 

32. The surface water drainage strategy for the site is to reduce the rate of discharge to 50 % of 
existing levels.  This will be achieved partly by diverting surface water to new planting beds 
around the perimeter, but most significantly by installing large attenuation tanks (500 cubic 
metres) beneath the coach station and car park to delay the discharge of rainwater to the 
(combined) sewer to help manage run off at times of peak demand.  These tanks would be 
linked to the irrigation system for the new tree planting to reduce discharge and help 
maintain the trees. 

33. Although the proposal appears to satisfactorily address the relevant Core Strategy policy 
CS21, the Environment Agency remain concerned (at the time of writing) that the scheme 
proposes to connect to the combined sewer, and would like it to instead connect to a 
surface water only drain.  Whilst there is no doubt that this would be preferable, insofar as it 
will assist in meeting water quality aspirations within our waterways and Plymouth Sound by 
reducing the likelihood that foul sewers could overflow at times when capacity is exceeded, it 
appears technically challenging given the position (and relative levels) of the nearest surface 
water sewer.  The applicant continues to explore whether this is feasible in liaison with the 
Environment Agency.  Officers will update members at committee. 

Page 80



 

 

Sustainability and Biodiversity 

34. The city centre location is highly accessible and facilitates interchange with a range of other 
sustainable modes of transport.  It incorporates Sustainable Urban Drainage as detailed 
above, and will bring multiple benefits in terms of ecology, climate control and water 
management through the introduction of soft landscaping (subject to conditions).  Whilst the 
proposal will not be subject to a formal BREEAM assessment or similar, the Design and 
Access Statement (s 5.2.7) confirms that sustainability is a key consideration.  The lighting, for 
example will be specified to be low energy LED fittings, and there will be water saving taps 
used in public toilets, along with low energy heating and cooling systems.  Given that the 
facilities are provided in a small existing building, renewable energy generation is not 
required. 

35. Officers note that the existing site has no ecological value whatsoever, but have requested 
conditions to ensure that the scheme delivers a net gain in biodiversity.  The inclusion of 
native planting within the landscape scheme is likely to be sufficient, but bird nesting 
opportunities etc may also be required.  A landscape management plan detailing maintenance 
and management arrangements is also required to ensure the success of the landscaping.   

36. Overall, officers are satisfied that the scheme meets the sustainability requirements of key 
policy in the form of Core Strategy policies CS19 CS20 and the NPPF. 

 

9.   Human Rights 

 

Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant’s reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

10.  Local Finance Considerations 

 

The use proposed is zero rated for CIL purposes so no CIL is payable.  

 

11.  Planning Obligations 

 

The purpose of planning obligations is to mitigate or compensate for adverse impacts of a 
development, or to prescribe or secure something that is needed to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations can only lawfully constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission where the three statutory tests of Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 
are met. 

 

The main planning obligations that this development would give rise to are highway works required 
to enable its safe operation.  In this case, as it is not possible for the Council to enter into a S106 
agreement with itself, the application site has been intentionally enlarged to include all necessary 
highway works.  These will be delivered by the highway authority on behalf of PCC and will require 
further detailed design, safety audit etc before they are finalised.  Whilst there may need to be minor 

Page 81



 

 

changes as a result of this further work, the highway authority would be responsible for ensuring 
that the works as set out in principle on the submitted drawings would be provided prior to the 
commencement of the use. 

 

A financial contribution of £1509.75 is sought to enable air quality on Mayflower St to be monitored 
for a period of 6 months prior to opening of the facility and 6 months afterwards.  The applicant has 
agreed to meet this cost and arrangements will be made to transfer this internally. 

 

12.  Equalities and Diversities 

 

The key equalities issue is access to the site and its facilities for those with mobility impairments.  
Concerns about the appropriateness of the site and its proposed facilities have been raised (as 
detailed earlier in this report), initially by representatives of the taxi trade, but subsequently also by 
members of the public and by Plymouth Area Disability Action Network (PADAN).  Officers 
acknowledge that the topography of the site is challenging and significant amounts of space would 
need to be dedicated to ramps to create step-free access around the site.  Consequently, whilst the 
scheme provides safe ramped access between its key elements (eg Market Way, Shoppers Car Park, 
Drop-off, boarding area and facilities building) it is true that mobility impaired users would need to 
take longer routes to some key destinations (most notably from the car park to Cornwall St via the 
footway to the north of the coach apron).  This is, however, considered a reasonable compromise to 
enable the facility to be provided in such a central (and therefore accessible) location.  Comments 
regarding the accessibility of the facilities building have been forwarded to the applicant and their 
design team is confident that they can address these concerns as part of ongoing detailed design. 

 

13.  Conclusions 

 

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance.  It makes efficient 
use of an under used brownfield site and is in a highly accessible location with immediate access to 
buses and city centre facilities.  Existing development adequately screens the necessarily large coach 
apron, and a package of measures seek to screen the existing backland character to ensure a quality 
arrival for visitors whilst introducing some soft landscaping to the area.   A package of measures to 
be secured by condition will ensure adequate wayfinding to and from the facility. 

Whilst the site’s topography is challenging the scheme manages to provide satisfactory safe access for 
all including drop off and pick up facilities which cater for disabled drop off including by taxis, and 
maintains an 82-space public shoppers’ car park for the West End. 

Finally, subject to conditions (agreed in scope with the applicant) the proposal will deal with the 
relevant environmental issues adequately such that it will reduce the risk of flooding and ensure that 
air quality and noise issues do not harm existing levels of amenity or discourage future residential 
development in this part of the city centre. 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

 

14.  Recommendation 

 

In respect of the application dated 06/01/2015 and the submitted drawings 29237/2001/100 
Location Plan; 29237/2001/101 Topographical Survey; 29237/2001/102B General Arrangement; 
29237/2001/103A Contour Plan; 29237/2001/104 Cross Sections; 29237/2001/106A Vehicle Swept 
Path (Sheet 1 of 2); 29237/2001/107A Vehicle Swept Path (Sheet 2 of 2); 29237/2001/2700A Existing 
Utilities; 29237/2001/1100A Paved Areas and Surface Finishes; 2118-001 Rev 3 Existing and proposed 
Site Plans; 2118-002 Rev 2 Proposed Plan; 2118-003 Rev 1 Coach Station South Elevation; 2118-004 
Rev 1 Coach Station East Elevation; 2118-005 Rev 1 Coach Station West Elevation; 2118-006 
Facilities Building Existing Plans & Elevations; 2118-007 Rev 1 Facilities Building Proposed Plans & 
Elevations; 2118-008 Rev 1 Signage Existing and Proposed Elevations,it is recommended to:  Grant 
Conditionally 

 

15.  Conditions 

 

CONDITION: DEVELOPMENT TO COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 

CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 

 

29237/2001/100 Location Plan; 29237/2001/101 Topographical Survey; 29237/2001/102B General 
Arrangement; 29237/2001/103A Contour Plan; 29237/2001/104 Cross Sections; 29237/2001/106A 
Vehicle Swept Path (Sheet 1 of 2); 29237/2001/107A Vehicle Swept Path (Sheet 2 of 2); 
29237/2001/2700A Existing Utilities; 29237/2001/1100A Paved Areas and Surface Finishes; 2118-001 
Rev 3 Existing and proposed Site Plans; 2118-002 Rev 2 Proposed Plan; 2118-003 Rev 1 Coach 
Station South Elevation; 2118-004 Rev 1 Coach Station East Elevation; 2118-005 Rev 1 Coach Station 
West Elevation; 2118-006 Facilities Building Existing Plans & Elevations; 2118-007 Rev 1 Facilities 
Building Proposed Plans & Elevations; 2118-008 Rev 1 Signage Existing and Proposed Elevations 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 
the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-
66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



 

 

Pre-commencement Conditions 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: CONTAMINATED LAND 

(3) Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that required 
to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation shall not take place until sections 1 
to 3 of this condition have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after 
development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until 
section 4 of this condition has been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

 

Section 1. Site Characterisation 

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 
application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any 
contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be 
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
The report of the findings must include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 

(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

• human health 

• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 
lines and pipes 

• adjoining land 

• groundwaters and surface waters 

• ecological systems 

• archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s ‘Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 

 

Section 2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment shall be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 

 

Section 3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 
commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise 

Page 84



 

 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two 
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report (referred to in the replaced PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness 
of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 

Section 4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development 
that was not previously identified it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the 
requirements of section 1 of this condition, and where remediation is necessary a remediation 
scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of section 2, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority 
in accordance with section 3. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land 
are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other offsite receptors, in accordance with policy CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 – 123 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: HIGHWAY DETAILS 

(4) No development shall take place until details of the design, layout, levels, lighting, gradients, 
materials, signage and method of construction and drainage of all roads and footways forming part of 
the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall not be brought into use until it has been constructed in accordance with the 
approved details   

 

Reason: 

To provide a road and footpath pattern that secures a safe and convenient environment and to a 
satisfactory standard in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy 2007. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: NOISE AND AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN 

(5) Construction of the Coach Station facility hereby approved shall not commence until a noise and 
air quality management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The plan shall detail noise and emission control measures proposed within the site, which 
shall include but not necessarily be limited to:  

a. Public address system: operating hours, and volumes;  

Page 85



 

 

b. Engine idling: maximum permitted times for stationary coaches, (including signage and/or 
other arrangements for communicating this requirement to drivers) 

c. Reversing alarms: type/volume, and operating hours (including signage and/or other 
arrangements for communicating to drivers the requirement to switch these off);  

 

The plan should detail arrangements between coach station and coach operators and confirm coach 
operator agreement to its measures.  The measures shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approval prior to the first use of the Coach Station hereby permitted and shall thereafter be 
maintained on an ongoing basis unless a revised management plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To protect the site and its immediate surroundings from pollution in the form of noise and 
vehicle emissions in order to ensure a reasonable environment for users of the facility and for 
existing residential occupiers, and to ensure that future development introducing uses sensitive to 
such pollution is not deterred by the proposal, in order to comply with policies CS22 and CS34, and 
Area Vision 3 (City Centre) of the adopted City of Plymouth Core Strategy Development Plan 
Document 2007, and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: CONDITION: CODE OF PRACTICE DURING CONSTRUCTION 

(6) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed management plan 
for the construction phase of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the management 
plan.  

 

Reason: 

To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting effects during 
construction works and avoid conflict with Policy CS22  of the Plymouth Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 120 -123 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012 . 

 

BEFORE ELEMENT COMMENCES: DESIGN DETAILS 

(7) Full details of the following external parts of the scheme shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the relevant part of the 
scheme.  The works shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with that approval prior to the 
first use of the Coach Station hereby approved unless an alternative timetable is agreed in writing in 
advance by the Local Planning Authority: 

a. Gabion retaining walls 

b. Access ramp to rear of 165 Armada Way 

c. Canopy,  

d. Railings, 

e. Barrier to coach access ramp  

f. External seating,  

g. Luggage lockers, 

Page 86



 

 

h. Information screens 

i. Signage,  

j. Shop fronts to front and rear 

k. Granite paving sample 

l. Kerb edge sample to granite paving areas 

m. Edgings to planting area 

n. Coach apron surface samples 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the materials used are in keeping with the character of the area in accordance with 
Policies CS02 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 
2007, and paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

BEFORE ELEMENT COMMENCES: SOFT LANDSCAPE & BIODIVERSITY 

(8) Full details of proposed soft landscape works and a programme for their implementation shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The works shall thereafter be 
carried out in accordance with that approval prior to the first use of the Coach Station hereby 
approved unless an alternative programme is agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning 
Authority.  These details shall include: 

a. Planting plans including the location of all proposed trees, their species, numbers, densities, 
type (i.e bare root/container grown or root balled, girth size and height - in accordance with the 
HTA National Plant specification),  

b. Planting specification including topsoil depths, soiling operations, cultivation, soil ameliorants 
and all works of ground preparation, and plant specification including handling, planting, seeding, 
turfing, mulching and plant protection (as relevant). 

C. Details of any irrigation system 

d. Details of how the scheme will deliver a net on-site gain in biodiversity, and if this is not 
achieved through planting, other means of delivering biodiversity gain (for example bird boxes or 
similar)  

e. Landscape Management Plan detailing how each element will be managed and maintained, and 
including a commitment to replace any dead or defective planting stock for a period of 5 years. 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that satisfactory soft landscape works and biodiversity gains are delivered in accordance 
with Policies CS18, CS19 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
(2006-2021) 2007, and  paragraphs 61, 109 and 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 
. 

 

BEFORE ELEMENT COMMENCES: KITCHEN EXTRACT EQUIPMENT 

(9) No mechanical extract equipment required in association with cooking on the premises shall be 
installed on the premises unless details of the equipment are first submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Details shall include position on the building, visual 
appearance, details of hours of operation of the equipment, details of noise levels, odour control 

Page 87



 

 

measures, and the manufacturer’s instructions along with a description of the cooking equipment 
proposed.   

 

Any mechanical extract equipment shall be provided in accordance with the details approved prior 
to the use of any cooking equipment that requires the equipment, and shall thereafter be maintained 
in accordance with that approval.  The noise emanating from equipment (LAeqT) shall not exceed 
the background noise level (LA90) by more than 5dB, including the character/tonalities of the noise, 
at anytime as measured at the façade of the nearest residential property.   

 

Reason: In the absence of details of a mechanical extract system to protect the residential and 
general amenity of the area from odour emanating from cooking activity in accordance with the 
requirements of policies CS22 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, the site is suitable only for the preparation of simple types of food which 
do not require mechanical extract equipment unless details are first submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for review and approval. 

 

BEFORE ELEMENT COMMENCES: AIR CONDITIONING EQUIPMENT 

(10) No condensers or other equipment required in association with air conditioning/climate control 
within the premises shall be installed unless details of that equipment are first submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Details shall include position on the building, 
visual appearance, details of hours of operation of the equipment, details of noise levels, and the 
manufacturer’s instructions. 

 

Any equipment shall be provided in accordance with the details approved prior to its use at the 
premises, and shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with that approval. The noise emanating 
from equipment (LAeqT) shall not exceed the background noise level (LA90) by more than 5dB, 
including the character/tonalities of the noise, at anytime as measured at the façade of the nearest 
residential property.   

 

Reason: To enable consideration of the impacts of any air conditioning equipment which may be 
required in future to protect the residential and general amenity of the area in accordance with 
policies CS22 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 
2007. 

 

Pre-occupation Conditions 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: SAFETY AND SECURITY 

(11) Full details of the package of proposed safety and security measures for the site shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and provided in accordance 
with that approval prior to the first use of the Coach Station hereby approved unless an alternative 
programme is agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority.  These details shall 
include: 

a. External artificial lighting for all areas of the site, including location and appearance of all light 
fittings, luminance levels (including details which demonstrate that lighting levels will not be harmful 
to the amenity of any surrounding occupiers), and where appropriate timing of use/means of control 

Page 88



 

 

b. CCTV system, including details of camera locations and coverage and monitoring, 
management and maintenance arrangements 

c. Help button, including details of operation and response, management and maintenance 
arrangements 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the site is safe and secure for all users at all times in accordance with policy CS32 of 
the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 58 
and 69 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS 

(12) Details of a package of minor environmental improvements designed to improve the appearance 
of existing buildings and the visitor arrival experience, including a revised arrangement to screen 
existing commercial waste receptacles, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and thereafter provided in accordance with that approval prior to the first use of 
the Coach Station hereby approved. 

 

Reason: 

To improve the visual amenity of the area and improve the visitor arrival experience in accordance 
with Policies CS02 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-
2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61 to 66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: SIGNAGE AND WAYFINDING STRATEGY 

(13) Details of a package of vehicular and pedestrian directional signage and wayfinding measures 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and provided in 
accordance with that approval prior to the first use of the Coach Station hereby approved unless an 
alternative timetable is agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority.  The measures 
could include creative wayfinding measures such as public art interventions as well as traditional 
signage. 

 

Reason:   

To ensure that the facility is easy to find and that visitors arriving at the facility can readily access 
other parts of the city to satisfy relevant parts of policies CS02, CS06, CS28, CS34, of the Plymouth 
Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2007, policy CC03 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework City Centre and University Area Action Plan (2006-2021) 2010, and 
paragraphs 30, 58, and 69 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: DELIVERY OF PARTICULAR ELEMENTS 

(14) The following elements shall be provided in accordance with the details shown on the drawings 
hereby approved prior to the first use of the relevant part of the scheme unless alternative details 
are first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The relevant part of 
the scheme shall be permanently maintained and remain available for its intended purpose in 
accordance with that approval and shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 89



 

 

 

Prior to first use of the coach station: 

a. Cycle parking stands 

b. Taxi/private hire drop off spaces within car park area  

c. Other drop off and pick up spaces (to be clearly signed as such) 

d. Blue badge space adjacent rear entrance to 165 Armada Way 

 

Prior to first use of the car park: 

e. 5 no. blue badge parking bays 

 

Reason: 

To ensure that the development is accessible by a range if transport modes to a satisfactory standard 
in accordance with Policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

Other Conditions  

 

CONDITION: COACH ACCESS ROUTE 

(15) Coaches shall access and egress the site via the preferred route from Western Approach unless 
exceptional circumstances (such as highway closures) dictate otherwise, or unless an alternative 
route plan has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: In accordance with policies CS28 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework 
Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and policies CC04 and CC06 of the Plymouth Local Development 
Framework City Centre and University Area Action Plan (2006-2021) 2010 in the interests of 
pedestrian and highway safety within the city centre and because the air quality impacts of regular 
coach access via Mayflower St from the east have not been fully assessed. 

 

Informatives    

 

INFORMATIVE: TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS  

(1) Traffic Regulation Orders will be required in order to implement and enforce the proposed one 
way street in Mayflower Street and the proposed alterations to parking controls within the public 
highway.  The applicant should contact Plymouth Transport and Highways in order to intitiate the 
necessary procedures. 

 

INFORMATIVE: ADVERTISING 

(2) This permission does not give or imply any consent for the advertising material shown on the 
approved plans. Such advertising is controlled under the Town and Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) Regulations 2007 and the applicants should obtain any necessary consent separately. 

 

Page 90



 

 

INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL  

(3) In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with 
the Applicant [including pre-application discussions] and has negotiated amendments to the 
application to enable the grant of planning permission. 

 

INFORMATIVE: (4) DEVELOPMENT DOES NOT ATTRACT A COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE 
LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

(4) The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, although not exempt from 
liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), will not attract a 
levy payment, due to its size or nature, under our current charging schedule.  The Levy is subject to 
change and you should check the current rates at the time planning permission first permits 
development (if applicable) see www.plymouth.gov.uk/cil for guidance. 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
REPORT 
 

 

Application Number  14/02409/FUL  Item 3 

Date Valid 24/12/2014  Ward Plymstock Radford 

 

Site Address THE BROADWAY   PLYMOUTH 

Proposal 
Erection of single storey retail/coffee shop with creation of external 
seating and associated works 

Applicant Great End Properties Limited 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    18/02/2015 Committee Date 
Planning Committee: 12 
March 2015 

Decision Category Member Referral 

Case Officer Rebecca Boyde 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 

 

Click for documents     www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningdocconditions?appno=14/02409/FUL/planningdoc

conditions?appno=13/02361/LBC 

Page 93 Agenda Item 6.3



 

 

This application has been called into committee by Councillor Michael Leaves 

 

1.   Description of site 

The Broadway is located within the Plymstock area of the city. The Broadway is identified as a 
district centre within the Shopping Centres SPD. Plymstock Broadway dates from the 1960s, is one 
of the largest district centres in Plymouth and is located in the south east of the city. The centre 
contains 65 units at ground floor level and has a good mix of convenience, comparison and service 
uses. It is anchored by a local Co-op supermarket and also a Lidl supermarket which adds further 
offer to the centre. Overall, the level of shopping provision in the centre is good. Plymstock library is 
also located just outside the centre’s primary shopping area and provides a valuable community 
facility. 

 

2.   Proposal description 

Erection of single storey retail/coffee shop with creation of external seating and associated works 

 

3.   Pre-application enquiry 

None  

 

4.   Relevant planning history 

None 

 

5.   Consultation responses 

Local Highway Authority recommends approval subject to conditions 

Public Protection recommends approval subject to conditions 

Police Architectural Liaison officer has no objection to the proposal 

 

6.   Representations 

107 Number of Letters of Representation have been received along with a petition against the 
development with 97 signatures. Out of the 107 letters of representation 100 were objecting on the 
grounds:- 

• Loss of open space 

• Construction on a landscaped area 

• Over-subscribed parking 

• Out of character 

• Job loss if other cafes close 

The letters of objections also mentioned: 

• Should support independent traders only 

• Too many coffee shops already in place 

Page 94



 

 

•  Reduce footfall into the library 

 It should be noted that these are not material planning considerations 

 

7.   Relevant Policy Framework 

 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 
April 2007).  The development plan is currently being reviewed as part of the Plymouth Plan.   The 
Plymouth Plan-Part One: Consultation Draft was approved by Cabinet for consultation purposes on 
9 December 2014.   As such it is a material consideration for the purposes of planning decisions.  

 

The policies contained in National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework)and guidance in 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) are also material considerations which should be taken 
into account in the determination of planning applications.  Due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing and emerging plans according to their degree of consistency with this framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may 
be given). 

 

The Framework provides that the weight to be given to an emerging draft plan is also to be 
determined according to: 

• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the 
greater the weight that may be given).  The Plymouth Plan is at an early stage of preparation. 

• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant 
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given).  The draft policies of 
the Plymouth Plan are currently subject to consultation, although the general direction taken 
by the plan and key issues and options relating to it have been subject to consultation. 

 

At the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  In the 
context of planning applications, this means approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay but where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies 

are out‑of‑date, granting permission unless: 

• Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits; 
or 

• Specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted. 

 

Additionally, the following planning documents are also material considerations in the determination of the 
application: 

• Sustainable Design Supplementary Planning Document 

• Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document 
 
 

Page 95



 

 

 8.   Analysis 

 

(1) This application has been considered in the context of the Council’s adopted planning policy in 
the form of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2007 CS02 (Design), CS22 
(Pollution), CS28 (Local Transport Considerations), and CS34 (Planning Application Considerations) 
the Adopted Core Strategy of Plymouth’s Local Development Framework 2006-2021 and the aims of 
the Council’s Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document ‘First Review’ (2013) and 
is considered to be compliant with National Planning Policy Framework guidance. 

 

(2)The proposed development will deliver a new high quality unit within The Broadway Shopping 
Centre, which is one of the largest district centres in Plymouth. The new building will operate as a 
mixed Class A1/A3 coffee shop and the applicant has indicated that it will be occupied by Costa 
Coffee. At present the site has soft landscaping in place which will be partly removed for the 
erection of this freestanding café. The café will be a single storey retail unit providing approximately 
141sqm of internal floor space. An external seating area is proposed which will create an additional 
59sqm.  

 

(3)The unit will accommodate a serving area/ counter, tables and chairs for approximately 59 people, 
customer toilets including disabled WC and a back of house area. The external seating area will 
accommodate approximately 28 people and will be finished in resin bonded gravel. The external 
seating and tables will be removed every evening and stored away within the premises. 

 

(4)The elevations will be predominantly glazed curtain walls with some insulated cladding which will 
be finished in red. The main entrance will be via the western elevation whilst an additional entrance 
for access to the external seating area will be on the eastern elevation. 

 

(5)To allow the proposals to be built an existing lamppost, post box, and other street furniture along 
with raised plant beds will be reconfigured. These works will form part of plans to modernise the 
wider public realm.  The proposed opening hours will be 0700 to 2000 Monday to Friday and 0800 
to 1700 on Sundays. It is not considered that these opening hours will have a detrimental effect on 
the operation of the Broadway. It will allow the Broadway to be used into the evening whilst 
providing natural surveillance of the Broadway. 

 

(6)The Council adopted a Shopping Centres Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) in June 2012. 
The SPD identifies The Broadway Shopping Centre as one of seven district centres in Plymouth. It 
also identifies the Primary Shopping Area boundaries (PSA) and Primary and Secondary Frontages for 
each shopping centre. The application site is located within the PSA and is adjacent to the Primary 
Frontage of The Broadway. 

The SPD recognises that district centres will usually comprise groups of shops and a range of non-
retail services, including restaurants. Given that each centre has its own unique characteristics the 
SPD does not use thresholds to determine the numbers of different uses which should be provided 
within a centre. 

 

 

 

Page 96



 

 

(7)The retail function of the centre will remain the predominant use in the Primary Shopping Area. 
The proposed use will be accommodated within a new build unit and will not result in a change of 
use of an existing ground floor unit within the centre. It will also support the retail function of the 
centre by encouraging combined and linked trips to the surrounding Class A1 uses. This will help to 
enhance the overall vitality and viability of the centre. 

 

(8)The primary function of a shopping centre is substantially determined by the nature of the retail 
role it plays within the city. The primary function of a district centre will be to provide a range of 
shopping needs to a district of the city, with provision especially for weekly shopping trips. 
Additionally, a shopping centre will also have the function of providing a social heart for its 
community, where a range of facilities are provided to encourage visitors to the centre and enhance 
the vibrancy and vitality of the area. In order for district centres to achieve their primary function, a 
predominance of A1 uses will be needed, particularly within the primary frontage which provides a 
key focus for the centre. It is considered that the proposal continues to provide adequate retail 
within the primary frontage of the Broadway without having a negative impact. 

 

(9)It is noted that the majority of the representations received state that the coffee shop will 
increase competition within the area. It should be noted that this is not a material planning 
consideration.  

(10)Given that the Broadway is served by a large car park it is not considered that the erection of 
the coffee shop will have an impact upon traffic or highways within the area. It is also noted that at 
present the Broadway is currently blocked off and no emergency vehicles can gain access. This is not 
likely to change and therefore it is not considered that the erection of this unit will have a 
detrimental impact upon the Broadway. 

 

 9.   Human Rights 

 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant’s reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

 10.  Local Finance Considerations 

N/A 
 

 11.  Planning Obligations 

 
No planning obligations have been sought regarding this application  

 

 12.  Equalities and Diversities 

None 

 

 

Page 97



 

 

 13.  Conclusions 

 

Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policies CS01 (Development of Sustainable 
Linked Communities), CS02 (Design), CS22 (Pollution), CS28 (Local Transport Considerations), and 
CS34 (Planning Application Considerations) the Adopted Core Strategy of Plymouth’s Local 
Development Framework 2006-2021 and the aims of the Council’s Development Guidelines 
Supplementary Planning Document ‘First Review’ (2013) and is considered to be compliant with 
National Planning Policy Framework guidance. 

 

13.  Recommendation 

 

In respect of the application dated 24/12/2014 and the submitted drawings 12224-P213B,12224-
P212C,12224-P210D,12224-P202B,SITE LAYOUT, 12224-P201A, 12224-P202, 1.2F,it is 
recommended to:  Grant Conditionally 

 

14.  Conditions 

 

CONDITION: DEVELOPMENT TO COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 

CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 12224-P213B,12224-P212C,12224-P210D,12224-P202B,SITE LAYOUT, 12224-
P201A, 12224-P202, 1.2F 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 
the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-
66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



 

 

Pre-commencement Conditions 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: REFUSE 

(3)The development shall not be commenced until details of dustbin enclosures showing the 
design,location and external appearance have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved enclosures shall be provided before the commencement of the use and 
thereafter permanently retained. 

 

Reason: To provide satisfactory refuse storage provision in the interests of the appearance of the 
site and 

locality. 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT: NOISE FROM PLANT MACHINERY 

(4) Prior to the commencement of any occupation of the development building, details of the 
specification and design of any proposed air conditioning or kitchen extraction equipment shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The applicant should include details of 
noise data associated with regard to the any system that is to be put in place. The approved scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. Any alteration or variation to the 
equipment should receive the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed dwellings hereby permitted achieve a satisfactory living 
standard and do not 

experience unacceptable levels of noise disturbance to comply with policies CS22 and CS34 of the 
adopted City of 

Plymouth Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2007 

 

PRE-COMMENCEMENT:ODOUR 

(5) Before the occupation and use hereby permitted is first implemented, details of the specification 
and design of equipment to control the emission of fumes and smell from the premises shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented before the use first commences and shall be retained at all times thereafter. Any 
alteration or variation to the equipment should receive the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. All equipment installed as part of the scheme shall thereafter be operated and maintained 
in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed dwellings hereby permitted achieve a satisfactory living 
standard and do not experience unacceptable levels of odour nuisance to comply with policies CS22 
and CS34 of the adopted City of Plymouth Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2007 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



 

 

Other Conditions  

 

DELIVERIES AND REFUSE COLLECTION 

(6) Deliveries and refuse collections are restricted to the following times: - 

Monday to Saturday No deliveries or refuse collection between 6pm and 8am 

Sundays and Bank Holidays No deliveries or refuse collection 

Reason: To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from noise 

emanating from delivery and waste collection activities and avoid conflict with Policy 

CS22 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 

2007. 

 

PEST PREVENTION 

(7) A pest prevention plan for the proposed use (to include gulls) must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the use of any outside seating area at 
the property. Thereafter, the property shall be managed in accordance with the approved plan, 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written approval to any variation of the arrangements. 

Reason: 

To assist in protecting the residential amenities of the area, in accordance with policies CS22 and 
CS34 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

HOURS 

(8)The premises shall not be open for customers outside the following hours: 

 07:00 - 20:00 Mondays to Fridays  

07:00 - 20:00 Saturdays  

08:00  17:00 Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

Reason: To protect the residential and general amenity of the area from any harmfully polluting 
effects, such as noise, vibration and to comply with policies CS22 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007. 

 

Informatives    

 

INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL (NO NEGOTIATION) 

(1)In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way and has 
imposed planning conditions to enable the grant of planning permission. 

 

 

Page 100



 

 

INFORMATIVE: (NOT CIL LIABLE) DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A COMMUNITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CONTRIBUTION 

(2) The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is 
exempt from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

PLANNING APPLICATION 
REPORT 
 

 

Application Number  15/00012/FUL  Item 4 

Date Valid 07/01/2015  Ward Drake 

 

Site Address 19 HILL PARK CRESCENT   PLYMOUTH 

Proposal Change of use from existing 6 bed HMO to 9 bed HMO 

Applicant Mr P Harker 

Application Type Full Application 

Target Date    04/03/2015 Committee Date 
Planning Committee: 12 
March 2015 

Decision Category Member Referral 

Case Officer Aidan Murray 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 

 

Click for documents     www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningdocconditions?appno=15/00012/FUL/planningdoc

conditions?appno=13/02361/LBC 

   

Page 103 Agenda Item 6.4



 

 

This Application has been brought to committee by Cllr Ricketts  

1.   Description of site 

19 Hill Park Crescent is an end of terrace property located just off North Hill. The Property is sided 
by a service lane. 

 

2.   Proposal description 

The proposal is for a change of use from 6 Bedroom HMO to a 9 Bedroom HMO 

 

3.   Pre-application enquiry 

14/02239/HOU – Change of Use from 6-9 bedroom – support.  

 

4.   Relevant planning history 

 

5.   Consultation responses 

Local Highway Authority - Approve subject to the removal of the parking permits due to 
intensification of use.  

 

6.   Representations 

5 LORs were received. Main concerns: 

• Parking 

• Waste 

• overcrowding 

 

7.   Relevant Policy Framework 

 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the 2004 
Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

The development plan comprises of the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 
April 2007 

 

The development plan is currently being reviewed as part of the Plymouth Plan.   The Plymouth Plan-
Part One: Consultation Draft was approved by Cabinet for consultation purposes on 9 December 
2014.   As such it is a material consideration for the purposes of planning decisions.  

 

 

Page 104



 

 

The policies contained in National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework)and guidance in 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) are also material considerations which should be taken 
into account in the determination of planning applications.  Due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing and emerging plans according to their degree of consistency with this framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may 
be given). 

 

The Framework provides that the weight to be given to an emerging draft plan is also to be 
determined according to: 

• The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the 
greater the weight that may be given).  The Plymouth Plan is at an early stage of preparation. 

• The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant 
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given).  The draft policies of 
the Plymouth Plan are currently subject to consultation, although the general direction taken 
by the plan and key issues and options relating to it have been subject to consultation. 

 

At the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  In the 
context of planning applications, this means approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay but where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies 

are out‑of‑date, granting permission unless: 

• Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits; 
or 

• Specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted. 

 

Additionally, the following planning documents are also material considerations in the determination 
of the application: 

• Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document 

 

 8.   Analysis 

1. The National Planning Policy Framework seeks to actively encourage and promote sustainable 
forms of development. It replaces all previous Planning Policy guidance issued at National 
Government Level.  

 
2. This application has been considered in the context of the Council’s adopted planning policy 

in the form of the Local Development Framework-Core Strategy 2007 and is considered to 
be compliant with National Planning Policy Framework guidance. 

 
3. The main considerations in assessing this application is the impact on residential character, 

impact to neighbours, standard of accommodation, transport and parking, and the visual 
impact of the alterations.  The most relevant policies in the Core Strategy are policies CS02, 
CS15, CS22 and CS34 and the detailed guidelines set out in the Development Guidelines 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) First Review 2013. 

 

Planning Application Considerations 
 

4. The site lies within the Article 4 Direction area which restricts permitted development rights 
and requires an application for planning permission to be submitted for the change of use 
from a single dwellinghouse (Use Class C3) to a HMO for 3 to 6 unrelated individuals who 

Page 105



 

 

share basic amenities (Use class C4).  This property already has permission to be used as a 
HMO. However, this application is for a change of use from C4 to a larger HMO referred to 
as ‘Sui generis.’ 

 
5. The area surrounding Hill Park Crescent is noted as having a proportion of existing HMOs of 

between 31-60%.  The draft SPD states that in Plymouth it is considered that a threshold of 
25% is an appropriate ceiling to maintain balanced communities. This figure is the number of 
buildings that are in HMO use as a percentage of all residential buildings. Changes of use that 
would result in a concentration of HMOs higher than 25% will normally be resisted. 
Consideration is given to the concentration of HMOs in the local area, the census output 
area and at the street level. The current percentages for this area exceeds the 25% threshold 
however it is noted that this unit will not constitute as a loss of a family dwelling, and given 
how large the building is it is unlikely to be suitable for use as a family dwelling. Therefore 
given that the impact upon the character of the area has already changed and exceeded the 
threshold the proposal is not considered to have a negative impact. 

6. In this instance, the proposal does not result in a loss of a family dwelling in this area, and 
therefore officers do not consider it will result in any change to the mix of housing stock.   

7. Officers do not consider the proposed increase in intensity of the use (from 6 to 9 letting 
rooms) will result in any demonstrable harm to the residential character of the area.  The 
proposal is not contrary to policies CS02 or CS15 which promote sustainable mixed 
communities and overall housing provision, respectively, nor the thrust of the Article 4 
Direction 

 
8. A residents’ parking scheme operates in the area for most of the working day and due to the 

proposed intensification of use the whole property would be excluded from the issue of 
permits within the residents parking zone in accordance with current policy. The Letters of 
Representation received made comment largely to the increase of parking issues and the 
existing lack of on street parking. It is felt that this will address the concerns raised with the 
LORs. There will also be a cycle store located to the rear of the property which is in 
adherence with CS28.  

 

 Design 

9. The Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) states that all habitable rooms should receive 
adequate amounts of natural daylight and be of a minimum size to accommodate standard 
sized furniture for its occupants. It is considered that the proposal complies with this 
guidance. It should be noted that the SPD states that each occupier should have adequate 
access to amenity space. Whilst there is an enclosed courtyard to the rear it does not 
comply with minimum standards however given the close proximity to Freedom Fields and 
the waterfront it is therefore deemed acceptable in terms of amenity space. 

10. Overall, it is felt that this application will not only improve the living standards of 19 Hill Park 
Crescent, it will also not have a detrimental effect on the living standards of other residents 
in the area. The design and layout has been well thought out and has considered many issues. 
Officers feel the design and layout of the property improves the efficiency and overall use of 
the property 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



 

 

 9.   Human Rights 

 
Human Rights Act - The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives 
further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant’s reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

 

 10.  Local Finance Considerations 

Not eligible for CIL 
 

 11.  Planning Obligations 

 
None  
 

 12.  Equalities and Diversities 

None 

 

 13.  Conclusions 

 
Officers have taken account of the NPPF and S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and concluded that the proposal accords with policy and national guidance and specifically CS 
02 (design) and CS34 (Planning Applications considerations) of the Core Strategy and so should be 
issued for approval.  

 

13.  Recommendation 

 

In respect of the application dated 07/01/2015 and the submitted drawings Existing Floor Plans 
P695-01, Proposed Floor Plans P695-02 Rev A,it is recommended to:  Grant Conditionally 

 

14.  Conditions 

 

CONDITION: DEVELOPMENT TO COMMENCE WITHIN 3 YEARS 

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years beginning 
from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: 

To comply with Section 51 of the Planning  & Compulsory Purchase  Act 2004. 

 

 

Page 107



 

 

CONDITION: APPROVED PLANS 

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: Existing Floor Plans P695-01, Proposed Floor Plans P695-02 Rev A 

 

Reason: 

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of good planning, in accordance with policy CS34 of 
the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraphs 61-
66 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

Pre-occupation Conditions 

 

PRE-OCCUPATION: CYCLE PROVISION 

(3) The building shall not be occupied until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with 
the approved plan for 5 bicycles to be securely parked. The secure area for storing bicycles shown 
on the approved plan shall remain available for its intended purpose and shall not be used for any 
other purpose without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: 

In order to promote cycling as an alternative to the use of private cars in accordance with Policy 
CS28 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and 
paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

Other Conditions  

 

CONDITION: MANAGEMENT PLAN 

(4) Within one month of the date of this decision notice, a management plan for the operation of the 
accommodation, which shall include contact details (including postal address, email address and 
telephone number) of the person to be contacted regarding any issues arising from the use of the 
building or its curtilage and shall include a commitment to keep this information up to date, shall be 
submitted to [and approved in writing by] the Local Planning Authority.  The management plan shall 
thereafter be adhered to strictly at all times. 

 

Reason: 

In the interests of neighbours to protect from any arising noise and nuisance issues that may arise 
and to provide a ready point of contact for any person who needs to address an issue in relation to 
the use of the property, in accordance with policies CS22 and CS34 of the Plymouth Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-2021) 2007, and paragraph 123 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

CONDITION: BEDROOMS 

(5) No more than 9 rooms at the property shall be used as bedrooms.  Only the rooms labelled 
"bedroom" on the approved plans shall be used as bedrooms, unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives written approval to any variation of this requirement. 

Page 108



 

 

 

Reason: 

The number of bedrooms proposed in the application is considered to be the maximum that can 
reasonably be accommodated at the site.  The proposed layout, together with the use of the 
remaining rooms for communal facilities, has been assessed and considered acceptable in planning 
terms and any other arrangement would need to be assessed on its merits.  This condition is in 
accordance with policy CS15 of the Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2006-
2021) 2007, and paragraph 61 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 

Informatives    

 

INFORMATIVE: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 

(1) In accordance with the requirements of Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 and paragraphs 186 and 187 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way 
[including pre-application discussions] and has imposed planning conditions to enable the grant of 
planning permission. 

 

INFORMATIVE: DEVELOPMENT IS NOT LIABLE FOR A COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
CONTRIBUTION 

(2) The Local Planning Authority has assessed that this development, due to its size or nature, is 
exempt from any liability under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 

INFORMATIVE: RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME 

(3) The applicant should be made aware that the property lies within a resident parking permit 
scheme which is currently over-subscribed. As such the development will be excluded from 
obtaining permits and purchasing visitor tickets for use within the scheme.

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Decisions issued for the following period:  2 February 2015 to 1 March 2015

Note - This list includes:

- Committee Decisions

- Delegated Decisions

- Withdrawn Applications

- Returned Applications

Site Addres   LAND OFF DOVER ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of 14 affordable dwellings with associated parking and 

external works

Case Officer: Simon Osborne

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Subject to S106 Obligation - Full

Application Number: 14/01304/FUL Applicant: Mr Andrew Mitchelmore

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 1

Site Addres   LAND ADJACENT YARDLEY GARDENS ESTOVER  

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Development of 6 affordable homes with associated works

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Subject to S106 Obligation - Full

Application Number: 14/01317/FUL Applicant: Mr Andrew Mitchelmore

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 2

Page 111 Agenda Item 7



Site Addres   HM LAND REGISTRY, DRAKES HILL COURT, 
BURRINGTON WAY   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use of east and west wings of former Land Registry 

building from B8 (storage and distribution) to a composite use 
for office, storage and television production

Case Officer: Christopher King

Decision Date: 20/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/01643/FUL Applicant: God TV - The Angel Foundation

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 3

Site Addres   ROYAL NAVY   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Construction of helicopter landing pad, demolition of 3 

buildings, construction of a new building and modifications of 1 
building

Case Officer: Mark Felgate

Decision Date: 12/02/2015

Decision: Application Withdrawn

Application Number: 14/01653/FUL Applicant: Defence Infrastructure Organisa

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 4

Site Addres   FORMER COMMUNITIES CENTRE, DUXFORD CLOSE  

ERNESETTLE PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Variation of condition 2 of planning application 13/00916/FUL 

to allow amended drawings including removal of turret 
extending from the roof, alterations to parking and first floor 

drying yard

Case Officer: Adam Williams

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/01686/FUL Applicant: Aster Homes

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 5

Page 112



Site Addres   TAMAR HOUSE, ST ANDREWS CROSS   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: One-storey extension, at 4th floor level, comprising 16 student 

studio apartments

Case Officer: Karen Gallacher

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Grant Subject to S106 Obligation - Full

Application Number: 14/01781/FUL Applicant: Atlee Sinclair Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 6

Site Addres   BRITTANY FERRIES FUEL TERMINAL, MILLBAY DOCKS   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Hazardous substance consent for storage of marine fuel oil 

and gas oil

Case Officer: Mark Felgate

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/01812/HAZ Applicant: BAI (SA)

Application Type: Hazardous Substances

Item No 7

Site Addres   27 DUNCLAIR PARK   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Retrospective application for timber decking at rear of garden

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Refuse

Application Number: 14/01905/FUL Applicant: Mr James Donovan

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 8

Page 113



Site Addres   259 STUART ROAD  STOKE PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Rear conservatory

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/01964/FUL Applicant: Mr Richard Sherit

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 9

Site Addres   VIRGIN MEDIA, ENDEVOUR HOUSE, 107 ALEXANDRA 

ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use to use class D2 (gymnasium)

Case Officer: Karen Gallacher

Decision Date: 02/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/01999/FUL Applicant: Mrs A Crawshaw

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 10

Site Addres   GROUND FLOOR FLAT, 110 DURNFORD STREET   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Minor window alterations and internal reconfiguration

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 18/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02023/FUL Applicant: Mr Neil Griffiths

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 11

Page 114



Site Addres   GROUND FLOOR FLAT, 110 DURNFORD STREET   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Minor window alterations and internal reconfiguration

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 18/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02025/LBC Applicant: Mr Neil Griffiths

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 12

Site Addres   72-74  DEVONPORT ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Demolition of shed, installation of extraction system, 

refurbishment of existing building and installation of windows 
and balustrades

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Application Withdrawn

Application Number: 14/02104/FUL Applicant: K & J Mayer

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 13

Site Addres   CHRISTIAN MILL, TAMERTON FOLIOT ROAD   

Description of Development: Construction of 12 business units (use classes B1 and B8) in 

two blocks on existing car park (renewal of planning 
permission 09/01227/FUL)

Case Officer: Janine Warne

Decision Date: 18/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02105/FUL Applicant: Westcountry Estates Managem

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 14

Page 115



Site Addres   RETAIL PARK, MARSH MILLS PARK   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Variation of condition 2 of 94/01034/FUL to allow the sale of 

A1 non-food goods by a catalogue showroom retailer from up 
to 185 square metres of the existing Homebase sales area

Case Officer: Kate Saunders

Decision Date: 18/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02110/FUL Applicant: Home Retail Group

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 15

Site Addres   HM REVENUE AND CUSTOMS, CUSTOMS HOUSE   
PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use from Custom House to restaurant (A3), shop 

(A1) and 4 apartments (C3) including alterations to courtyard 
glazing at ground floor

Case Officer: Karen Gallacher

Decision Date: 10/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02111/FUL Applicant: Mr Essee Kamaie

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 16

Site Addres   HM REVENUE AND CUSTOMS, CUSTOMS HOUSE   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Removal of internal walls, installation of new partitions on 

ground, first and second floors, alterations to ground floor 
glazing and floor covering at first floor, in association with 

planning application 14/02111/FUL

Case Officer: Karen Gallacher

Decision Date: 10/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02112/LBC Applicant: Mr Esse Kamaie

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 17

Page 116



Site Addres   THE FORMER CREAMERY,BRIDWELL LANE NORTH 

WESTON MILL  PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Development of 13 affordable dwellings (7 houses and 6 flats) 

with associated access and parking

Case Officer: Olivia Wilson

Decision Date: 24/02/2015

Decision: Grant Subject to S106 Obligation - Full

Application Number: 14/02136/FUL Applicant: Westcountry Housing

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 18

Site Addres   77 TO 79 EXETER STREET   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Refurbishment of existing petrol station to include installation 

of ATM

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 04/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02176/FUL Applicant: McLagan Investments Limited

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 19

Site Addres   40 ROYAL PARADE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Advertising panel on double sized bus shelter

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02248/ADV Applicant: JCDecaux UK Ltd

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 20

Page 117



Site Addres   26 LEATFIELD DRIVE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Demolition of side conservatory and erection of a two-storey 

side extension, with the erection of a detached garage and a 
retrospective application for a single storey rear extension

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 04/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02259/FUL Applicant: Mr & Mrs Andrew Bowker

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 21

Site Addres   46 SOUTHSIDE STREET   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use from A1 to A3

Case Officer: Ben Wilcox

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02266/FUL Applicant: Mrs Michelle Clark

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 22

Site Addres   1 LOPWELL CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of family dwelling

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 04/02/2015

Decision: Refuse

Application Number: 14/02285/FUL Applicant: Mr Kelvin Kirk

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 23

Page 118



Site Addres   5 VENN COURT   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Scots Pine - fell and Turkey Oak - reduce by 1.5 - 2.5m

Case Officer: Jane Turner

Decision Date: 11/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02292/TPO Applicant: Mr R Rabin

Application Type: Tree Preservation

Item No 24

Site Addres   PLUMER HOUSE, TAILYOUR ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: External signage to entrance

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 11/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02295/ADV Applicant: Mrs Louise Turner

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 25

Site Addres   UNIT 17 REYNOLDS PARK, BELL CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Formation of 2 no. new car parking spaces to the rear of unit 

17, including stopping up of highways rights to part of 
Parkstone Lane. Future use of stopped up highway to be soft 

landscaped area incorporating grass and infill section of hedge.

Case Officer: Jon Fox

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02297/FUL Applicant: Unit Build Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 26

Page 119



Site Addres   PLYMBRIDGE ROAD  PLYMPTON PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Three free-standing signs

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 13/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02303/ADV Applicant: National Trust

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 27

Site Addres   THORN PARK PISSOIR, THORN PARK  MANNAMEAD 

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Refurbishment to urinal/pissoir and installation of security gate

Case Officer: Kate Price

Decision Date: 10/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02308/LBC Applicant: Plymouth City Council

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 28

Site Addres   52 HIGHER COMPTON ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Additional use class to include A2

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02320/FUL Applicant: ATP Holdings Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 29

Page 120



Site Addres   SHIP INN, QUAY ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Removal of redundant flue and installation of new louvre 

shutters to rear. Installation of a new ventilation system, and 
roof vent, and three dormers Retrospective approval for 

relocation of cellar cooling unit and louvered doors to rear

Case Officer: Kate Price

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02324/FUL Applicant: St Austell Brewery

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 30

Site Addres   SHIP INN, QUAY ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Removal of redundant flue and installation of new louvre 

shutters to rear. Installation of new a ventilation system, and 
roof vent, and three dormers. Retrospective approval for 

relocation of cellar cooling unit and louvered doors to rear

Case Officer: Kate Price

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02326/LBC Applicant: St Austell Brewery

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 31

Site Addres   DEVONPORT DOCKYARD, SALTASH ROAD  KEYHAM 

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Demolition of N189 extension to the quadrangle and 

replacement and hardstanding

Case Officer: Jess Maslen

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02337/LBC Applicant: Babcock International Group

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 32

Page 121



Site Addres   53 HOOE ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Demolition of existing care home and erection of 12 apartments

Case Officer: Simon Osborne

Decision Date: 09/02/2015

Decision: Application Withdrawn

Application Number: 14/02339/FUL Applicant: Plymstock Properties Developm

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 33

Site Addres   MADDEN ROAD & MILLS ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Various tree management works

Case Officer: Chris Knapman

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02341/TPO Applicant: Cumberland Park Gardens Man

Application Type: Tree Preservation

Item No 34

Site Addres   THE CORNWALLS GATE PH, NORMANDY WAY   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Various tree management works including removal of 3 Holm 

Oak, 4 Sycamore, 1 Scots Pine and 1 Sweet Chestnut

Case Officer: Jane Turner

Decision Date: 25/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02342/TPO Applicant: Select Developments Plymouth 

Application Type: Tree Preservation

Item No 35

Page 122



Site Addres   SO59, VIVID APPROACH SOUTH YARD, HMNB 

DEVONPORT KEYHAM PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Various alterations to create safe environment for the building 

to come back into use

Case Officer: Jess Maslen

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02348/LBC Applicant: Mr Jon Halton

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 36

Site Addres   81D HIGHER COMPTON ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use of top floor apartment to office accommodation 

(use class B1)

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02355/FUL Applicant: Design Development Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 37

Site Addres   MILLBAY DOCKS, MILLBAY ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of single storey building

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02359/FUL Applicant: Associated British Ports

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 38

Page 123



Site Addres   40 WEST HILL ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Loft conversion with dormer and roof lights

Case Officer: Ben Wilcox

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Issue Certificate - Lawful Use

Application Number: 14/02361/PRDE Applicant: Mr Jon Kitchen

Application Type: LDC Proposed Develop

Item No 39

Site Addres   11 ST JOSEPHS CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: 2 Ash - Coppice

Case Officer: Jane Turner

Decision Date: 09/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02365/TPO Applicant: Plymouth City Council

Application Type: Tree Preservation

Item No 40

Site Addres   CASTLE BARBICAN, FORE STREET  PLYMPTON 

Description of Development: Thermal improvements and windows and doors improvements

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 20/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02366/FUL Applicant: Devon and Cornwall Housing

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 41

Site Addres   RIDGEWAY SCHOOL, MOORLAND ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Alterations, refurbishment and extension to 'The Geasons 

Building'

Case Officer: Christopher King

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02368/FUL Applicant: Business Manager at Ridgeway 

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 42

Page 124



Site Addres   2 DOLPHIN SQUARE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Front garage and porch extension

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02369/FUL Applicant: Michael Brockwell

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 43

Site Addres   THE BARDEN CORP, PLYMBRIDGE ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Perimeter fence extension

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 12/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02371/FUL Applicant: The Barden Corporation (UK) Lt

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 44

Site Addres   DEVONPORT DOCKYARD, SALTASH ROAD  KEYHAM 

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Installation of a stud partition wall

Case Officer: Jess Maslen

Decision Date: 09/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02372/LBC Applicant: Babcock International Group

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 45

Page 125



Site Addres   9 MORLEY CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: 2 Sycamore Trees - Reduce by 6-8 metres

Case Officer: Chris Knapman

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Refuse

Application Number: 14/02375/TPO Applicant: Mrs Debbie Hubbard

Application Type: Tree Preservation

Item No 46

Site Addres   SEAWINGS,101 LAWRENCE ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Amendment to planning permission 12/01339/FUL to re-

develop site by erection of new 4 storey building containing 
commercial unit on ground floor and 7 apartments on upper 

floors with associated car parking, refuse and cycle storage 

(demolition of existing building)

Case Officer: Robert Heard

Decision Date: 09/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02381/FUL Applicant: Mountbatten Property LTD

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 47

Site Addres   17 KIRKDALE GARDENS   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Two storey side extension

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02389/FUL Applicant: Mr Marq Edwards

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 48

Page 126



Site Addres   LAND ADJ. TO 334 TAVISTOCK ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Construction of a three car garage in place of double garage 

approved on application 13/00592/FUL

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 18/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02390/FUL Applicant: Mr Jonathan Sims

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 49

Site Addres   TAMAR VIEW COMMUNITY CENTRE, MIERS CLOSE   
PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Demolition of ex NAAFI building and construction of new 

health centre(GP), pharmacy, and nursery with associated bin 
stores

Case Officer: Adam Williams

Decision Date: 27/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02391/FUL Applicant: Tamar View Community Compl

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 50

Site Addres   ST ANDREWS COURT,12 ST ANDREW STREET   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use from commercial office space to education use

Case Officer: Katie Beesley

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02394/FUL Applicant: Head of Estates and Facilities

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 51

Page 127



Site Addres   LAND REAR OF 11-13 QUEENS ROAD  LIPSON 

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of detached dwelling in rear garden

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 06/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02400/FUL Applicant: Mr Steven Arthur and Mrs Sharo

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 52

Site Addres   THE SHAKESPEARE, THEATRE OPE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Replace defective timber beams with steel. Replace fractured 

brick arches with concrete lintels

Case Officer: Kate Price

Decision Date: 12/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02402/LBC Applicant: Punch Taverns Ltd

Application Type: Listed Building

Item No 53

Site Addres   BRITISH BAKERIES LTD, BURRINGTON ROAD   
PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Part retrospective application for demolition of chimney stacks 

and first floor extension and the creation of new door/window 
openings

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02406/FUL Applicant: Burrington Estates Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 54

Page 128



Site Addres   41 THE OLD WHARF   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Three storey side extension to accommodate facilities for 

disabled person, two rear balconies, one-storey rear 
conservatory and removal of existing earth bund, replaced with 

stone wall

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 12/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02411/FUL Applicant: Major and Mrs John Rooke

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 55

Site Addres   PLYMOUTH COLLEGE OF ART & DESIGN, TAVISTOCK 

PLACE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Four internally illuminated fascia signs, and replacement of 

three internally illuminated fascia signs

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02412/ADV Applicant: Plymouth College of Art

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 56

Site Addres   BRITISH BAKERIES LTD, BURRINGTON ROAD   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Installation of roof-mounted solar panels and ancillary 

equipment

Case Officer: Christopher King

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02416/FUL Applicant: Burrington Estates Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 57

Page 129



Site Addres   8 DERRY AVENUE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Rear single storey extension

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 05/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 14/02419/FUL Applicant: AMS SW LTD

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 58

Site Addres   191 TO 193 OUTLAND ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Replacement signage

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00001/ADV Applicant: Mr Alex Smith

Application Type: Tree Preservation

Item No 59

Site Addres   16 MOORLAND ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Kerb lowering and access to hardstanding

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 20/02/2015

Decision: Application Withdrawn

Application Number: 15/00007/FUL Applicant: Mr Chris Hodgson

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 60

Site Addres   32 ALEXANDRA ROAD  FORD PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of garage in garden

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 03/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00008/FUL Applicant: Ms J D Pike

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 61

Page 130



Site Addres   15 BRADFIELD CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Single storey side extension

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 13/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00013/FUL Applicant: Mr Roger Jolly

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 62

Site Addres   116 CREMYLL STREET   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: 1 Holly Tree - Fell

Case Officer: Chris Knapman

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00014/TCO Applicant: Mr C Strafford

Application Type: Trees in Cons Area

Item No 63

Site Addres   9 CASTLE CLOSE, BARBICAN ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use from C2 residential institution to C3 residential 

house including associated works

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00019/FUL Applicant: Mr Richard Curtis

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 64

Site Addres   11 MOORLAND VIEW  PLYMSTOCK PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Rear dormer

Case Officer: Ben Wilcox

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Issue Certificate - Lawful Use

Application Number: 15/00020/PRDE Applicant: Mrs Tracey Wise

Application Type: LDC Proposed Develop

Item No 65

Page 131



Site Addres   15 TORLAND ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Single storey rear extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 11/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00025/FUL Applicant: Mrs Maria Papadaki

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 66

Site Addres   52 DEVONPORT ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: One internally illuminated fascia sign and one internally 

illuminated ATM sign

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 12/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00026/ADV Applicant: Wincor Nixdorf

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 67

Site Addres   1 BELLIVER WAY   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Creation of a hardstanding

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 19/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00028/FUL Applicant: Pipex Ltd

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 68

Site Addres   7 GROSVENOR ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Two storey side extension to form annex

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 16/02/2015

Decision: Refuse

Application Number: 15/00032/FUL Applicant: Mr Peter Antill

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 69

Page 132



Site Addres   11 THIRD AVENUE  BILLACOMBE PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of single storey extension

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 23/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00033/FUL Applicant: Mr Peter Roose

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 70

Site Addres   1 TUXTON CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Two storey side extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00034/FUL Applicant: Mr Alan Wren

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 71

Site Addres   27 WHITEFORD ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Viburnum Tinus - Remove

Case Officer: Chris Knapman

Decision Date: 18/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00036/TCO Applicant: Ms Tracey Lee

Application Type: Trees in Cons Area

Item No 72

Site Addres   43 POWISLAND DRIVE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Erection of new house adjacent to 43 Powisland Drive

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 12/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00038/FUL Applicant: Mr David Greenaway

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 73

Page 133



Site Addres   27 WHITEFORD ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Single storey rear extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 13/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00040/FUL Applicant: Ms Tracey Lee

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 74

Site Addres   11 POMPHLETT CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Single storey rear extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 11/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00041/FUL Applicant: Mrs L Watts

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 75

Site Addres   3 MOON STREET   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Add D1 to classification of use

Case Officer: Rebecca Boyde

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00045/FUL Applicant: Atlantic Translations Ltd t/a Atla

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 76

Site Addres   GARDEN COURT, GARDEN CRESCENT   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Replacement windows.

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00046/FUL Applicant: Tamar Housing Society

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 77

Page 134



Site Addres   37 MILEHOUSE ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Change of use from 3no flats to 4no.

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 23/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00047/FUL Applicant: Mr & Mrs Jim Woodley

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 78

Site Addres   8A ADMIRALTY STREET  STONEHOUSE PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Rear extension

Case Officer: Kate Price

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Issue Certificate - Lawful Use

Application Number: 15/00074/PRDE Applicant: Mrs Tanya Gibson

Application Type: LDC Proposed Develop

Item No 79

Site Addres   33A DERRYS CROSS   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Retrospective replacement signage

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00081/ADV Applicant: Tasty Plc

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 80

Page 135



Site Addres   BON MARCHE, 93 TO 95 NEW GEORGE STREET   

PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Replacement signage

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00084/ADV Applicant: Bonmarche

Application Type: Advertisement

Item No 81

Site Addres   216 GRENVILLE ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Two storey rear extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 27/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00085/FUL Applicant: Mr and Mrs Ferris

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 82

Site Addres   11 AYREVILLE ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: A single storey rear extension which extends beyond the rear 

wall of the original dwellinghouse by 5.0m, has a maximum 
height of 3.92m, and has an eaves height of 2.85m.

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 16/02/2015

Decision: Prior approval not req

Application Number: 15/00086/GPD Applicant: Mike Leggett

Application Type: GPDO Request

Item No 83

Page 136



Site Addres   54 ROBERTS ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Single storey rear extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 17/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00089/FUL Applicant: Mrs Joanne Cook

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 84

Site Addres   27 WIDEY LANE  CROWNHILL PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Conversion of loft including rear dormer and new side porch

Case Officer: Kate Price

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Issue Certificate - Lawful Use

Application Number: 15/00094/PRDE Applicant: Mr and Mrs S Yalden

Application Type: LDC Proposed Develop

Item No 85

Site Addres   104 GREEN PARK ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Single storey extension to the rear

Case Officer: Amy Thompson

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00119/FUL Applicant: Mr Adam Wilkins

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 86

Page 137



Site Addres   PLYMOUTH SCIENCE PARK, RESEARCH WAY   
PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Request for screening for the proposed Phase 5 development 

at Plymouth Science Park to create 2600sqm of B1 office 
space

Case Officer: Christopher King

Decision Date: 13/02/2015

Decision: ESRI - Completed

Application Number: 15/00127/ESR10 Applicant: AECOM

Application Type: Environmental Ass

Item No 87

Site Addres   117 GREEN PARK ROAD   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Two storey rear extension

Case Officer: Opani Mudalige

Decision Date: 27/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00135/FUL Applicant: Mr & Mrs Ronald Lagor

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 88

Site Addres   7 HOPTON CLOSE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Two storey side extension

Case Officer: Aidan Murray

Decision Date: 26/02/2015

Decision: Grant Conditionally

Application Number: 15/00137/FUL Applicant: Mr & Mrs Steve Daley

Application Type: Full Application

Item No 89

Page 138



Site Addres   3 SEYMOUR DRIVE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Lawson Cypress - Fell

Case Officer: Chris Knapman

Decision Date: 09/02/2015

Decision: Application Withdrawn

Application Number: 15/00182/TCO Applicant: Plymouth Tree Services

Application Type: Trees in Cons Area

Item No 90

Site Addres   1 SEYMOUR DRIVE   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: 1 yew tree - fell & 1 beech tree - substantial crown lift

Case Officer: Chris Knapman

Decision Date: 09/02/2015

Decision: Application Withdrawn

Application Number: 15/00184/TCO Applicant: Plymouth Tree Services

Application Type: Trees in Cons Area

Item No 91

Site Addres   LAND OFF BELLIVER WAY   PLYMOUTH

Description of Development: Request for screening opinion for a solar farm

Case Officer: Olivia Wilson

Decision Date: 27/02/2015

Decision: ESRI - Completed

Application Number: 15/00225/ESR10 Applicant: Verto Energy

Application Type: Environmental Ass

Item No 92

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee
Appeal Decisions

The following decisions have been made by the Planning Inspectorate on appeals arising from decisions of the City Council:-

Application Number 13/01198/FUL

Appeal Site   NORBURY COURT,10 CRAIGIE DRIVE   PLYMOUTH

Appeal Proposal Installation of photovoltaic panels on the colonnade in front of Norbury Court

Case Officer Olivia Wilson

Appeal Category

Appeal Type Written Representations

Appeal Decision Allowed

Appeal Decision Date 11/09/2014

Conditions

Award of Costs Awarded To

Appeal Synopsis

The main consideration was whether the benefits of renewable energy production would outweigh any harm to the Grade II* listed 
buildings. The relevant policies are CS03, CS20, and government guidance on on renewable and low carbon energy. He concluded that the 
scheme would help to educe the energy costs associated with the operation of the building which would in turn help secure the building's 
viability for office use and contribute to the long term conservation of Norbury Court. It would also assist in meeting national targets for 
renewable energy. His view was that the solar panels would not be unduly prominent and would not involve any harmful loss or disturbance 
to any important historic fabric. The works would be temporary and reversible. In this instance, the harmful impact would be very minor and 
limited to a 25 year period. The benefits therefore outweigh the limited harm.

Application Number 13/01201/LBC

Appeal Site   NORBURY COURT,10 CRAIGIE DRIVE   PLYMOUTH

Appeal Proposal Installation of photo voltaic panels on the colonnade in front of Norbury Court

Case Officer Olivia Wilson

Appeal Category

Appeal Type Written Representations

Appeal Decision Allowed

Appeal Decision Date 11/09/2014

Conditions

Award of Costs Awarded To

Appeal Synopsis

The main consideration was whether the benefits of renewable energy production would outweigh any harm to the Grade II* listed 
buildings. The relevant policies are CS03, CS20, and government guidance on on renewable and low carbon energy. He concluded that the 
scheme would help to educe the energy costs associated with the operation of the building which would in turn help secure the building's 
viability for office use and contribute to the long term conservation of Norbury Court. It would also assist in meeting national targets for 
renewable energy. His view was that the solar panels would not be unduly prominent and would not involve any harmful loss or disturbance 
to any important historic fabric. The works would be temporary and reversible. In this instance, the harmful impact would be very minor and 
limited to a 25 year period. The benefits therefore outweigh the limited harm.

Page 141 Agenda Item 8



Application Number 13/02214/FUL

Appeal Site   LAND AT THIRLMERE GARDENS   PLYMOUTH

Appeal Proposal Construction of 14 dwellings with access from Thirlmere Gardens and associated parking and landscaping

Case Officer Olivia Wilson

Appeal Category

Appeal Type Written Representations

Appeal Decision Dismissed

Appeal Decision Date 16/02/2015

Conditions

Award of Costs Awarded To

Appeal Synopsis

The main consideration was whether the scheme's effects on 1) the character, appearance and identity of the neighbourhood, 2) protected 
species and 3) protected trees outweigh  the presumption is favour of granting planning permission for new dwellings as set out in NPPF 
para 14. The Inspector did not consider that Policy CS18 was applicable as the site did not appear to be identified in a development plan 
document as a greenscape area. However, he agreed that the site retains an informal woodland appearance provides a visual
 break between the lower and upper parts of Thirlmere Gardens. The introduction of development on the site would materially harm the 

area's character and appearance, contrary to policies CS01 and CS02. He also considered that the design of the dwellings would be at odds 
with the prevailing character of the surrounding area, also contrary to CS01 and CS02. He also considered that the proposal is contrary to 
policy CS19 as insufficient information has been submitted to establish the presence or otherwise of protected bats. Finally, he considered 

that the proposal would unacceptably harm protected trees, contrary to policy CS18.

Page 142


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	 SCHEDULE OF VOTING

	6.1 MILLBAY MARINA VILLAGE, CUSTOM HOUSE LANE, PLYMOUTH 14/01103/FUL
	6.2 165 ARMADA WAY, PLYMOUTH 15/00006/FUL
	6.3 THE BROADWAY, PLYMOUTH 14/02409/FUL
	6.4 19 HILL PARK CRESCENT, PLYMOUTH 15/00012/FUL
	7 PLANNING APPLICATION DECISIONS ISSUED
	8 APPEAL DECISIONS

